














































































Loads Limited38
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2018

Note 30 June 30 June
 2018  2017 

ASSETS (Rupees)

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4  1,879,663,053  782,307,297 
Intangible assets 5  2,248,940  2,088,635 
Long term investments 6  399,117,546  639,025,429 
Long term loans and receivables 9  18,257,596  27,386,282 
Employee benefits - gratuity 21.2  5,317,208  -   

 2,304,604,343  1,450,807,643 

Current assets
Stores and spares 25.2   44,933,529  54,094,440 
Stock-in-trade 7   1,662,758,743  1,181,967,494 
Trade debts - net 8   350,809,641  223,972,326 
Loans and advances 10   155,422,463  92,413,727 
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 11   247,070,821  191,474,809 
Current maturity of long term receivables 9   47,104,408  33,547,375 
Taxation - net 12   165,957,057  175,784,003 
Investments 13   74,292,038  107,436,273 
Cash and bank balances 14   535,897,253  343,121,346 

  3,284,245,953  2,403,811,793 
Total assets   5,588,850,296  3,854,619,436 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital and reserves
Authorised capital
200,000,000 (30 June 2017: 200,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs.10 each 17   2,000,000,000  2,000,000,000 

Share capital
  Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 17   1,512,500,000  1,375,000,000 
  Share premium   1,095,352,578  1,095,352,578 

Capital reserve
  Unrealised gain on re-measurement of available-for-sale investments   13,240,378  33,726,169 

Revenue reserve
  Unappropriated profit   696,944,970  898,499,945 
Equity attributable to owners of the Company   3,318,037,926  3,402,578,692 

Non controlling Interests 18   333,304,662  -   
Total equity   3,651,342,588  3,402,578,692 

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 19   5,014,204  8,935,018 
Deferred tax liabilities 20   91,325,057  85,589,139 
Employee benefits - gratuity 21.2   -    287,395 

  96,339,261  94,811,552 
Current liabilities
Current maturity of liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 19   14,049,148  13,258,088 
Short term financing 22   1,439,632,009  28,395,236 
Trade and other payables 23   364,664,760  313,567,792 
Unclaimed dividend   3,574,008  1,420,509 
Accrued mark-up on short term financing   19,248,522  587,567 

  1,841,168,447  357,229,192 

Total equity and liabilities   5,588,850,296  3,854,619,436 

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 15 

The annexed notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Director
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Consolidated Statement of Profit Or Loss
For the year ended 30 June 2018

Note 30 June 30 June
 2018  2017 

(Rupees)

Revenue 24   4,889,663,855  4,405,126,503 

Cost of sales 25   (4,369,075,348)  (3,857,544,318)

Gross profit   520,588,507  547,582,185 

Administrative, selling and general expenses 26   (227,024,830)  (185,265,945)

  293,563,677  362,316,240 

Other expenses 27   (36,322,302)  (28,532,034)
Other income 28   83,668,622  63,192,051 

  47,346,320  34,660,017 

Operating profit   340,909,997  396,976,257 

Finance costs 29   (90,961,193)  (45,751,375)

Unrealised (loss) / gain on re-measurement of investments
at fair value through profit or loss - at initial recognition 13.1   (7,534,489)  13,477,480 

Share of profit in associate - net 6.1.1   2,679,323  13,029,143 

Profit before taxation   245,093,638  377,731,505 

Taxation 30   (83,536,858)  (71,304,206)

Profit for the year   161,556,780  306,427,299 

Profit attributable to:
Owners of the Company   154,911,054  306,427,299 
Non-controlling interests 18   6,645,726  -   

  161,556,780  306,427,299 

 (Restated) 
Earnings per share - basic and diluted 31   1.02  2.31 

The annexed notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Director
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 
For the year ended 30 June 2018

Note 30 June 30 June
 2018  2017 

(Rupees)

Profit for the year 161,556,780 306,427,299 

Other comprehensive income:

Items that are or may be reclassified subsequently to
  profit or loss

Unrealised (loss) / gain on re-measurement of
  available-for-sale investments 13.2.1  (20,485,791)  9,920,314 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Loss on re-measurement of defined benefit liability 21.2.4  (11,613,554)  (3,548,495)
Related tax 20.2  3,367,931  1,064,549 

 (8,245,623)  (2,483,946)

Share of loss in associate's defined benefit liability 
  recognized in other comprehensive income 6.1.1   (2,051,470)  -   

Total comprehensive income for the year  130,773,896 313,863,667 

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the Company   124,128,170 313,863,667 
Non-controlling interests 18   6,645,726  -   

  130,773,896  313,863,667 

The annexed notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these consolidated financial  statements.

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Director



Annual Report 2018

41
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2018

Attributable to owners of the Company

Share capital Capital reserve Revenue 
reserve

Note Issued, 
subscribed
and paid up

capital

Share
premium

Unrealised gain /
(loss) on 

re-measurement
of

available-for-sale 
investments

Unappropriated
profit

Total Non-
controlling
interests

Total
equity

----------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees) ---------------------------------------------------------
Balance at 1 July 2016  750,000,000  -    23,805,855  844,556,592 1,618,362,447  -    1,618,362,447 

Total comprehensive income for the year ended 30 June 2017
Profit for the year  -    -    -    306,427,299   306,427,299  -    306,427,299 
Other comprehensive income  -    -    9,920,314  (2,483,946)   7,436,368  -    7,436,368 

 -    -    9,920,314  303,943,353   313,863,667  -    313,863,667 
Transactions with owners of the Company
Contributions and distributions
Issue of 50,000,000 ordinary shares at the rate of Rs. 34 per share 17  500,000,000  1,200,000,000  -    -   1,700,000,000  -    1,700,000,000 
Final dividend at the rate of 10% (i.e. Re. 1 per share) for the 
  year ended 30 June 2016  -    -    -    (125,000,000)   (125,000,000)  -    (125,000,000)

Issue of bonus shares at the rate of 10% (i.e. 10 shares for every   -   

  100 shares held)  125,000,000  -    -    (125,000,000)   -    -    -   

Total contributions and distributions  625,000,000  1,200,000,000  -    (250,000,000) 1,575,000,000  -    1,575,000,000 

Preliminary expenses written off during the year 16  -    (104,647,422)  -    -     (104,647,422)  -    (104,647,422)

Balance at 30 June 2017  1,375,000,000  1,095,352,578  33,726,169  898,499,945  3,402,578,692  -    3,402,578,692 

Total comprehensive income for the year ended 30 June 2018
Profit for the year  -    -     -     154,911,054  154,911,054   6,645,726   161,556,780 
Other comprehensive income  -    -     (20,485,791) (10,297,093)  (30,782,884)   -     (30,782,884)

 -     (20,485,791)   144,613,961  124,128,170 6,645,726   130,773,896 
Transactions with owners of the Company
Contributions and distributions

Final dividend at the rate of 10% (i.e. Re. 1 per share) for the 
  year ended 30 June 2017  -    -    -    (137,500,000)   (137,500,000)  -    (137,500,000)

Issue of bonus shares at the rate of 10% (i.e. 10 shares for every 
  100 shares held)  137,500,000  -    -    (137,500,000)   -    -    -   

 137,500,000  -    -    (275,000,000)   (137,500,000)  -    (137,500,000)

Changes in ownership interests

Acquisition by Non controlling interests 18  -    -    -     (71,168,936)   (71,168,936)   326,658,936   255,490,000 
 -    -    -     (71,168,936)   (71,168,936)   326,658,936   255,490,000 

Balance at 30 June 2018  1,512,500,000  1,095,352,578   13,240,378   696,944,970  3,318,037,926   333,304,662  3,651,342,588 

The annexed notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Director
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 
For the year ended 30 June 2018

Note 30 June 30 June
 2018  2017 

(Rupees)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation   245,093,638  377,731,505 

Adjustments for non-cash income and expenses:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 4.1   104,143,466  94,094,977 
Amortization of intangible assets 5   968,122  441,961 
Allowance for inventory obsolescence 7.1   3,265,920  1,623,406 
Finance costs 29   46,049,217  35,642,127 
Finance lease charges 29   1,041,475  2,090,311 
Provision for gratuity 21.2.3   1,718,497  1,588,046 
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 28   (25,447,982)  (24,300,942)
Share of profit in associate - net of tax 6.1.1   (2,679,323)  (13,029,143)
Capital loss / (gain) on sale of investments 27   16,485,608  (76,404)
Mark-up income on investments 28   (35,772,187)  (30,321,966)
Dividend income 28   (2,405,899)  (2,469,712)
Un-winding of mark-up on long term receivables 28   (3,514,240)  (1,105,361)
Mark-up income on loan to employees 28   (2,010,578)  (1,819,246)
Mark-up income from Participation Term Certificates 28   (12,655,665)  (12,454,200)
Unrealized (gain) / loss on re-measurement of investment classified as 
  'at fair value through profit or loss' - at initial recognition 13.1   7,534,489  (13,477,480)

  341,814,558  414,157,879 
Working capital changes

(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Stores and spares   9,160,911  15,443,381 
Stock-in-trade   (484,057,169)  (76,526,578)
Trade debts - net   (126,837,315)  (10,083,659)
Loans and advances   (63,008,736)  57,636,444 
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables   (56,510,119)  (11,669,794)

  (721,252,428)  (25,200,206)
Increase in current liabilities
Trade and other payables   49,791,988  158,206,805 
Cash generated from operations   (329,645,882)  547,164,478 

Mark-up paid   (26,083,282)  (51,381,946)
Gratuity paid   (18,936,654)  -   
Mark-up received from loan to employees   2,010,578  1,819,246 
Income taxes paid - net   (64,606,063)  (86,044,005)
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities   (437,261,303)  411,557,773 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for acquisition of property, plant and equipment   (1,197,814,087)  (289,649,376)
Payments for acquisition of intangible assets   (1,128,427)  (1,782,602)
Payments for acquisition of investments   (56,414,564)  (253,569,974)
Proceeds from disposal of investment   285,588,647  1,165,128 
Mark-up received on investments and bank deposits   35,772,187  30,321,966 
Mark-up received from Participation Term Certificates   12,655,665  12,454,200 
Dividend received   2,405,899  2,469,712 
Dividend received from associate   -    7,620,680 
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment   40,443,257  11,309,876 
Net cash used in investing activities   (878,491,423)  (479,660,390)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments against finance lease obligation   (22,851,639)  (24,848,224)
Consideration received from Non controlling interest 18   255,490,000  -   
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares   -    1,700,000,000 
Preliminary expenses 16   -    (104,647,422)
Dividend paid   (135,346,501)  (123,579,491)
Net cash generated from financing activities   97,291,860  1,446,924,863 

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents   (1,218,460,866)  1,378,822,246 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year   314,726,110  (1,064,096,136)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 33   (903,734,756)  314,726,110 

The annexed notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Director
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018
1. CORPORATE AND GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
1.1 Legal status and operations 
 
 The Group consists of Loads Limited (the Parent Company), Specialized Autoparts Industries (Private) Limited (SAIL), 

Multiple Autoparts Industries (Private) Limited (MAIL) ,Specialized Motorcycles (Private) Limited (SMPL) and Hi-Tech Alloy 
Wheels Limited (HAWL) (formerly Hi-Tech Autoparts (Private) Limited).

 
 Loads Limited (the Parent Company) is a public listed company, which was incorporated in Pakistan on 1 January 1979, as 

a private limited company under Companies Act, 1913 (Repealed with the enactment of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 
(repealed with the enactment of the Companies Act, 2017) on May 30, 2017).

 
 On 19 December 1993, the status of the Parent Company was converted from private limited company to public unlisted 

company. On 1 November 2016, the shares of the Parent Company were listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (PSX).
 
 The principal activity of the Parent Company is to manufacture and sale of radiators, exhaust systems and other components 

for automotive industry.
 
 The Parent Company’s registered office and plant is situated at Plot No. 23, Sector 19, Korangi Industrial Area, Karachi.
 
 There are four subsidiaries and one associate (Treet Corporation Limited) in the Group. The details are as follows:

Name of the Company Incorporation 
date

Effective Holding % Principle line of business
30 June 

2018
30 June  

2017
Subsidiaries
Specialized Autoparts Industries 2 June 2004 91% 100% Manufacture and sell components
  (Private) Limited (SAIL)   for the automotive industry.

Multiple Autoparts Industries 14 May 2004 92% 100% Manufacture and sell components
(Private) Limited (MAIL)   for the automotive industry.

Specialized Motorcycles 28 September 2004 100% 100% Acquire, deal in, purchase, import,
  (Private) Limited (SMPL)   sales, supply and export motorcy

  cles and auto parts. The operations
  have been ceased from 1 July 2015.

Hi-Tech Alloy Wheels Limited 13 January 2017 80% 100% It will manufacture alloy wheels of
  (HAWL) (formerly Hi-Tech   various specifications and sell
  Autoparts (Private) Limited)   them to local car assemblers. 

Associate
Treet Corporation Limited 22 January 1977 5.42% 5.46% Manufacture and sale of razors,

  razorblades and other trading
  activities

 Plants of SAIL and MAIL are situated at DSU-19 and DSU-38 respectively in Downstream Industrial Estate Pakistan 
Steel Mills Bin Qasim Town, Karachi. HAWL has acquired land for establishing industrial unit which is located at National 
Industrial Park, Bin Qasim, the Special Economic Zone declared by Government of Sindh.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018

1.2 Summary of significant events and transactions in the current reporting period
 
 The Group’s financial position and performance was particularly affected by the following events and transactions during 

the reporting period:

 - Bonus shares were issued at the rate of 10% (i.e. 10 shares for every 100 shares held) (Refer note 17.4).
  
 - Arranged short-term running finance facilities from different banks with the sanctioned limit of Rs. 1,640 million 

 (Refer note 22).
  
 - Capital expenditure incurred for the purchase of second hand plants for the manufacturing and painting of Alloy 

 wheels (refer to note 4.2.2);
  
 - Dilution of ownership in subsidiaries, by not subscribing to the right shares issued by subsidiaries.
  
 - Due to the first time application of financial reporting requirements under the Companies Act, 2017, including  

 disclosure and presentation requirements of the fourth schedule of the Companies Act, 2017, few additional  
 disclosures are included in the notes 1.1, 1.2, 4.1, 15.1.1, 17.5, 25.4, 26.2, 26.3, 30.6, 32 and 40.

1.3 The operations of the subsidiary company, SMPL have ceased and transferred to Parent Company from 1 July 2015. 
Accordingly, the financial statements of SMPL were not prepared on going concern basis. Therefore, all assets and liabilities 
of SMPL have been classified as current and assets are measured at lower of their carrying amounts and fair value less 
cost to sell.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
 
2.1 Statement of compliance
 
2.1.1 “These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as“ applicable 

in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprises of:

 - ”International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards” Board 
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

 - Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

  “Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards, the 
“provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

 
2.1.2 The Companies Act, 2017, was enacted on May 30, 2017 and is applicable with immediate effect. The Securities and 

Exchange Commission of Pakistan through press release and vide circular no. 23 of 2017 dated 4 October, 2017 has 
decided that all the companies whose financial year, including quarterly and other interim period, closes on or before June 
30, 2017, shall prepare their financial statements, including interim financial statements, in accordance with the provisions 
of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984. The new requirements of the Companies Act, 2017 shall be applicable to the 
companies having their financial year closure after December 31, 2017.

 
2.2 Basis of measurement
 
 These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
 investments classified as “investment at fair value through profit or loss” and “available for sale” which are stated at
 fair value and provision for staff gratuity which is stated at present value.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency 
  
 These consolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupee (Rs. / Rupees) which is the Group’s functional 

currency. Amounts presented in the financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest of Rs. / Rupees, unless 
otherwise stated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018

2.4 Key judgments and estimates 
  
 The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable 

in Pakistan, requires management to make estimates, assumptions and use judgments that affect the application of policies 
and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

 
 The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed 

to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about the carrying 
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates.

 
 The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 

recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision 
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

 
 In the process of applying the Group’s accounting polices, management has made the following accounting estimates and 

judgments which are significant to the consolidated financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material 
adjustment in future years are discussed below:

 - Property, plant and equipment (notes 3.2 and 4);
 - Intangible assets (notes 3.3 and 5);
 - Provision for impairment of stock-in-trade and stores and spares (notes 3.7, 3.8 and 7);
 - Taxation (notes 3.13,12 and 30);
 - Provision for impairment of financial and non-financial assets (note 3.6.5);
 - Employees’ benefits and compensated absences (notes 3.4 and 21);
 - Classification and valuation of financial instruments (note 3.6);
 - Contingencies (note 15); and
 - Investment in associate (note 6.1.2)

2.5 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet
   effective
  
 The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 

and the amendments and interpretations thereto will be effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2018:
  
 - Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions - amendments to IFRS 2 clarify the accounting 

for certain types of arrangements and are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The 
amendments cover three accounting areas (a) measurement of cash-settled share-based payments; (b) classification of 
share-based payments settled net of tax withholdings; and (c) accounting for a modification of a share-based payment 
from cash-settled to equity-settled. The new requirements could affect the classification and/or measurement of these 
arrangements and potentially the timing and amount of expense recognized for new and outstanding awards. The 
amendments are not likely to have an impact on Group’s financial statements.

  
 - Transfers of Investment Property [(Amendments to IAS 40 ‘Investment Property’ (effective for annual periods beginning 

on or after 1 January 2018)] clarifies that an entity shall transfer a property to, or from, investment property when, and 
only when there is a change in use. A change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of 
investment property and there is evidence of the change in use. In isolation, a change in management’s intentions for 
the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use. The amendments are not likely to have an impact 
on Company’s financial statements.

  
 - Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle [Amendments to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’] 

(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018) clarifies that a venture capital organization and other 
similar entities may elect to measure investments in associates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss, for 
each associate or joint venture separately at the time of initial recognition of investment. Furthermore, similar election is 
available to non-investment entity that has an interest in an associate or joint venture that is an investment entity, when 
applying the equity method, to retain the fair value measurement applied by that investment entity associate or joint 
venture to the investment entity associate’s or joint venture’s interests in subsidiaries. This election is made separately 
for each investment entity associate or joint venture. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on Company’s 
financial statements.
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 - IFRIC 22 ‘Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2018) clarifies which date should be used for translation when a foreign currency transaction involves 
payment or receipt in advance of the item it relates to. The related item is translated using the exchange rate on the 
date the advance foreign currency is received or paid and the prepayment or deferred income is recognized. The date 
of the transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, 
expense or income (or part of it) would remain the date on which receipt of payment from advance consideration was 
recognized. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the entity shall determine a date of the transaction 
for each payment or receipt of advance consideration. The application of interpretation is not likely to have an impact on 
Company’s financial statements.

  
 - IFRIC 23 ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 

2019) clarifies the accounting for income tax when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under IAS 12. The 
interpretation requires the uncertainty over tax treatment be reflected in the measurement of current and deferred tax. 
The application of interpretation is not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

  
 - IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2018). 

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognized. 
It replaces existing revenue recognition guidance, including IAS 18 ‘Revenue’, IAS 11 ‘Construction Contracts’ and 
IFRIC 13 ‘Customer Loyalty Programmes’. The Company is currently in the process of analyzing the potential impact of 
changes required in revenue recognition policies on adoption of the standard.

  
 - IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ and amendment – Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (effective for annual 

periods beginning on or after 1 July 2018 and 1 January 2019 respectively). IFRS 9 replaces the existing guidance in IAS 
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and 
measurement of financial instruments, a new expected credit loss model for calculating impairment on financial assets, 
and new general hedge accounting requirements. It also carries forward the guidance on recognition and derecognition 
of financial instruments from IAS 39. The Company is currently in the process of analyzing the potential impact of 
changes required in classification and measurement of financial instruments and the impact of expected loss model on 
adoption of the standard.

  
 - IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ (effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019). IFRS 16 replaces existing leasing 

guidance, including IAS 17 ‘Leases’, IFRIC 4 ‘Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease’, SIC-15 ‘Operating 
Leases- Incentives’ and SIC-27 ‘Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease’. IFRS 
16 introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognizes a right-of-use asset 
representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. 
There are recognition exemptions for short-term leases and leases of low-value items. Lessor accounting remains 
similar to the current standard i.e. lessors continue to classify leases as finance or operating leases. The Company is 
currently in the process of analyzing the potential impact of its lease arrangements that will result in recognition of right 
to use assets and liabilities on adoption of the standard.

  
 - Amendment to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’ - Long Term Interests in Associates and Joint 

Ventures (effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019). The amendment will affect companies that 
finance such entities with preference shares or with loans for which repayment is not expected in the foreseeable future 
(referred to as long-term interests or ‘LTI’). The amendment and accompanying example state that LTI are in the scope 
of both IFRS 9 and IAS 28 and explain the annual sequence in which both standards are to be applied. The amendments 
are not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

  
 - Amendments to IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’- Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (effective for annual periods 

beginning on or after 1 January 2019). The amendments clarify that on amendment, curtailment or settlement of a 
defined benefit plan, a company now uses updated actuarial assumptions to determine its current service cost and 
net interest for the period; and the effect of the asset ceiling is disregarded when calculating the gain or loss on any 
settlement of the plan and is dealt with separately in other comprehensive income. The application of amendments is not 
likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

  
  - Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015–2017 Cycle - the improvements address amendments to following 

approved accounting standards:
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  - IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangement - the amendment aims to clarify the accounting 
treatment when a company increases its interest in a joint operation that meets the definition of a business. A 
company remeasures its previously held interest in a joint operation when it obtains control of the business. A 
company does not remeasure its previously held interest in a joint operation when it obtains joint control of the 
business.

   
  - IAS 12 Income Taxes - the amendment clarifies that all income tax consequences of dividends (including payments 

on financial instruments classified as equity) are recognized consistently with the transaction that generates the 
distributable profits. 

   
  - IAS 23 Borrowing Costs - the amendment clarifies that a company treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing 

originally made to develop an asset when the asset is ready for its intended use or sale.
   
 The above amendments are effective from annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019 and are not likely to have 

an impact on Group’s financial statements.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
  
 The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. 

These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated.
 
3.1 Basis of consolidation
  
3.1.1 Subsidiaries
  
 Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, 

variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the 
entity. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date on which 
control commences until the date on which control ceases.

 
 The financial statements of the subsidiaries have been consolidated on a line-by-line basis and all intra-group balances and 

transactions have been eliminated.

3.1.2 Non-controlling interests (NCI)

 NCI are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition.
 
 Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions.

3.1.3 Loss of control

 When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, and any related 
NCI and other components of equity. Any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in the 
former subsidiary is measured at fair value when control is lost.

3.1.4 Interests in equity-accounted investees
 
 The Group’s interests in equity-accounted investees comprise interests in associates and a joint venture.

 Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control or joint control, over the financial 
and operating policies.

 Interests in associates are accounted for using the equity method. They are initially recognised at cost, which includes 
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share of the 
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of associates, until the date on which significant influence ceases.

 An impairment loss in respect of an equity-accounted investee is measured by comparing the recoverable amount of the 
investment with its carrying amount. An impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss, and is reversed if there has been a 
favorable change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
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3.1.5 Transactions eliminated on consolidation
 
 Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are 

eliminated. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with associates are eliminated against the investment to the extent 
of the Group’s interest in the investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to 
the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

3.2 Property, plant and equipment
  
 Recognition and measurement
 
 Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 

losses, if any. Land and capital work-in-progress are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any.
 
 If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as 

separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.
 
 Subsequent expenditure
 
 Subsequent expenditure incurred is capitalised only if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the 

expenditure will flow to the entity. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in 
profit or loss account as incurred.

 
 Depreciation
 
 Depreciation charge is based on the reducing balance method at the rates specified in note 4.1.
 
 Depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipment is charged from the month in which an item is acquired or 

capitalised while no depreciation is charged for the month in which the item is disposed off.
 
 Depreciation methods and depreciation rates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.
 
 Gains and losses on disposal
 
 Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the profit or loss account.
 
 Assets subject to finance lease
 
 Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as finance 

lease. Assets subject to finance lease are stated at amounts equal to the fair value at the inception of lease or, if lower, 
the present value of the minimum lease payments. The minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance 
charge and the outstanding liability. Assets acquired under finance leases are depreciated in accordance with the Group’s 
depreciation policy for property, plant and equipment. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss account. Finance charges 
under the lease agreements is allocated over the periods during lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of 
financial charge on the outstanding balance of principal liability of each year.

3.3 Intangible assets 
  
 Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group and have finite lives are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation 

and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
 
 Subsequent expenditure
 
 Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset 

to which it relates. Cost that are directly associated with identifiable software products and have probable economic benefit 
beyond one year are recognised as intangible assets. Cost associated with maintaining computer software products are 
recognised as an expense when incurred.
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 Amortisation
 
 Amortisation is calculated to charge the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values using the straight-line 

method over their estimated useful lives specified in note 5 and is recognised in profit or loss account.
 
 Amortisation on additions during the financial year is charged from the month in which the asset is put to use, whereas no 

amortisation is charged in the month in which the asset is disposed off. 
 
 Amortisation methods and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.
  
3.4 Staff retirement and other service benefits

 Defined benefit scheme - Gratuity
 
 The Group operates funded gratuity schemes separately for its management and non-management staff. Both the schemes 

cover all the employees with a qualifying service period of ten years. 
 
 The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately by estimating the amount of future 

benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value 
of any plan assets.

 
 The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit 

method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Parent Company, the recognised asset is limited to 
the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future 
contributions to the plan. To calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable 
minimum funding requirements.

 
 Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets 

(excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised immediately in Other 
Comprehensive Income. The Group determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) 
for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual 
period to the then net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability 
(asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related 
to defined benefit plans are recognised in profit or loss.

 
 Compensated absences
 
 The Group recognises the liability for compensated absences in respect of employees in the period in which they are 

earned up to the reporting date.
 
 Defined Contribution plan - Provident Fund
 
 All permanent employees are covered under a recognized fund scheme. Equal monthly contributions are made by the 

Group and the employees to the Fund at the rate of 10% of basic salary for executive employees and 10% of basic salary 
plus cost of living allowance for non-executive employees.

  
3.5 Trade and other payables
  
 Trade payable and other liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if any, and subsequently 

measured at amortised cost.
  
3.6 Financial instruments
 
 The Group classifies its financial assets into financial assets at ‘fair value through profit or loss’, available for sale’, ‘held-to-

maturity’ and ‘loans and receivables’.
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 The Group classifies its financial liabilities into the other financial liabilities category.

3.6.1 Financial assets and financial liabilities - recognition and derecognition

 The Group initially recognises loans and receivables on the date when they are originated. All other financial assets and 
financial liabilities are initially recognised on the trade date when the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions 
of the instrument.

 
 The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers 

the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of 
ownership of the financial asset are transferred, or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards 
of ownership and does not retain control over the transferred asset. Any interest in such derecognised financial assets that 
is created or retained by the Group is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

 
 The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.

3.6.2 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet when, and only when 
there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or 
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

3.6.3 Financial assets - measurement

 a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
 
  A financial asset is classified as ‘at fair value through profit or loss’ if it is held-for-trading or is designated as such upon 

initial recognition. Financial assets are designated as ‘at fair value through profit or loss’ if the Group manages such 
investments and makes purchase and sale decisions based on their fair value in accordance with the Group’s documented 
risk management or investment strategy. Financial assets which are acquired principally for the purpose of generating 
profit from short term price fluctuation or are part of the portfolio in which there is recent actual pattern of short term profit 
taking are classified as held for trading or a derivative.

  
  Financial assets as ‘at fair value through profit or loss’ are measured at fair value, and changes therein are recognised 

in profit or loss account.
  
  All derivatives in a net receivable position (positive fair value), are reported as financial assets held for trading. All 

derivatives in a net payable position (negative fair value), are reported as financial liabilities held for trading.
  
 b) Available for sale
  
  These assets are initially measured at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial 

recognition, they are measured at fair value and changes therein, other than impairment losses, are recognised in other 
comprehensive income and accumulated in the unrealised gain on re-measurement of available for sale investments. 
When these assets are derecognised, the gain or loss accumulated in equity is reclassified to profit or loss.

  
 c) Held-to-maturity
  
  These assets are initially measured at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial 

recognition, they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
  
 d) Loans and receivables
  
  These assets are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial 

recognition, they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
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3.6.4 Financial liabilities - measurement
 
 All financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value less any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial 

recognition, these liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

3.6.5 Impairment
 
 Financial assets (including receivables)
 
 Financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence that they areimpaired. 

A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the 
asset, and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated 
reliably. Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired may include default or delinquency by a debtor, indications 
that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy.

 
 All individually significant receivables are assessed for specific impairment. All individually significant receivables found not 

to be specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified. 
Receivables that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together receivables 
with similar risk characteristics.

 
 An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its 

carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest 
rate. Losses are recognised in profit and loss and reflected in an allowance account against receivables. Interest on the 
impaired asset continues to be recognised through the unwinding of the discount. When a subsequent event causes the 
amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through profit and loss account.

 
 Available-for-sale financial assets
 
 Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets are recognised by reclassifying the losses accumulated in the fair 

value reserve to profit or loss. The amount reclassified is the difference between the acquisition cost (net of any principal 
repayment and amortisation) and the current fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in profit or loss. 
If the fair value of an impaired available-for-sale debt security subsequently increases and the increase can be related 
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, then the impairment loss is reversed through 
profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in profit and loss for an investment in an equity instrument classified as 
available-for-sale are not reversed through profit and loss.

 
 A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the equity security below its cost is considered an indicator that the 

securities are impaired. Impairment loss on investment is recognised in the profit and loss whenever the acquisition cost of 
investment exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised on equity securities in the profit and loss are not 
reversed subsequently in the profit and loss.

 
 Non-financial assets
 
 The carrying amounts of non-financial assets other than deferred tax asset, are reviewed at each reporting date to 

determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount 
is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value 
less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a 
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. 
For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest 
group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other 
assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit, or CGU”). The Group’s corporate assets do not generate separate 
cash inflows. If there is an indication that a corporate asset may be impaired, then the recoverable amount is determined 
for the CGU to which the corporate asset belongs. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or 
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its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit and loss.
 
 Impairment loss recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has 

decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine 
the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed 
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been 
recognised.

3.7 Stores, spares and consumables
 
 These are measured at lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value except items in transit which are stated at 

invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon.
 
 Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs 

necessary to be incurred to make the sale.

3.8 Stock-in-trade
 
 Stock in trade is measured at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using weighted average cost 

formula and includes expenditure incurred in bringing / acquiring the inventories to their present location and condition.
 
 Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of 

completion and the costs necessary to be incurred to make the sale.

3.9 Trade debts, loans, advances, deposits and other receivables
 
 These are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost less provision for impairment, 

if any. A provision for impairment is established when there is an objective evidence that the Group will not be able to 
collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables. Loans, advances and other receivables considered 
irrecoverable are written off.

 
3.10 Cash and cash equivalents
 
 Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand and deposits held with banks. Short term borrowing facilities availed 

by the Group, which are repayable on demand form an integral part of the Group’s cash management and are included as 
part of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement.

 
3.11 Foreign currency translation
 
 Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistan Rupee (Rs. / Rupees) at the rates of exchange approximating 

those prevailing on the date of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistan 
Rupees (Rs. / Rupees) at the rates of exchange ruling on the balance sheet date. Exchange differences are included in the 
profit and loss account currently. Non-monetary items that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are 
not translated.

3.12 Revenue recognition 
  
 - Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue 

can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding 
discounts, rebates and government levies.

  
 - Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred 

to the customer.
  
 - Mark-up on bank deposit and debt securities are recognised on time apportioned basis using effective interest rate 

method.
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 - Gains / (losses) arising on sale of investments are included in the profit and loss account in the period in which they 
arise.

  
 - Unrealised gains / (losses) arising on revaluation of securities classified as ‘at fair value through profit or loss’ are 

included in profit and loss account in the period in which they arise. 
  
 - Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established. 

3.13 Taxation
 
 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in profit and loss account 

except to the extent that it relates to item recognized directly in other comprehensive income in which case it is
 recognized in other comprehensive income.
 
 Current
 
 Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the enacted or substantively enacted rates of taxation after 

taking into account available tax credits and rebates, if any. The charge for current tax includes adjustments to charge for 
prior years which arises from assessments / developments made during the year, if any.

 
 Deferred tax
 
 Deferred tax is recognised using balance sheet method, in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts 

of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred 
tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, 
using the enacted or substantively enacted rates of taxation.

 
 The Group recognises deferred tax asset to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits for the foreseeable future will be 

available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable 
that the related tax benefit will be realised.

 
3.14 Provisions
 
 A provision is recognized in the consolidated balance sheet when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation as a 

result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a 
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. The amount recognised as a provision reflects the best estimate 
of the expenditure to settle the present obligation at the reporting date.

 
3.15 Dividend distribution and appropriation to reserves
 
 Dividend distribution to the shareholders and appropriation to reserves is recognised in the period in which these are 

approved. The distribution of dividend is subject to the covenant as mentioned in note 22.
 
3.16 Segment accounting
 
 Segment reporting is based on the operating (business) segments of the Group. An operating segment is a component of 

the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and 
expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s other components.

 
 The Chief Executive Officer reviews the Group as a single entity, therefore there are no segments.
 
3.17 Earnings per share
 
 The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by 

dividing the profit after tax attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by the weighted average number of ordinary 
shares outstanding during the year.
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3.18 Share capital
 
 Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognised as a deduction from equity.

4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
30 June 30 June

Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)

Operating property, plant and equipment 4.1  782,741,778  672,497,844 
Capital work-in-progress 4.2  1,096,921,275  109,809,453 

 1,879,663,053  782,307,297 

4.1 Operating property, plant and equipment
30 June 2018

Cost Rate Accumulated depreciation Net book 
As at 01 Additions / Transfer from (Disposals) As at 30 As at 01 For the Transfer from (Disposals) As at 30 value as at

 July 2017 transfers leased assets June 2018  July 2017 year leased assets June 2018 30 June 2018
Owned ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------  (Rupees) --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------% ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------  (Rupees) --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Freehold land - 25,080,000 -    ( -  )                ( -  )                ( -  )              ( 25,080,000 )     - ( -  )                ( -  )                ( -  )              ( -  )                   ( -  )                     ( 25,080,000 )     
(note 4.1.1)

Leasehold land ( 19,703,315 )    ( -  )                ( -  )                ( -  )              ( 19,703,315 )     - ( -  )                ( -  )                ( -  )              ( -  )                   ( -  )                     ( 19,703,315 )     
(note 4.1.2)

Building on leasehold 
  land ( 217,463,451 )  ( 18,204,716 )  ( -  )                ( -  )              ( 235,668,167 )  (5) ( 69,835,099 )  ( 8,024,329)     ( -  )              ( -  )                   ( 77,859,428 )      ( 157,808,739 )   

Plant and machinery - 579,782,299 -  ( 141,151,152 ) ( -  )                ( -  )              ( 720,933,451 )  10 - 20 ( 265,988,516 ) ( 40,021,091 )  ( -  )              ( -  )                   ( 306,009,607 )    ( 414,923,844 )   
(note 4.1.5)

Tools and equipment - 248,207,331 -  ( 38,954,328 )  ( -  )                ( (16,408,577) ( 270,753,082 )  10 - 35 ( 150,649,527 ) ( 39,216,031 )  ( -  )              ( (5,166,850)     ( 184,698,708 )    ( 86,054,374 )     

- 46,698,606 -    ( 7,803,069)    ( -  )                ( -  )              ( 54,501,675 )     10 - 30 ( 28,684,453 )  ( 4,800,816)     ( -  )              ( -  )                   ( 33,485,269 )      ( 21,016,406 )     

Vehicles - 16,274,797 -    ( 4,589,000)    ( 16,404,350 )  ( (8,093,691) ( 29,174,456 )     (20) ( 11,087,826 )  ( 1,473,347)     ( (5,581,202) ( (4,340,143)     ( 2,639,828)         ( 26,534,628 )     

Leased

Vehicles - 77,807,915 -    ( 18,680,410 )  ( (16,404,350) ( -  )              ( 80,083,975 )     (20) ( 32,274,449 )  ( 10,607,852 )  ( 5,581,202)  ( -  )                   ( 48,463,503 )      ( 31,620,472 )     
( 1,231,017,714 ) ( 229,382,675 ) ( -  )                ( (24,502,268) ( 1,435,898,121 ) ( 558,519,870 ) ( 104,143,466 ) ( -  )              ( (9,506,993)     ( 653,156,343 )    ( 782,741,778 )   

30 June 2017
Cost Rate Accumulated depreciation Net book 

As at 01 Additions / Transfer from (Disposals) As at 30 As at 01 For the Transfer from (Disposal) As at 30 value as at
 July 2016 transfers leased assets June 2017  July 2016 year leased assets June 2017 30 June 2017

Owned ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------  (Rupees) --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------% ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------  (Rupees) --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Freehold land - 25,080,000-     ( -  )                ( -  )                ( -  )               ( 25,080,000)     - ( -  )                 ( -  )                 ( -  )              ( -  )                   ( -  )                     ( 25,080,000)      
(note 4.1.1)

Leasehold land ( 19,703,315)     ( -  )                ( -  )                ( -  )               ( 19,703,315)     - ( -  )                 ( -  )                 ( -  )              ( -  )                   ( -  )                     ( 19,703,315)      
(note 4.1.2)

Building on leasehold 
  land ( 178,615,386)   ( 38,848,065)  ( -  )                ( -  )               ( 217,463,451)   (5) ( 63,350,262)   ( 6,484,837)     ( -  )              ( -  )                   ( 69,835,099)       ( 147,628,352)    

Plant and machinery - 470,904,398-  ( 109,927,901) ( (1,050,000)  ( 579,782,299)   10 - 20 ( 236,417,517) ( 30,386,650)   ( -  )              ( (815,651)          ( 265,988,516)     ( 313,793,783)    
(note 4.1.5)

Tools and equipment - 197,906,556-  ( 102,039,175) ( -  )                ( (51,738,400) ( 248,207,331)   10 - 35 ( 115,794,385) ( 41,463,551)   ( -  )              ( (6,608,409)      ( 150,649,527)     ( 97,557,804)      

- 42,650,825-     ( 4,047,781)     ( -  )                ( -  )               ( 46,698,606)     10 - 30 ( 24,167,937)   ( 4,516,516)     ( -  )              ( -  )                   ( 28,684,453)       ( 18,014,153)      

Vehicles - 17,463,139-     ( 619,658)        ( -  )                ( (1,808,000)  ( 16,274,797)     (20) ( 10,918,732)   ( 1,208,084)     ( -  )              ( (1,038,990)      ( 11,087,826)       ( 5,186,971)        

Leased

Vehicles - 67,702,667-     ( 10,105,248)  ( -  )                ( -  )               ( 77,807,915)     (20) ( 22,239,110)   ( 10,035,339)   ( -  )              ( -  )                   ( 32,274,449)       ( 45,533,466)      
( 1,020,026,286) ( 265,587,828) ( -  )                ( (54,596,400) ( 1,231,017,714) ( 472,887,943) ( 94,094,977)   ( -  )              ( (8,463,050)      ( 558,519,870)     ( 672,497,844)    

4.1.1 Freehold land represents a plot in Lahore measuring 23 Kanals 18 Marlas and held by the Parent Company for the 
expansion of business in future. Currently, this plot of land is not being used. 

4.1.2 This represents land owned by the Parent Company and the subsidiaries (SAIL and MAIL). The total area of land owned 
by the Loads Limited, SAIL and MAIL is 8,888.88 square yards, 20,400 sq. meters (5 acres) and 56,880 square meters 
respectively. The details of the location are disclosed in note 1.1.
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4.1.3 Finance lease liability in respect of assets held under finance lease is secured by 20% of lease facility amount as down 
payment / security deposit. Vehicles are registered in the name of the lessor (Bank Al Habib Limited) (note 19).

4.1.4 Freehold land and buildings are subject to a first equitable mortgage against the running finance facility of Rs. 300 million 
(30 June 2017: 300 million) obtained from JS Bank Limited (note 22). This charge existed at 30 June 2018.

4.1.5 Plant and machinery are subject to ranking charge and first pari passu hypothecation charge of maximum Rs. 534 million 
and Rs. 100 million (30 June 2017: Rs. 534 million and Rs. 100 million) respectively. These charges are against different 
financing facilities obtained from various banks (note 22) and existed at 30 June 2018.

4.1.6 There are no fully depreciated assets at the reporting date as the Group is following reducing balance method.

4.1.7 Depreciation has been allocated as follows:
30 June 30 June

Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)

Cost of sales 25   95,900,659   86,324,886 
Administrative, selling and general expenses 26   8,242,807   7,770,091 

  104,143,466   94,094,977 

4.1.8 Details of property, plant and equipment disposed off

 Details of operating property, plant and equipment disposed off during the year are as follows:
30 June 2018

Asset Cost Accumulated Net book Sale Gain on Particulars of the purchaser Mode of Relationship with 

depreciation value proceeds disposal disposal the purchaser

Owned  -------------------------------------- (Rupees) --------------------------------------

Tools and equipment
Dies (refer note 9) (16,408,577)( 5,166,850)       (11,241,727) ( 35,765,768)  ( 24,524,041)  Pak Suzuki - Karachi Negotiation Customer

Vehicles
 Faw Truck  Ks-4353 (767,241)      ( 532,383)          (234,858)     ( 560,000)        ( 325,142)        M. Arif Negotiation Outsider Customer

 Mehran Vxr Atm-619 (514,000)      ( 415,010)          (98,990)       ( 307,000)        ( 208,010)        Muhammad Yasin - Karachi Negotiation Employee

 Mehran Vxr Ayc-357 (567,350)      ( 379,698)          (187,652)     ( 187,652)        ( -  )                Khalid Aziz Group Policy Employee

 Mehran Vxr Ayc-360 (567,350)      ( 379,698)          (187,652)     ( 187,652)        ( -  )                Javed Ansari Group Policy Employee

 Mehran Vxr Ayc-361 (567,350)      ( 379,698)          (187,652)     ( 187,652)        ( -  )                Shahid Ahmed Siddiqui Group Policy Employee

 Mehran Vxr Ayc-364 (567,350)      ( 379,698)          (187,652)     ( 187,652)        ( -  )                Khalil Farooqi Group Policy Employee

 Mehran Vxr Ayc-365 (567,350)      ( 379,698)          (187,652)     ( 187,652)        ( -  )                Muhammed Asif Group Policy Employee

 Mehran Vxr Ayc-368 (567,350)      ( 379,698)          (187,652)     ( 187,652)        ( -  )                Shehzad Qadri Group Policy Employee

 Mehran Vxr Ayc-369 (567,350)      ( 379,698)          (187,652)     ( 187,652)        ( -  )                Rafia Yousuf Group Policy Employee

 Swift Bdm-961 (1,466,000)  ( 620,281)          (845,719)     ( 1,213,000)     ( 367,281)        Javed Hashim Negotiation Outsider Customer

 Swift Bkm-576 (1,375,000)  ( 114,583)          (1,260,417)  ( 1,283,925)     ( 23,508)          IGI - Insurance Insurance claim Insurance Company

( 24,502,268 ) ( 9,506,993 )       ( 14,995,275 ) ( 40,443,257 )  ( 25,447,982 )  

4.2 Capital work-in-progress
30 June 30 June

Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)

Tools and equipment   21,795,297   29,626,370 
Building and construction work   3,117,963   1,281,545 
Advances against:
- plant 4.2.2   898,327,947   75,600,000 
- land 4.2.3   151,275,600   -   
- vehicle   4,916,150   -   
- building on leasehold land   17,488,318   1,651,116 
- other capital expenditure   -     1,650,422 

4.2.1   1,096,921,275   109,809,453 

4.2.1 Movement in capital work-in-progress is as follows:

Balance at beginning of the year   109,809,453   75,642,657 
Additions during the year   1,038,375,120   115,226,854 
Transferred to operating property, plant and equipment   (51,263,298)   (81,060,058)
Balance at end of the year   1,096,921,275   109,809,453 
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4.2.2 This includes advance of Rs. 485.236 million and Rs. 364.613 million in respect of a plant for manufacturing of alloy wheels 
and a plant for painting of alloy wheels, respectively, imported in the current year. Details are as follows: 

4.2.2.1 HAWL entered into an agreement on 11 December 2017 to purchase an old and used alloy wheels manufacturing plant 
along with available related spare parts, two aftermarket dies and manuals for operation and maintenance of equipment 
(“the Plant”) from Arrowcrest Group Pty Ltd trading as “ROH Automative” and Toyota Motor Corporation Australia Limited 
(jointly referred as “the Seller”) at a price of AUD 4.3125 million (excluding dismantling cost). The seller engaged Grays 
(Aust) Holdings Pty Ltd (“the Selling Agent”) for the sale of the plant. Based on the inspection carried out by the management 
of the HAWL on 29 August 2017 at ROH Automative’s site, the Plant was purchased on “As is, where is” and “as inspected” 
basis. Further, HAWL contracted with Samaras Structural Engineers for dismantling, packaging, loading and removal of 
the plant from ROH Automotive site and Seaway Logistics for forwarding and shipping the plant to Karachi Port, Pakistan. 
The terms of the agreement state that the title of the plant will transfer to HAWL after receipt of the purchase amount by the 
Selling Agent. 

 Following is the payment schedule as per the aforementioned agreement between the HAWL and the Seller:

Particulars Contingent upon Payable after Amount in AUD

Down payment - 30% of the total 
purchase amount

Letter of credit which will be opened 
on or before 5 days after the signing 
of the purchase agreement.

11 December
2017

  1,293,750

Second payment - 40% of the total 
purchase amount

Payable upon commencement of the 
dismantling of the plant from ROH 
Automotive site.

9 January 2018 1,725,000

Final payment - 30% of the total 
purchase amount

Payable before the last group of 
container will leave from ROH 
Automotive site.

Not applicable 1,293,750

Total 4,312,500 

 Subsequent to the year end, a proforma invoice was received dated 5 July 2018 amounting to AUD 5.588 million which in 
addition to the purchase price of the plant includes the dismantling cost and commission of the selling agent. The unpaid 
amount has been disclosed as commitments in note 15.2.4.

4.2.2.2 HAWL entered into an agreement on 2 March 2018 to purchase a new and unused painting plant having such specifications, 
make, model,  criteria, features and accessories in respect of alloy wheel manufacturing plant (“the Plant”) from Shinwoo 
Costec Ltd (the “Seller”) at a price of USD 10.5 million (excluding sea freight which will be borne equally by the HAWL and 
the Seller). HAWL along with the seller involved EBC Korea Co., Ltd (“the Selling Agent”) as an intermediary for payments 
and purchasing the Plant from the Seller and shipping it to the HAWL. The seller has agreed to provide the assembly, 
commissioning, testing and handover of complete plant, in fully operational condition covering end-to-end of alloy wheel 
manufacturing.
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 Following is the payment schedule as per the aforementioned agreement between the HAWL and the Seller:

Particulars Contingent upon Amount in USD

First payment Opening of letter of credit   3,150,000 

Second payment Sight payment upon shipment   5,250,000 
Third payment Upon successful commissioning through deferred payment   525,000 

Fourth payment
Retention money payable after one year of commissioning  
  through deferred payment

  375,000 

Fifth payment
After two years of successful commissioning through    
  deferred payment

  600,000 

Final payment After three years of successful commissioning through  
  deferred payment

  600,000 

Total   10,500,000 

 The unpaid amount has been disclosed as commitments in note 15.2.4.

4.2.3 This represents advance paid to “National Industrial Parks Development and Management Company” against purchase 
of 12 acres plot for HAWL at Bin Qasim Industrial Park (‘the Industrial Park’). The Industrial Park is included in the list of 
Special Economic Zones. As per the Special Economic Zones Act, 2012 the Group will be entitled to one time exemption 
from custom-duties and taxes on import of plant and machinery for installation in the zone subject to verification by the 
Board of Investment (BOI) and exemption from all taxes on income for ten years if Commercial Production (CP) commences 
by 30 June 2020 and five years tax exemption if CP commences after 30 June 2020. The total price of the plot is Rs. 216.108 
million. Possession of the allotted plot shall be handed over through a license agreement. The details of commitment in 
respect of guarantee is disclosed in note 15.2.1.

5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

 Cost Useful  Amortization Net book 
As at 1 Addition (Disposals) As at 30 life As at 1 For the (Disposals) As at 30 value as at

July 2017 June 2018 July 2017 year June 2018 30 June 2018
 ---------------------------------------------------------------------  (Rupees) ----------------------------------------------(Years) ---------------------------------------------------------------------  (Rupees) ------------------------------------------------------------------------

Computer software and
  licenses ( 16,400,337 ) ( 1,128,427) ( -  )          ( 17,528,764 ) 3 ( 14,311,702 ) ( 968,122)             ( -  )                    ( 15,279,824 )    ( 2,248,940)       

30 June 2017
 Cost Useful  Amortization Net book 

As at 1 Addition (Disposals) As at 30 life As at 1 For the (Disposals) As at 30 value as at
July 2016 June 2017 July 2016 year June 2017 30 June 2017

 ---------------------------------------------------------------------  (Rupees) ----------------------------------------------(Years) ---------------------------------------------------------------------  (Rupees) ------------------------------------------------------------------------
Computer software and
  licenses ( 14,617,735) ( 1,782,602) ( -  )          ( 16,400,337) 3 ( 13,869,741)  ( 441,961)             ( -  )                    ( 14,311,702)     ( 2,088,635)       

June 30 2018

5.1 The cost fully amortised intangible amounts to Rs. 12.185 million (30 June 2017: Rs. 12.185 million).
 
5.2 Computer software relate to the SAP business license.
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6. LONG TERM INVESTMENTS
30 June 30 June

Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)

Investment in associate - listed
Treet Corporation Limited 6.1   399,117,546   390,907,283 

Held to maturity
Investment in Pakistan Investment Bonds 6.2   -     248,118,146 

  399,117,546   639,025,429 

6.1 Interests in equity-accounted investees
 
 The following associate, over which the Parent Company has significant influence due to common directorship, is accounted 

for using equity method of accounting as defined in IAS-28 “Investment in Associates”.

30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2018 2017 2018 2017
(Number of shares) Quoted (Rupees)

Treet Corporation Limited
  8,613,233   7,748,885 (Chief Executive Officer - Syed Shahid Ali) 6.1.1 & 6.1.3   399,117,546   390,907,283 

 The above figures are based on un-audited condensed interim financial information of Treet Corporation Limited for the nine 
months period ended 31 March 2018 and audited financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2017.

6.1.1 Movement
30 June 30 June

Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)

Balance at beginning of the year   390,907,283   377,916,410 
Conversion from participation term certificate into ordinary shares 6.1.1.1   7,582,410   7,582,410 
Share of profit for the period - net   2,679,323   13,029,143 
Share of other comprehensive income for the period
  - re-measurement of defined benefit liability   (2,051,470)   -   
Less: dividend received during the year   -     (7,620,680)

  399,117,546   390,907,283 

5.42% 5.46%

6.1.1.1 In the current year, 128,205 shares (30 June 2017: 128,205) amounting to Rs. 7.58 million (30 June 2017: Rs. 7.58 million 
were converted and issued to the Group at the rate of Rs. 59.14 per share, as per the prospectus of participation term 
certificate issued by Treet Corporation Limited (refer note 13.1.4).

6.1.2 Market value of investment in associate is as follows:
30 June 30 June

2018 2017
(Rupees)

Quoted 
Treet Corporation Limited   294,486,436   440,756,579 

 The recoverable amount of investment in associate was based on its value in use, determined by discounting the future 
cash flows to be generated from the continuing use. The carrying value was determined to be lower than its recoverable 
amount and therefore no impairment loss was recognized in these consolidated financial statements. The key assumptions 
used in the estimation of value in use includes discount rate of 12.5% and growth rate of 10%.
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6.1.3 This includes 8,344,644 shares (30 June 2017: 7,620,680 shares) having an aggregate market value of Rs. 285.303 million 
(30 June 2017: Rs. 433.464 million), which have been kept in broker’s sub-account which is in the name of the Parent 
Company. All other shares are kept in the Central Depository Company (CDC) account of the Parent Company.

6.1.4 Treet Corporation Limited is considered associate by virtue of common directorship i.e. (5 directors are common out of 8 
directors). The Group has direct share holding in associate of 5.38% (30 June 2017: 5.45%) and effective share holding 
(due to cross holding) of 5.42% (30 June 2017: 5.48%).

6.1.5 Summarised financial information based on the unaudited financial information of Treet Corporation Limited for the nine 
months period ended 31 March 2018 is as follows:

31 March 2018

Direct holding 5.38%

Effective holding 5.42%

(Rupees)

Non-current assets   13,411,870,000 
Current assets   6,114,314,000 
Non-Current liabilities   (2,085,586,000)
Current liabilities   (9,414,069,000)
Net assets (100%)   8,026,529,000 

Group share of net assets (5.38%)   435,037,872 
Eliminations   -   
Negative goodwill *   (35,920,326)
Carrying amount of interest in associate   399,117,546 

* Negative goodwill has not been recognized in the statement of profit or loss as the difference between the recoverable 
amount and the carrying amount of the investment is not significant (refer note 6.1.2).

Financial highlights of Treet Corporation Limited: 1 April 2017 to 30)  1 July 2017 to 31 Total *
June 2017 (three March 2018

months (nine months)

----------------- (Rupees) -----------------

Revenue   2,163,481,000   6,777,690,000   8,941,171,000 

Profit after tax (100%)   (10,921,000)   60,355,000   49,434,000 
Other comprehensive income (100%)   (37,850,000)   -     (37,850,000)
Total comprehensive income (100%)   (48,771,000)   60,355,000   11,584,000 

Profit after tax (5.38%)   (591,918)   3,271,241   2,679,323 
Other comprehensive income (5.38%)   (2,051,470)   -     (2,051,470)
Group's share of total comprehensive income (2,643,388)  3,271,241   627,853 

 * As the financial statements of associate are not available therefore, consistent with prior year, last available financial 
statements as at 31 March 2018 have been used.
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6.2 Investment in Pakistan Investment Bonds - held to maturity

 Face value  Amortized cost 
as at 30 June 

2018 
Issue date Rate Tenor Maturity  As at 1 July 

2017 
 Purchased 
during the 

year 

 Matured / sold 
during the 

year 

 As at 30 June 
2018 

 ----------------------------------------------- (Rupees) ----------------------------------------------- 

29 December 2016 7.75% 5 Years 29 December 2021 ( 100,000,000 )  ( -  )                    ( (100,000,000)  ( -  )                      ( -  )                      
21 April 2016 8.75% 10 Years 21 April 2026 ( 130,000,000 )  - 50,000,000 -      ( (180,000,000)  ( -  )                      ( -  )                      

( 230,000,000 )  - 50,000,000 -     ( (280,000,000)  ( -  )                      ( -  )                      

6.2.1 Details of PIBs sold during the year are as follows:

30 June 2018
Ζssue GDte 7enoU 0DtuUit\  'Dte oI sDOe &DUU\inJ vDOue 6DOe pUoceeGs (/oss) on sDOe

----------------------- (Rupees) -----------------------

29 'ecemEer 
2016

5 <ears  29 'ecemEer
2021 

29 0arch 
2018

( 106,990,644) ( 99,027,832)    ( (7,962,812)     

21 $pril 2016 10 <ears  21 $pril
2026 

 4 'ecemEer 
2017 

( 195,083,611) ( 186,560,815)  ( (8,522,796)     

( 302,074,255) ( 285,588,647)  ( (16,485,608)   

7. STOCK-IN-TRADE
30 June 30 June

Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)

Raw material and components 7.2 & 7.4  1,466,986,223   933,433,474 
Work-in-process  150,978,815   140,014,359 
Finished goods 7.3  49,683,031   110,143,067 

 1,667,648,069   1,183,590,900 
Allowance for inventory obsolescence 7.1   (4,889,326)   (1,623,406)

 1,662,758,743   1,181,967,494 

7.1 Allowance for inventory obsolescence

Opening balance   1,623,406   -   
Charge for the year  25   3,265,920   1,623,406 
Closing balance   4,889,326   1,623,406 

7.2 This includes raw material in transit and in possession of Group’s subsidiaries as at 30 June 2018 amounting to Rs. 314.159 
million (30 June 2017: Rs. 216.58 million) and Rs. 412 million (30 June 2017: Rs. 328 million) respectively.

7.3 This includes finished goods in possession of the subsidiaries as at 30 June 2018 amounting to Rs. 28 million (30 June 
2017: Rs. 36.12 million).

7.4 Raw material held with toll manufacturers as at 30 June 2018 amounted to Rs. 51 million (30 June 2017: Rs. 108 million).

7.5 Inventories are subject to ranking charge and first pari passu hypothecation charge of maximum Rs. 534 million and Rs. 
200 million (30 June 2017: Rs. 534 million and Rs. 234 million) respectively. These charges are against different financing 
facilities obtained from various banks (note 22).
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8. TRADE DEBTS - net
30 June 30 June

Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)

Unsecured
Considered good   350,809,641   223,972,326 
Considered doubtful   -     -   

8.1   350,809,641   223,972,326 

8.1 For ageing of trade debts, refer note 34.2.

9 LONG TERM LOANS AND RECEIVABLES

Long term portion of receivable against sale of assets 9.1   14,042,531   26,682,402 
Long term portion of loan to employees 10.2   4,215,065   703,880 

  18,257,596   27,386,282 

9.1 Opening balance   60,229,777   -   
Proceeds of assets sold to customer during the year 4.1.8   35,765,768   68,270,192 
Interest accrued during the year 9.1.2 & 28   3,514,240   1,105,361 
Less: Installments received during the year   (38,362,846)   (9,145,776)

9.1.1   61,146,939   60,229,777 

Less: Current portion   (47,104,408)   (33,547,375)
Long term portion of receivables   14,042,531   26,682,402 

9.1.1 This represents receivable against sale of assets to a customer. The amount will be recovered over a period of two years.
 
9.1.2 This represents discounting at the rate ranging from 6.8% to 7.5% (30 June 2017: 6.8%).

10. LOANS AND ADVANCES
30 June 30 June

Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)

Advance to suppliers 10.1   136,250,453   77,493,372 
Loans to employees - considered good and unsecured 10.2   4,845,964   4,453,714 
Loans to workers - considered good and unsecured 10.3   11,347,621   7,387,375 
Advance salary   2,978,425   3,079,266 

  155,422,463   92,413,727 

10.1 This includes advance amounting to Rs. 105.47 million (30 June 2017: Rs. 40.43 million) given to clearing agents for 
payment of clearing charges and other import related expenses to be incurred upon receipt of import consignment.

10.2 Loans to employees - considered good and unsecured

Loans to employees 10.2.1   9,061,029   5,157,594 
Less: Long term portion   (4,215,065)   (703,880)
Current portion of loans to employees   4,845,964   4,453,714 

10.2.1 This represents loans provided to executive staff having maturity of one to two years. These loans carry mark-up at the rate 
ranging from 7% to 10% (30 June 2017: 7% to 10%) per annum.
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10.3 This represents loans provided to workers for personal expenses having maturity of twelve months. These loans carry 
mark-up at the rate of 7% (30 June 2017: 10%) per annum.

11 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
30 June 30 June

Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)

Unclaimed input sales tax 11.1   201,948,797   165,682,070 
Trade and other deposits   13,677,763   13,985,675 
Prepayments - provident fund 11.2   8,701,174   5,524,464 
Prepayments   16,058,501   3,121,097 
Receivable from employees   270,128   -   
Accrued mark-up on saving account   2,073,717   -   
Other receivables   4,340,741   3,161,503 

  247,070,821   191,474,809 

11.1 This represents input sales tax not claimed due to restriction of input tax to be adjusted up to ninety percent of output tax 
as per section 8B of Sales Tax Act, 1990.

11.2 All investments in collective investment schemes, listed equity and listed debt securities out of provident fund have been 
made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the conditions specified thereunder.

12. TAXATION - net
30 June 30 June

Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)

Advance tax net of provision   165,957,057   175,784,003 

13. INVESTMENTS

At fair value through profit or loss - at initial recognition 13.1   42,030,085   54,688,529 
Available-for-sale 13.2   32,261,953   52,747,744 

  74,292,038   107,436,273 

13.1 At fair value through profit or loss - at initial recognition

Ordinary shares 13.1.1   872,703   1,146,573 
Participation term certificates 13.1.2   32,948,685   47,527,425 
Units of mutual funds 13.1.5   8,208,697   6,014,531 

  42,030,085   54,688,529 
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13.1.1 Ordinary shares - listed
30 June 30 June Name of investee company 30 June 2018 30 June 2017

2018 2017 Carrying value Market value Unrealised (loss)
 / gain

 Market value
 (Number of shares / Ordinary shares - Quoted 

-------------------------------------- (Rupees) --------------------------------------- certificates)

(
1)               ( 1)                 Agriautos Industries Limited ( 431 )                ( 295 )                  ( (136)                ( 431 )                  (
1)               ( 1)                 Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited * ( 644 )                ( 680 )                  ( 36 )                    ( 644 )                  (
1)               ( 1)                 Atlas Battery Limited ( 900 )                ( 410 )                  ( (490)                ( 900 )                  (
1)               ( 1)                 Atlas Honda Limited ( 604 )                ( 510 )                  ( (94)                  ( 604 )                  (
1)               ( 1)                 The General Tyre & Rubber

  Company of Pakistan Limited ( 304 )                ( 166 )                  ( (138)                ( 304 )                  (
1)               ( 1)                 Honda Atlas Cars (Pakistan) Limited ( 868 )                ( 316 )                  ( (552)                ( 868 )                  (
1)               ( 1)                 Thal Limited * ( 606 )                ( 478 )                  ( (128)                ( 606 )                  (

230 )          ( 230 )            Baluchistan Wheels Limited ( 34,270 )          ( 24,888 )            ( (9,382)             ( 34,270 )             (
315 )          ( 315 )            Ghandhara Nissan Limited ( 70,875 )          ( 56,596 )            ( (14,279)           ( 70,875 )             (
150 )          ( 150 )            Hino Pak Motors Limited ( 196,500 )        ( 121,157 )          ( (75,343)           ( 196,500 )          (
200 )          ( 200 )            Indus Motor Company Limited ( 358,800 )        ( 284,292 )          ( (74,508)           ( 358,800 )          (
272 )          ( 272 )            Millat Tractors Limited ( 373,848 )        ( 323,152 )          ( (50,696)           ( 373,848 )          (

63 )             ( 63 )               Oil  & Gas Development Company Limited ( 8,863 )             ( 9,804 )              ( 941 )                  ( 8,863 )               (
127 )          ( 127 )            Pak Suzuki Motor Company Limited ( 99,060 )

          

( 49,959 )            ( (49,101)           ( 99,060 )             
( 1,146,573 )     ( 872,703 )          ( (273,870)        ( 1,146,573)       

13.1.2 Participation term certificate (PTC) - listed

30 June 30 June NDPe oI investee coPpDn\ 30 June 2018 30 June 2017
2018 2017 2UGinDU\ sKDUes - 4uoteG &DUU\inJ vDOue 0DUNet vDOue 8nUeDOiseG Ooss  0arNet value

 (NuPEeU oI Note -------------------------------------- (Rupees) ---------------------------------------
 ceUtiIicDtes)

( 1,831,500) - 1,831,500- Treet &orporation /imited 
 13.1.3 ( 39,670,290)   ( 32,948,685)    ( (6,721,605)     � 47,527,425�     

 * All shares have a nominal value of Rs. 10 each, except for the shares of Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited and Thal Limited which 
have face value of Rs. 5 each. PTC of Treet Corporation Limited has a face value of Rs. 30 per certificate.

13.1.3 Movement in carrying value of PTC is as follows:
30 June 30 June

Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)

Opening balance   47,527,425   42,124,508 
Principal cash redemption 13.1.4   (274,725)   (274,725)
Principal conversion to ordinary shares 13.1.4   (7,582,410)   (7,582,410)

  39,670,290   34,267,373 
Unrealised (loss) / gain for the year   (6,721,605)   13,260,052 
Closing balance   32,948,685   47,527,425 

13.1.4 These are mandatorily convertible into ordinary shares of Treet Corporation Limited at the ratio of 2 PTCs into 1 ordinary 
share in a period of 7 years. Principal amount of PTC will be reduced through redemption (in cash and through share 
conversion). The principal redemption through cash is Re. 0.15 per PTC per annum from year 2013 to year 2019 and 
principal redemption through share conversion is 0.07 share per PTC per annum from year 2013 to year 2018 and 0.08 
share for the year 2019. During the year, principal redeemed in cash amounted to Rs. 0.27 million and principal redeemed 
through share conversion amounted to Rs. 7.58 million (also refer note 6.1.1).
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13.1.5 Units of mutual funds

30 June 2018
NDPe oI )unG $s Dt 01 JuO\ 

2017
3uUcKDses 

GuUinJ tKe \eDU
6DOes GuUinJ 

tKe \eDU
 $s Dt 30 June 

2018 
&DUU\inJ 

vDOue Ds Dt 
30 June 2018

0DUNet 9DOue 
Ds Dt 30 June 

2018

8nUeDOiseG  
(Ooss) � JDin  Ds 
Dt 30 June 2018

----------------------------- NuPEeU oI units ----------------------------- ----------------- (Rupees) -----------------

N$F$ 5iEa Free 6avinJs Fund ( 14,109)           ( -  )                    ( -  )                    ( 14,109)        ( 143,745)      ( 151,272)        ( 7,527)              
N$F$ Ζslamic $ctive $llocation 3lan Ζ9 ( 16,180)           ( 22)                     ( -  )                    ( 16,202)        ( 1,762,177)  ( 1,585,482)     ( (176,695)        
N$F$ Ζslamic $ctive $llocation 3lan 9Ζ ( 43,571)           ( -  )                    ( -  )                    ( 43,571)        ( 4,115,490)  ( 3,793,484)     ( (322,006)        
N$F$ Ζslamic &apital 3reservation 3lan-ΖΖ ( -  )                  ( 26,640)             ( -  )                    ( 26,640)        ( 2,726,299)  ( 2,678,459)     ( (47,840)           

( 8,747,711)  ( 8,208,697)     ( (539,014)        

30 June 2017
Name of Fund $s at 01 July 

2016
3urchases 

durinJ the year
6ales durinJ the 

year
 $s at 30 June 

2017 
&arryinJ value 
as at 30 June 

2017

0arNet 9alue 
as at 30 June 

2017

8nrealised  
�loss� � Jain  as 
at 30 June 2017

----------------------------- NumEer of units ----------------------------- ----------------- �5upees� -----------------

N$F$ Ζslamic $sset $llocation Fund � 108,542�          � -ɉɉ�                    � �108,542�          � -ɉɉ�               � -ɉɉ�               � -ɉɉ�                  - -ɉɉ-                   
N$F$ 5iEa Free 6avinJs Fund � -ɉɉ�                  � 14,109�              � -ɉɉ�                    � 14,109�        � 144,567�      � 143,745�         � �822�                 
N$F$ Ζslamic $ctive $llocation 3lan Ζ9 � -ɉɉ�                  � 16,180�              � -ɉɉ�                    � 16,180�        � 1,676,010�   � 1,755,296�      � 79,286�             
N$F$ Ζslamic $ctive $llocation 3lan 9Ζ � -ɉɉ�                  � 43,571�              � -ɉɉ�                    � 43,571�        � 4,509,636�   � 4,115,490�      � �394,146�         

� 6,330,213�   � 6,014,531�      � �315,682�         

13.2 Available-for-sale

 The Group holds investment in ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each, in the following listed investee companies:

30 June 30 June 30 June 2018 30 June 2017
2018 2017 NDPe oI investee coPpDn\ &ost 0DUNet 

vDOue
8nUeDOiseG 

JDin
0arNet value

 (NuPEeU oI sKDUes) --------------------------------------(Rupees)---------------------------------------

2UGinDU\ sKDUes - 4uoteG 
- 235,386-   - 235,386-  Tri-3acN Films /imited ( 17,188,363) ( 32,247,882) ( 15,059,519)   � 52,726,464�     
- 152-           - 152-         =Ζ/ /imited ( 5,330)          ( 14,071)        ( 8,741)             � 21,280�             

( 17,193,693) ( 32,261,953) ( 15,068,260)   � 52,747,744�     

13.2.1 Unrealized (loss) / gain on re-measurement of available-for-sale investments
30 June 30 June

Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)

Market value of investments   32,261,953   52,747,744 
Less : Cost of investments   (17,193,693)   (17,193,693)

  15,068,260   35,554,051 
Less: Unrealized gain on re-measurement of available-for-sale
  investments at beginning of the year   (35,554,051)   (25,633,737)
Unrealized (loss) / gain on re-measurement of available-for-sale
  investments for the year   (20,485,791)   9,920,314 

13.2.2 The above investments include 182,000 shares of Tri-Pack Films Limited having an aggregate market value of Rs. 24.9 
million which have been pledged with financial institutions as securities against borrowing facilities.

13.2.3 Group’s capital reserves includes share of fair value reserve in associate amounting to Rs. 1.8 million.
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14. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
30 June 30 June

Note 2018 2017
 (Rupees) 

Term deposit receipts   -     282,855,000 

Cash in hand   1,452,576   836,308 

With banks
- in current accounts   31,138,280   17,022,400 
- in saving account 14.1   503,306,397   42,407,638 

  534,444,677   59,430,038 
  535,897,253   343,121,346 

14.1 This carries mark-up at the rate ranging from 4% to 5.42% (30 june 2017: 3.75%)
 
14.2 The Company has issued post dated cheques amounting to Rs. 126.26 million in respect of clearing charges for import of 

alloy wheel manufacturing plant (refer note 15.2.5).

15 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

15.1 Contingencies
 
15.1.1 Description of legal proceedings

Name of the court, 
agency or authority

Description of the factual basis of the proceeding and relief 
sought

Principal 
parties

Date 
instituted

Sindh
High
Court

Initially, as per the Gas Infrastructure and Development Cess Act, 
2011 (the Act), certain Companies as specified in the Act (including 
SSGC) shall collect and pay Gas Infrastructure and Development 
Cess (GID Cess). As per the second schedule of the Act, GID 
Cess of Rs. 13 per MMBTU was applicable to the Parent Company. 
Subsequently, through Finance Bill 2012 -2013, the rate of GID Cess 
increased to Rs. 50 per MMBTU. On 3 August 2012, Companies in 
the industry filed a suit on the ground that the rate of GID Cess has 
been enhanced without any lawful justification and authority. The 
Honourable High Court of Sindh vide its ad-interim order dated 6 
September 2012, restrained SSGC from charging GID Cess above 
Rs. 13 per MMBTU. On 31 December 2013, the Ministry of Petroleum 
and Natural Resources, Government of Pakistan increased the GID 
Cess applicable to Rs. 150 per MMBTU with immediate effect.On 
22 May 2015, the Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) Act, 
2015 was promulgated whereby cess rate of Rs. 100 per MMBTU 
and Rs. 200 per MMBTU were fixed for industrial and captive power 
consumers, respectively. The GIDC Act, 2015 was made applicable 
with immediate effect superseding the GIDC Act, 2011 and GIDC 
Ordinance, 2014. The Sui Southern Gas Company Limited (SSGC) 
has also not yet billed GID Cess amount pertaining to periods 
prior to the promulgation of GIDC Act, 2015. On 24 May 2015, an 
ad-interim stay order was obtained by Companies in the industry 
against the GIDC Act, 2015 from the High Court of Sindh. This stay 
order has restrained SSGCL from charging and / or recovering the 
cess under the GIDC Act, 2015 till the final decision on this matter. 
A committee has been formed by the Federal Government to review 
the anomalies of GIDC Act, 2015.

Parent
Company, 
MAIL, Sui

Northern ,Sui
Southern and

Others

3 August 2012
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Name of the court, 
agency or authority

Description of the factual basis of the proceeding and relief 
sought

Principal 
parties

Date 
instituted

In view of above stated facts and opinion of legal advisor, the 
management of the Group is confident of a favourable outcome. 
However, as an abundant caution, the full provision of Rs.5.03 
million (30 June 2017: Rs. 3.25 million) in the financial statements.

Federal Board
of Revenue

(FBR)

In respect of the Parent Company, Tax Year 2016 was selected 
for audit by the tax authorities and an Order was passed whereby 
refund of Rs 50.510 million was allowed. The Parent Company filed 
a Rectification application on 17 August 2017 against short refund 
determination of Rs. 7.62 million out of which refund of Rs. 7.47  
million was subsequently determined after verification. No further 
appeal has been made by the Parent Company. The said refunds of 
Rs. 50.510 million and Rs. 7.47 million have been adjusted against 
advance tax liability for Tax year 2018.

Parent
Company &

FBR

22 June 2017

Federal Board
of Revenue

(FBR)

In respect of Parent Company, Tax Year 2017 was selected for 
audit by the Tax authorities and a notice dated 28 March 2018 
was received which has been responded along with the provision 
of required details, documents and evidences. Proceedings in this 
regard have not yet been finalized and hence no provision has been 
recognized in these consolidated financial statements.

Parent 
Company

& FBR

6 March 2018

Federal Board
of Revenue

(FBR)

In respect of Tax Year 2017, a notice dated 31 January 2018 was 
issued to Parent Company by the Tax authorities for monitoring of 
withholding taxes which has been responded and requisitioned 
details, document, and evidences have been filed by the Parent 
Company. Proceeding in this regard have not have not yet been 
finalized.

Parent 
Company

& FBR

31 January 
2018

High
Court

A lawsuit has been filed against the Company by Pakistan Steel Mills 
Corporation (Private) Limited (PASMIC) claiming possession of the 
leasehold land of SAIL on the grounds that no objection certificate 
was not obtained from PASMIC when the Company purchased 
suit property in court auction. However, the Company’s lawyer is 
of the view that no condition about specific use was imposed upon 
the Company when it purchased the suit property in court auction. 
Further, the Company is manufacturing autoparts for the last eight 
years which is in the knowledge of PASMIC. Furthermore, the action 
of PASMIC is unjustifiable and also contrary to law as no show 
cause notice was given to the Company. The Honourable Court has 
restrained PASMIC from dispossessing the Company from the suit 
property. The Company based on lawyer’s advice is confident of a 
favourable outcome.

SAIL &
PASMIC

2 July 2007

FBR In respect of tax year 2017 and tax year 2016, a notice dated 8 
January 2018 and 19 January 2017, respectively, were issued for 
monitoring of withholding tax by tax authorities to SAIL. The requisite 
documents were furnished to the tax authorities but proceedings 
have not yet been finalized.

SAIL &
FBR

8 January 
2018
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Name of the court, 
agency or authority

Description of the factual basis of the proceeding and relief 
sought

Principal 
parties

Date 
instituted

FBR In the year 2017, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue 
(ACIR) issued notice dated 19 April 2017 to amend the assessment 
under section 122(5A) of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 by 
disallowing expenses on account of non-filing of evidences. MAIL 
filed the responses through their letter no. M-60/1301 dated 2 May 
2017. The proceedings have yet not been finalized by the ACIR. The 
management along with tax advisors are confident that outcome 
of the case will be in their favour, therefore no provision has been 
recognised in these consolidated financial statements.

MAIL &
FBR

19 April 2017

FBR SMPL received show cause notice under section 21(2) of the Sales 
Tax Act, 1990 from Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) for non-filing of 
sales tax returns for six consecutive months. The management replied 
for the aforesaid notice that it is in the process of changing sales tax 
status from manufacturer to distributor and has filed application for 
change in particulars / status several times but applications were 
rejected owing to delay in filing of requisite documents. Finally, the 
application filed on 10 March 2015 was acknowledged by FBR and 
forwarded for verification and subsequently no further order was
received from tax authorities. The management is confident that 
no liability will arise in respect of non-filing of sales tax return and 
therefore, no provision is recognized in these consolidated financial 
statements.

SMPL & FBR 20 March 2015

15.2 Commitments
 
15.2.1 Guarantees

30 June 30 June
Note 2018 2017

(Rupees)

Guarantees issued by banks on behalf of the Group   3,032,428   850,000 

Guarantee for plot 15.2.1.1   64,832,400   -   

15.2.1.1 This represents guarantee provided by M/s. East West Insurance Company Limited for the plot of land at Bin Qasim 
Industrial Park for which group is liable to pay within one year commencing from 11 April 2018 to 10 April 2019.

15.2.2 Letters of credit

Letters of credit issued by various banks on behalf of the Group in
  ordinary course of the business (outstanding at year end)   604,132,070   443,902,000 

Letters of credit issued by Habib Bank Limited on behalf of the Group
  in in relation to property, plant and equipment as mentioned in 15.2.4.   15,205,000   -   

15.2.3 The Group has issued post dated cheques to Total Parco as security deposits amounting to Rs. 4.34 million (30 June 2017: 
Rs. 3.74 million).
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15.2.4 Commitments in respect of capital expenditures of HAWL:

Property, plant and equipment 15.2.2 & 15.2.5 1,046,122,815   140,508,000 

Description Currency Original Revised Paid Outstanding
contract price contract price commitments

Alloy wheels manufacturing plant
(note 4.2.2.1) AUD 4,312,500   5,587,763 (5,457,941) 129,822 

Rupees 501,739,209 (490,082,167) 11,657,042 
equivalent 387,230,156 

Painting plant for alloy wheels
(note 4.2.2.2) USD 10,500,000 Not applicable   (3,150,000) 7,350,000 

Rupees
equivalent 1,275,720,600 Not applicable (382,716,180) 893,004,420 

Post dated cheques (note 14.2) Rupees Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable 126,256,353 

Letters of credit issued by Habib
Bank Limited (note 15.2.2) Rupees Notapplicable Not applicable Not applicable 15,205,000 

15.2.5 This includes various post dated cheques amounting to Rs. 126.26 million issued in respect of clearing charges for import 
of alloy wheel plant.

16 PRELIMINARY EXPENSES
 
 This represents expenses incurred for the purpose of listing, written off from share premium account in accordance with the
 section 83(2)(a) of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (Repealed with the enactment of the Companies Act, 2017 on May 30, 

2017). Breakup of preliminary expenses are as follows:
30 June 30 June

2018 2017
(Rupees)

Advisory and arrangement fee for IPO   -     65,829,951 
Brokerage commission   -     16,635,710 
Underwriting commission   -     7,381,250 
Advertisement and printing expense   -     9,266,369 
Regulatory charges   -     2,098,986 
Bank commission   -     2,886,115 
Other expenses   -     549,041 

  -     104,647,422 

17 SHARE CAPITAL

17.1 Authorised share capital

 Authorised share capital comprises of 200,000,000  (30 June 2017: 200,000,000) Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each.



Annual Report 2018

69
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018

17.2 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP CAPITAL

30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2018 2017 2018 2017
(Number of shares) Ordinary shares (Rupees)

  53,770,000   53,770,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid in cash   537,700,000   537,700,000 

  97,480,000   83,730,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each issued as fully paid 
bonus shares 

  974,800,000   837,300,000 

  151,250,000   137,500,000 1,512,500,000 1,375,000,000 

17.3 The break-up of share capital is as follows:

30 June 2018 30 June 2018
Number of % of Holding Number of % of Holding

shares

Syed Shahid Ali (Chairman)   62,819,872 41.53%   57,108,975 41.53%
Treet Corporation Limited (Associate)   18,895,057 12.49%   17,177,325 12.49%
Directors   4,454,475 2.95%   4,042,230 2.94%
Other shareholders   65,080,596 43.03%   59,171,470 43.03%

  151,250,000 100%   137,500,000 100%

17.4 Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding
30 June 30 June

2018 2017
(Rupees)

Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares at beginning of the year   137,500,000   75,000,000 
Issue of ordinary shares through IPO   -     50,000,000 
Issue of bonus shares at the rate of 10% (i.e. 10 shares for
every 100 shares held)   13,750,000   12,500,000 
Ordinary shares at end of the year   151,250,000   137,500,000 

17.5 Utlization of IPO proceeds
 
 On 31 August 2016, the Parent Company through its prospectus gave the financial plan for the utilization of IPO proceeds. 

The detail of project and proceeds utilization was disclosed in note 5.13.1 of the prospectus as under;

Financial plan (Rupees)

Expected IPO Proceeds against offering 50,000,000 ordinary
shares of Rs. 10 each at offer price of Rs. 15 each   750,000,000 

Utilization for:
-Expansion and Modernization   (550,000,000)
-Working capital   (200,000,000)

  -   
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 The strike price of the offered shares was determined through book building at Rs. 34 per share, hence a total of Rs. 1,700
 million was received by the Parent Company. Out of this amount, Rs. 1,150 million (200 million as per plan and Rs. 950 

million, the excess amount received) was used for improving  working capital and remaining Rs. 550 million was kept for 
expansion and modernization. Up till 30 June 2018, the Company had invested Rs. 527.43 million in capital assets for 
expansion and modernization as committed in prospectus and the remaining amount was invested in August 2018.

 Actual utilization
 Note (Rupees)

Actual IPO Proceeds against offering 50,000,000 ordinary
  shares of Rs. 10 each at strike price of Rs. 34 each   1,700,000,000 

Utilized up till 30 June 2018
-Expansion and Modernization   (527,436,543)
-Working capital  17.5.1   (1,150,000,000)

  (1,677,436,543)

Remaining (utilized subsequently)  17.5.2   22,563,457 

17.5.1 This includes investment in machinery amounting to Rs. 72.8 million which was incurred before realization of IPO proceeds 
as was also disclosed in the prospectus.

17.5.2 The remaining amount was utilized subsequently in the month of August 2018.

18. NON CONTROLLING INTERESTS (NCI)

18.1 The following table summarizes the information relating to the Group’s subsidiaries that have non-controlling interest (NCI).

SMPL SAIL MAIL HAWL Intra group 
eliminat ions

Total

NCI percentage 0% 9% 8% 20%

Non current assets -                      288,198,042 103,395,851 1,421,927,924 
Current assets 68,210,733         296,499,224 165,227,373 533,457,459    
Non-current liabilities -                      (17,827,547)  (8 ,180,981)    (36,339,781)     
Current liabilities (800,674)             (49,140,936)  (21,260,484)  (509,979,483)   
Net Assets 67,410,059         517,728,783 239,181,759 1,409,066,119 

Net assets attributable to NCI -                      46,595,590   19,134,541   281,813,224    (14,238,693)    333,304,662       

Revenue -                      355,145,466 165,332,389 -                   

Post acquisition profit / (loss) for the period 2,537,829           55,130,026   37,569,262   2 ,355,759        
Other comprehensive income (OCI) -                      -                -                -                   
Total comprehensive income 2,537,829           55,130,026   37,569,262   2 ,355,759        

Post acquisition profit / (loss) allocated to NCI -                      4 ,961,702     3 ,005,541     471,152           (1 ,792,669)      6 ,645,726           

OCI allocated to NCI -                      -                -                -                   -                      

Cash flows from operating activities (1,553,095)          30,330,681   24,216,702   (42,064,774)     
Cash flows from investment activities -                       (69,208,728) 
Cash flows from financing activities (dividends

to NCI: nil) 1 ,884,000           150,000,000 50,000,000   1 ,560,450,000 
Net increase (decrease)  in cash and cash

equivalents 330,905              2 ,215,054     5 ,007,974     392,233,307    

30 June 2018

---------------- (Percentage)  ----------------

  (178,115,627)   (1,126,151,919)
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18.2 Acquisition of NCI

 The detail of gain on sale of shares to NCI (classified in retained earning ) is as follows:
SAIL MAIL HAWL Total

NCI percentage 9% 8% 20%

-------------------------------- (Rupees) --------------------------------

Carrying amount of NCI acquired   41,633,888   16,129,000   268,896,048   326,658,936 
Consideration received from NCI *   255,490,000 
(Loss) / Gain on sale of shares to NCI**   (71,168,936)

 * This represents consideration received from pre-IPO shareholders in HAWL. Due to the fact that the pre-IPO Shareholders 
indirectly hold interest in SAIL and MAIL along with HAWL. The carrying value of NCI includes their respective net assets.

 ** In accordance with the requirement of  para B96 of IFRS 10 - Consolidated Financial Statements, the Group has 
recognized the aforementioned loss in equity as it attributes to the owners of the parent.

18.3 In the current year, HAWL offered 81 million ordinary shares through right issue (first right issue) to the existing shareholders 
in the proportion of their existing shareholding, at an exercise price of Rs. 10 per share (i.e. face value). Loads Limited 
subscribed to 61 million ordinary shares and empowered the Board of HAWL to offer the remaining 20 million ordinary 
shares to others as advised by the Board of HAWL. On 12 January 2018, the Board of HAWL passed a resolution and 
offered 15 million and 5 million shares to SAIL and MAIL respectively at the exercise price of Rs. 10 per share (face value). 
At the date of offer, HAWL was a wholly owned subsidiary of Loads Limited. SAIL and MAIL fully subscribed the offers and 
on 12 February 2018, the shares were issued to SAIL and MAIL. The return of allotment of HAWL was filed on 13 February 
2018.

 Moreover, In the month of February, HAWL offered further 25.545 million ordinary shares through another right issue 
(second right issue) to the existing shareholders in the proportion of their existing shareholding (as changed after the first 
right issue), at the exercise price of Rs. 10 per share (i.e. face value). The existing shareholders including Loads Limited, 
SAIL and MAIL renounced the offer on 5 March 2018 and empowered the Board of HAWL to offer the shares to others 
as advised by Board of HAWL. In March, the Board of HAWL passed a resolution and offered the shares to pre-IPO 
shareholders at the same exercise price of Rs. 10 per share (face value). At the date of offer, HAWL was effectively a wholly 
owned subsidiary of Loads Limited. The shares of HAWL were issued to the pre-IPO shareholders on 4 May 2018. The 
return of allotment was filed on 10 May 2018. As at 30 June 2018, the break-up value of HAWL was Rs. 10.71 per share 
(30 June 2017: Rs. 9.92 per share).

18.4 In the month of March,  SAIL passed a special resolution and offered 15 million ordinary shares through a right issue to the 
existing shareholders in the proportion of their shareholding, at an exercise price of Rs. 10 per share (i.e. face value). The 
existing shareholders (including Loads Limited) renounced the offer on 16 March 2018 and empowered the Board of SAIL 
to offer the shares to others as advised by the Board of SAIL. On 21 March 2018, the Board of SAIL passed a resolution 
and offered the shares to Hi-Tech Alloy Wheels Limited (HAWL) at the same exercise price of Rs. 10 per share (face value). 
At the date of offer, HAWL was a wholly owned subsidiary of Loads Limited. HAWL fully subscribed the offer and on 23 April 
2018, the shares were issued to HAWL. The return of allotment of SAIL was filed on 25 April 2018. As at 30 June 2018, the 
break-up value of SAIL was Rs. 15.93 per share (30 June 2017: Rs. 17.86 per share).

18.5 In the month of March, MAIL passed a special resolution and offered 5 million ordinary shares through a right issue to the 
existing shareholders in the proportion of their shareholding, at an exercise price of Rs.10 per share (i.e. face value). The 
existing shareholders (including Loads Limited) renounced the offer on 16 March 2018 and empowered the Board of MAIL 
to offer the shares to others as advised by the Board of MAIL. On 21 March 2018, the Board of MAIL passed a resolution 
and offered the shares to Hi-Tech Alloy Wheels Limited (HAWL) at the same exercise price of Rs. 10 per share (face value). 
At the date of offer, HAWL was a wholly owned subsidiary of Loads Limited. HAWL fully subscribed the offer and on 23 April 
2018, the shares were issued to HAWL. The return of allotment of MAIL was filed on 25 April 2018. As at 30 June 2018, the 
break-up value of MAIL was Rs. 19.14 per share (30 June 2017: Rs. 20.22 per share).
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19. LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT TO FINANCE LEASE

 The amount of future lease payments and the period in which these become due are as follows:
30 June 2018 30 June 2017

Minimum 
Lease

Payments

Finance
charges

 Principal  
 outstanding 

Minimum 
Lease

Payments

Finance
charges

 Principal  
outstanding

------------------------------------------  (Rupees) --------------------------------------------

Not later than one year  14,387,732  338,584 14,049,148 14,303,353 1,045,265 13,258,088 

Later than one year but not later than five years  5,041,382 27,178 5,014,204 9,361,906 426,888 8,935,018 
 19,429,114  365,762 19,063,352 23,665,259 1,472,153 22,193,106 

19.1 These represent finance leases entered into for vehicles. Monthly payments of leases carry pre-determined mark-up rates 
include finance charge at fixed rate of 9% (30 June 2017: 9%) and variable rates ranging from 6 months KIBOR plus 2% to 
5.5% per annum (30 June 2017: 6 months KIBOR plus 2% to 5.5% per annum) determined on semi-annual basis for future 
rentals. These leases are having maturities from September 2018 to February 2020 (30 June 2017: September 2017 to 
February 2020).

20 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

 The deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income tax in the same jurisdiction, and the law allows net 
settlement. Therefore, they have been offset in the statement of financial position as follows:

30 June 30 June
2018 2017

(Rupees)

Deferred tax liability   102,840,644   93,131,755 
Deferred tax asset   (11,515,587)   (7,542,616)

  91,325,057   85,589,139 

20.1 Deferred tax comprises of:

 Taxable temporary differences arising in respect of:

-  Accelerated tax depreciation   93,834,877   84,693,561 
-  Share of profit from associated company   9,005,767   8,438,194 

 Deductible temporary differences arising in respect of:

-  Finance lease arrangements   (641,889)   (980,390)
-  Allowance for inventory obsolescence   (1,417,905)   (487,022)
-  Provision against compensated absences   (3,216,125)   (3,203,467)
-  Remeasurement of defined benefit liability   (6,239,668)   (2,871,737)

  91,325,057   85,589,139 
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20.2 Analysis of change in deferred tax
30 June 2018 30 June 2017

%DODnce Dt 1 
JuO\ 2017

RecoJni]eG 
in pUoIit 
DnG Ooss

RecoJni]eG in 
otKeU 

coPpUeKensiv
e incoPe

%DODnce Dt 
30 June 2018

%alance at 1 
July 2016

5ecoJni]ed in 
profit and loss

5ecoJni]ed in 
other 

comprehensiv
e income

%alance at 30 
June 2017

----------------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees) -----------------------------------------------------------------------------
Taxable temporary differences

- $ccelerated tax depreciation ( 84,693,561) ( 9,141,316)  ( -  )                  ( 93,834,877) � 68,064,139� � 16,629,422�     � -ɉɉ�                 � 84,693,561�   
- Finance lease arranJements ( (980,390)    ( 338,501)     ( -  )                  ( (641,889)    � 5,461,712�  � �6,442,102�      � -ɉɉ�                 � �980,390�       
- 6hare of profit from associated company ( 8,438,194)  ( 567,573)     ( -  )                  ( 9,005,767)  � 6,765,930�  � 1,672,264�       � -ɉɉ�                 � 8,438,194�     

Deductible temporary differences

- $lloZance for inventory oEsolescence ( (487,022)    ( (930,883)    ( -  )                  ( (1,417,905) � �215,830�    � �271,192�         � -ɉɉ�                 � �487,022�       
- 3rovision aJainst compensated aEsences ( (3,203,467) ( (12,658)      ( -  )                  ( (3,216,125) � �2,426,623� � �776,844�         � -ɉɉ�                 � �3,203,467�    
- 3rovision for Ead deEts ( -  )              ( -  )              ( -  )                  ( -  )              � �125,738�    � 125,738�          � -ɉɉ�                 � -ɉɉ�                 
- 5emeasurement of defined Eenefit liaEility ( (2,871,737) ( -  )              ( (3,367,931)     ( (6,239,668) � �1,807,188� � -ɉɉ�                   � �1,064,549�    � �2,871,737�    

( 85,589,139) ( 9,103,849)  ( (3,367,931)     ( 91,325,057) � 75,716,402� � 10,937,286�     � �1,064,549�    � 85,589,139�   

20.3 A change in the corporation income tax rate ranging from 30 % to 29% per cent was enacted on 1 July 2018, effective from 
the same date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities on temporary differences are measured at 29%.

21 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - gratuity

 The actuarial valuation for staff gratuity has been carried out as at 30 June 2018 on the basis of projected unit credit method 
as per the requirements of approved accounting standard - International Accounting Standard 19, “Employee Benefits”. The 
assumptions used in actuarial valuation are as follows:

21.1 Actuarial assumptions
30 June 30 June

2018 2017

Financial assumptions
-  Discount rate used for year end obligation 9.00% 7.75%
-  Discount rate used for interest cost in profit and loss account 7.75% 7.25%
-  Expected rate of increase in salary level 8.00% 6.75%

Demographic assumptions
-  Mortality rate SLIC 2001 - 2005 SLIC 2001 - 2005

21.2 Amount recognised in the balance sheet 

30 June 2018 30 June 2017
Executives Non-  7otDO Executives Non-  Total 

Executives Executives
Note ------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees) -------------------------------------------------------

3resent value of defined Eenefit oEliJation �1.�.1 ( 25,538,353)  ( 13,550,296)  ( 39,088,649)  � 33,364,832�   � 12,930,821�   � 46,295,653�   
Fair value of plan assets �1.�.� ( (31,206,791) ( (13,199,066) ( (44,405,857) � �32,350,240�  � �13,658,018�  � �46,008,258�  
Net �asset�  � liaEility at end of the year ( (5,668,438)   ( 351,230)        ( (5,317,208)   � 1,014,592�     � �727,197�       � 287,395�        
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21.2.1 Movement in present value of defined
   benefit obligation

OpeninJ Ealance ( 33,364,832)  ( 12,930,821)  ( 46,295,653)  � 24,622,414�   � 11,763,057�   � 36,385,471�   
&urrent service cost ( 1,958,886)     ( 481,589)        ( 2,440,475)     � 1,540,551�     � 454,089�        � 1,994,640�     
Ζnterest cost ( 1,898,150)     ( 945,512)        ( 2,843,662)     � 1,769,979�     � 812,937�        � 2,582,916�     
%enefits paid Ey the plan ( (17,745,147) ( (1,461,341)   ( (19,206,488) � �417,830�       � �1,100,270�    � �1,518,100�    
5e-measurements loss � �Jain� on oEliJation ( 6,061,632)     ( 653,715)        ( 6,715,347)     � 5,849,718�     � 1,001,008�     � 6,850,726�     
&losinJ Ealance ( 25,538,353)  ( 13,550,296)  ( 39,088,649)  � 33,364,832�   � 12,930,821�   � 46,295,653�   

21.2.2 Movement in the fair value of plan assets

OpeninJ Ealance ( 32,350,240)  ( 13,658,018)  ( 46,008,258)  � 28,836,289�   � 12,398,328�   � 41,234,617�   
Ζnterest income ( 2,507,144)     ( 1,058,496)     ( 3,565,640)     � 2,090,631�     � 898,879�        � 2,989,510�     
&ontriEution paid � �received� into � �from� the plan ( 17,656,842)  ( 1,279,812)     ( 18,936,654)  � -ɉɉ�                 � -ɉɉ�                 � -ɉɉ�                 
%enefits paid Ey the plan ( (17,745,147) ( (1,461,341)   ( (19,206,488) � �417,830�       � �1,100,270�    � �1,518,100�    
5e-measurements �loss� � Jain on plan assets ( (3,562,288)   ( (1,335,919)   ( (4,898,207)   � 1,841,150�     � 1,461,081�     � 3,302,231�     
&losinJ Ealance ( 31,206,791)  ( 13,199,066)  ( 44,405,857)  � 32,350,240�   � 13,658,018�   � � 46,008,258�   

21.2.3 Amounts recognised in the profit and loss
   account

&urrent service cost ( 1,958,886)     ( 481,589)        ( 2,440,475)     � 1,540,551�     � 454,089�        � 1,994,640�     
Ζnterest cost ( 1,898,150)     ( 945,512)        ( 2,843,662)     � 1,769,979�     � 812,937�        � 2,582,916�     
Ζnterest income ( (2,507,144)   ( (1,058,496)   ( (3,565,640)   � �2,090,631�    � �898,879�       � �2,989,510�    
Expense for the year ( 1,349,892)     ( 368,605)        ( 1,718,497)     � 1,219,899�     � 368,147�        � 1,588,046�     

21.2.4 Amounts recognised in the other
   comprehensive income

5e-measurement loss � �Jain� on oEliJation �1.�.�.1 ( 6,061,632)     ( 653,715)        ( 6,715,347)     � 5,849,718�     � 1,001,008�     � 6,850,726�     
5e-measurement of fair value of plan assets �1.�.�.� ( 3,562,288)     ( 1,335,919)     ( 4,898,207)     � �1,841,150�    � �1,461,081�    � �3,302,231�    
5e-measurement loss � �Jain� for the year ( 9,623,920)     ( 1,989,634)     ( 11,613,554)  � 4,008,568�     � �460,073�       � 3,548,495�     

21.2.4.1 Re-measurement loss / (gain) on
   obligation

/oss � �Jain� due to chanJe in financial
assumptions ( 42,906)          ( 19,792)          ( 62,698)          � 15,628�          � 8,101�             � 23,729�          
/oss � �Jain� due to chanJe in experience
  adMustments ( 6,018,726)     ( 633,923)        ( 6,652,649)     � 5,834,090�     � 992,907�        � 6,826,997�     

( 6,061,632)     ( 653,715)        ( 6,715,347)     � 5,849,718�     � 1,001,008�     � 6,850,726�     

21.2.4.2 Re-measurement on plan assets - Net
   income / (expense) of plan assets over
     interest income

$ctual return on plan assets ( (1,055,144)   ( (277,423)      ( (1,332,567)   � 3,931,781�     � 2,359,960�     � 6,291,741�     
Ζnterest income on plan assets ( (2,507,144)   ( (1,058,496)   ( (3,565,640)   � �2,090,631�    � �898,879�       � �2,989,510�    

( (3,562,288)   ( (1,335,919)   ( (4,898,207)   � 1,841,150�     � 1,461,081�     � 3,302,231�     

21.2.5 Net recognized liability / (asset)

Net asset at EeJinninJ of the year ( 1,014,592)     ( (727,197)      ( 287,395)        � �4,213,875�    � �635,271�       � � �4,849,146�    
Expense recoJnised in profit and loss account ( 1,349,892)     ( 368,605)        ( 1,718,497)     � 1,219,899�     � 368,147�        � 1,588,046�     
&ontriEution paid into the plan ( (17,656,842) ( (1,279,812)   ( (18,936,654) � -ɉɉ�                 � -ɉɉ�                 � -ɉɉ�                 
5e-measurement losses recoJnised in other
comprehensive income ( 9,623,920)     ( 1,989,634)     ( 11,613,554)  � 4,008,568�     � �460,073�       � 3,548,495�     
Net �asset� � liaEility at end of the year ( (5,668,438)   ( 351,230)        ( (5,317,208)   � 1,014,592�     � �727,197�       � 287,395�        
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21.3 Plan assets comprise of the following

30 June 2018 30 June 2017
Executives Non- Executives Non-

Executives Executives
------------------------------------------------ (Rupees) ------------------------------------------------

Government securities ( 13,268,124)  ( 2,434,372)     � 16,822,125�   � 3,496,453�     
Term deposit receipts ( -  )                ( -  )                � 32,350�          � 13,658�          
Equity shares ( 11,222,524)  ( 7,909,212)     � 13,457,700�   � 8,891,370�     
Others ( 6,716,143)     ( 2,855,482)     � 2,038,065�     � 1,256,537�     
Fair value of plan assets at end of the year ( 31,206,791)  ( 13,199,066)  � 32,350,240�   � 13,658,018�   

21.4 Sensitivity analysis for actuarial assumptions

 The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is as follows:

30 June 2018 30 June 2017
(Rupees) �5upees�

Executives Non- Executives Non-
Executives Executives

'iscount rate �1� ( 23,901,272)      ( 12,766,112)    � 31,870,792�          � 12,129,017�    
'iscount rate -1� ( 27,398,193)      ( 14,406,606)    � 35,061,024�          � 13,811,730�    
6alary increase �1� ( 27,417,254)      ( 14,415,069)    � 35,078,280�          � 13,820,370�    
6alary increase -1� ( 23,855,577)      ( 12,744,249)    � 31,828,872�          � 12,106,595�    

21.5 Expected charge for the year ending 30 June 2019 is Rs. 781,496. 
  
21.6 Risks associated with defined benefit plans 
  
 a)  Investment risks
  
  The risk arises when the actual performance of the investments is lower than expectation and thus creating a shortfall  

 in the funding objectives.
  
 b)  Longevity risks
  
  The risk arises when the actual lifetime of retirees is longer than expectation. This risk is measured at the plan level   

over the entire retiree population.
  
 c)  Salary increase risk
  
  The most common type of retirement benefit is one where the benefit is linked with final salary. The risk arises when 

the actual increases are higher than expectation and impacts the liability accordingly.
  
 d)  Withdrawal risk
  
  The risk of actual withdrawals varying with the actuarial assumptions can impose a risk to the benefit obligation. The 

movement of the liability can go either way.
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21.7 Historical information 
30 June

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
---------------------------------------- (Rupees) ----------------------------------------

Present value of defined 
benefit obligation  36,385,471  33,537,730  31,474,360  27,152,096  -   
Fair value of plan assets  (41,234,617)  (39,879,652)  (43,360,672)  (38,001,696)  (11,748,034)

Net liability / (asset)  (4,849,146)  (6,341,922)  (11,886,312)  (10,849,600)  (11,748,034)

21.8 Gratuity for the year recognised in the profit and
   loss account has been allocated as follows:

30 June 30 June
Note 2018 2017

(Rupees)

Cost of sales 25  1,349,892  1,219,899 
Administrative and selling expenses 26  368,605  368,147 

 1,718,497  1,588,046 

22. SHORT TERM FINANCING
30 June 30 June

Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)

Secured
Running finances under mark-up arrangements 22.1  1,173,799,354  28,395,236 
Islamic financing 22.2  150,000,000  -   
Short term loan 22.3  115,832,655  -   

 1,439,632,009  28,395,236 

22.1 Running finances under mark-up arrangements
30 June 30 June

Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)

JS Bank Limited  299,924,500  21,916,042 
Soneri Bank  109,599,997  3,120,575 
Meezan Bank  167,025,496  1,972,841 
Bank AL Habib Limited  8,206,558  1,385,778 
MCB Bank Limited  174,745,807  -   
Habib Metropolitan Bank  140,860,238  -   
Askari Bank  193,445,813  -   
Habib Bank Limited  9,076,373  -   
Soneri Bank - Local Bill discount  70,914,572 

22.1.1  1,173,799,354  28,395,236 

22.1.1 These facilities have been obtained from various banks for working capital requirements and are secured by charge over 
current and future assets of the Parent Company, pledge of stock, lien over import documents and title of ownership of 
goods imported under letters of credit. These facilities are expiring on various dates latest by 31 March 2019. The banks 
have imposed a condition that no objection certificate (NOC) should be obtained or bank dues should be cleared before 
declaring any dividend.
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 These facilities carry mark-up at the rates ranging from 1 month KIBOR plus 0.5% to 6 month KIBOR plus 0.55% per 
annum (30 June 2017: 1 month KIBOR plus 0.5% to 6 month KIBOR plus 0.85% per annum).

 
 The aggregate available short term funded facilities amounted to Rs. 1,720 million (30 June 2017: Rs. 1,970 million) out of 

which Rs. 546.2 million (30 June 2017: 1,941.605 million) remained unavailed as at the reporting date.
 
22.2 This represents Islamic finance (Istisna) facility available from Al Baraka Bank and Meezan Bank having limits of Rs. 350 

million, for manufacturing of mufflers and exhaust system, spare parts, tools and equipment from local market and for 
working capital requirement. As at 30 June 2018, amount of Rs. 200 million (30 June 2017: Rs. 400 million) remained 
unutilised. This facility is secured by charge over current and future assets of the Parent Company. These facilities carry 
mark-up at 6 month KIBOR plus 1 % per annum (30 June 2017: 6 month KIBOR plus 1.25 %) and is repayable maximum 
within 120 days to 180 days of the disbursement date.

 
22.3 This represent short term loan facility availed from JS Bank having limit of Rs. 200 million, for working capital requirement of 

the Parent Company. This facility is secured by charge over current and future assets of the Parent Company. As at 30 June 
2018, amount of Rs. 84.17 million (30 June 2017: Nil) remained unutilised. This facility carry mark-up at 1 month KIBOR 
plus 1 % per annum (30 June 2017: Nil) and is repayable maximum within 60 days of the disbursement date.

 
22.4 Facilities available for opening letters of credit / guarantees at 30 June 2018 amounted to Rs. 2,257.95 million (30 June 

2017: Rs. 2,205.45 million) out of which Rs. 1,651.19 million (30 June 2017: Rs. 1,761.10 million) remained unutilized at the 
year end.

 
22.5 Unavailed facilities
 
 The Group has unutilized facility of Finance against Trust Receipt (FATR) facility from Habib Bank Limited and Habib 

Metropolitan Bank Limited having limit aggregating to Rs. 350 million, to facilitate retirement of import bills under LC sight 
opened through bank. This facility is secured by charge over current and future assets of the Group and TR form signed 
separately for each bill. This facility carries mark-up at 1 month KIBOR plus 0.75% to 3 month KIBOR plus 0.55% per annum 
(30 June 2017: 1 month KIBOR plus 1.5% per annum) and is repayable maximum within 90 days of the disbursement date.

 
 The Group also has an unutilized facility of forward cover from JS Bank Limited and Meezan Bank Limited, having limit 

aggregating to Rs. 66 million to hedge forex risk on import transactions carried in USD. The tenor of facility is of maximum 
12 months and the cover limit for JS Bank Limited is established at 10 times of the actual limit (Rs. 350 million).

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
30 June 30 June

Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)

Trade creditors  201,308,490  173,607,391 
Accrued liabilities 23.1  41,397,171  40,503,866 

Other liabilities
Advance from customer  38,325,272  13,188,422 
Mobilization advances 23.4  12,071,585  22,862,201 
Workers' profit participation fund 23.2  15,716,871  24,281,259 
Provision for compensated absences  11,090,085  10,678,222 
Workers' welfare fund 23.3  18,033,964  12,287,086 
Withholding tax payable  1,715,018  4,398,920 
Security deposit from contractors 23.5  262,000  262,000 
Sales tax payable  3,487,997  -   
Payable to provident fund  7,614,987  5,517,822 
Other payables 23.6   13,641,320  5,980,603 

  364,664,760  313,567,792 
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23.1 This includes provision of Rs. 5.03 million (30 June 2017: Rs. 3.056 million) in respect of Gas Infrastructure Development 
Cess (GID  Cess) charges. No payment has been made in the current and prior years, since stay order has been obtained 
against levy of GID Cess (refer note 15.1.1).

 
23.2 Workers’ profit participation fund

30 June 30 June
Note 2018 2017

(Rupees)

Opening balance  24,281,259  17,140,765 
Charge for the year 27  14,088,236  20,312,659 
Mark-up charged during the year 29  1,040,130  965,943 

 39,409,625  38,419,367 
Less: Payments during the year  (23,692,754)  (14,138,108)
Closing balance  15,716,871  24,281,259 

23.3 Workers’ welfare fund

Opening balance  12,287,086  9,499,132 
Charge for the year 27  5,746,878  8,219,375 
Less: Payments during the year  -    (5,431,421)
Closing balance  18,033,964  12,287,086 

23.4 This carries mark-up at the rate of 7.3% (30 June 2017: 7.3%).
 
23.5 This represents security deposit received from contractors against provision of services, kept in the Group’s bank account. 
 
23.6 This includes amounts deducted deducted from employees’ salaries against vehicles (used by employees) to be sold to the 

employees upon completion of respective useful lives of the vehicles.
 
24. REVENUE

30 June 30 June
Note 2018 2017

(Rupees)

Local sales 24.1  5,769,095,818  5,172,668,587 
Less: Sales returns  (48,189,108)  (18,670,578)

 5,720,906,710  5,153,998,009 

Less: Sales tax  (831,242,855)  (748,871,506)
 4,889,663,855  4,405,126,503 

24.1 This includes scrap sales amounting to Rs. 53.11 million (30 June 2017: Rs.  45.76 million).

25. COST OF SALES
30 June 30 June

Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)

Raw materials and components consumed 25.1  3,435,377,298  3,111,377,807 
Ancillary materials consumed 25.2  106,100,751  109,560,706 
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30 June 30 June
Note 2018 2017

(Rupees)
Manufacturing expenses
Salaries and wages  314,927,504  265,572,231 
Other employees' benefits 25.3  142,377,720  152,452,342 
Provident fund contribution  2,490,151  2,222,310 
Toll manufacturing  106,696,152  64,490,535 
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 4.1.7  95,900,659  86,324,886 
Gas, power and water  43,775,196  50,062,900 
Travelling and vehicle running cost  13,936,047  10,926,984 
Insurance  10,685,181  8,412,421 
Repairs and maintenance  24,137,400  19,880,316 
Postage, telephone and telex  2,257,794  2,673,991 
Allowance for inventory obsolescence 7.1  3,265,920  1,623,406 
Inward freight and storage charges  1,512,741  1,270,574 
Conveyance  19,239,986  18,226,567 
Rent, rates and taxes  2,115,376  2,371,217 
Printing, stationery and periodicals  72,054  331,025 
Royalty expense 25.4  7,987,135  1,557,933 
General expenses  1,913,512  2,239,305 
Security services  638,571  372,834 
Transferred to capital work-in-progress  (15,827,380)  (13,322,519)
Manufacturing cost  778,101,719  677,689,258 

Opening stock of work-in-process  140,014,359  142,503,010 
Closing stock of work-in-process 7  (150,978,815)  (140,014,359)

 (10,964,456)  2,488,651 
Cost of goods manufactured  4,308,615,312  3,901,116,422 

Opening stock of finished goods  110,143,067  66,570,963 
Closing stock of finished goods 7  (49,683,031)  (110,143,067)

 60,460,036  (43,572,104)
 4,369,075,348  3,857,544,318 

25.1 Raw material and components consumed

Opening inventory  933,433,474  897,990,349 
Purchases  3,968,930,047  3,146,820,932 

 4,902,363,521  4,044,811,281 

Closing inventory 7  (1,466,986,223)  (933,433,474)
 3,435,377,298  3,111,377,807 

25.2 Ancillary materials consumed

Opening inventory  54,094,440  69,537,821 
Purchases  113,979,197  108,669,042 

 168,073,637  178,206,863 
Ancillary materials capitalised  (17,039,357)  (14,551,717)

 151,034,280  163,655,146 
Closing inventory  (44,933,529)  (54,094,440)

 106,100,751  109,560,706 
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25.3 This includes a sum of Rs. 1.3 million (30 June 2017: Rs. 1.2 million) in respect of employee benefits - gratuity.

25.4 This represents royalty in respect of providing technical information and assistance for the manufacturing of exhaust system. 
Details are as follows:

30 June 30 June
Name of Recipient  Relationship with 

 the Group 
Registered Address 2018 2017

(Rupees)

Futaba Industrial Co. Limited  None other than  1, Ochaya, Hashime-Cho, Okazaki-City, 

 technical advisor  Aichi Prefecture, Japan 444-8558  7,987,135  1,557,933 

26. ADMINISTRATIVE, SELLING AND GENERAL EXPENSES
30 June 30 June

Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)

Salaries and wages  93,700,968  83,980,525 
Other employees' benefits 26.1  29,421,010  36,246,874 
Provident fund contribution  1,742,659  1,707,367 
Advertising and sales promotion  1,409,601  1,057,296 
Travelling and vehicle running cost  11,555,860  9,839,441 
Outward freight  19,024,859  17,830,361 
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 4.1.7  8,242,807  7,770,091 
Amortization of intangible assets 5  968,122  441,961 
Legal and professional charges  37,913,882  13,583,103 
Rent, rates and taxes  2,888,214  -   
Postage, telephone and telex  3,255,369  2,796,883 
Conveyance  1,618,152  353,740 
Auditors' remuneration 26.3  4,263,670  1,329,500 
Electricity  1,474,698  1,130,120 
Repairs and maintenance  699,426  343,049 
Entertainment  485,954  351,853 
Printing, stationery and periodicals  2,064,517  2,147,478 
Insurance  2,820,796  1,007,670 
Donation 26.2  70,000  20,000 
Laboratory testing  961,235  -   
Commission expense  927,737  -   
Security charges  61,600  -   
General expenses   1,453,694  3,328,633 

  227,024,830  185,265,945 

26.1 This includes a sum of Rs. 0.37 million (30 June 2017: Rs. 0.37 million) in respect of employee benefits - gratuity.
 
26.2 Donations of Rs. 20,000 and Rs. 50,000 were given to Fatimid Foundation and NED university for free medical treatment of 

needy patients and support to students respectively. None of the directors and their spouses have interest in donees.
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26.3 Auditors’ remuneration
30 June 30 June

2018 2017
(Rupees)

Audit services
Audit fee  1,199,500  950,000 
Interim review  220,000  200,000 
Fee for special audit / review for IPO  450,000  -   
Consultancy fee  1,000,000  -   
Out of pocket expense  226,170  -   

 3,095,670  1,150,000 
Non-audit services
Certifications for regulatory purposes *  1,100,000  75,000 
Out of pocket expense  68,000  104,500 

 4,263,670  1,329,500 
 * This represents fee for valuation services provided by the consultant.

27. OTHER EXPENSES
30 June 30 June

Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)

Workers' profit participation fund 23.2  14,088,236  20,312,659 
Workers' welfare fund 23.3  5,746,878  8,219,375 
Loss on sale of investment in Pakistan Investment Bonds 6.2.1  16,485,608  -   
Others  1,580  -   

 36,322,302  28,532,034 

28. OTHER  INCOME
30 June 30 June

Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)

Income from financial assets
Mark-up income from Participation Term Certificates  12,655,665  12,454,200 
Mark-up income on term deposit receipts  12,959,469  13,125,160 
Dividend income 28.1  2,405,899  2,469,712 
Mark-up income on Pakistan Investment Bonds  13,309,254  3,981,476 
Un-winding of mark-up on sale of dies 9.1  3,514,240  1,105,361 
Mark-up income on loan to employees  2,010,578  1,819,246 
Mark-up income on saving accounts  7,909,428  558,131 
Realised on gain on sale of investment  -    76,404 
Others  1,594,036  202,999 

 56,358,569  35,792,689 
Income from assets other than financial assets
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 4.1.8  25,447,982  24,300,942 
Recovery from debtors written off  -    889,500 
Others  1,862,071  2,208,920 

 27,310,053  27,399,362 
 83,668,622  63,192,051 



Loads Limited82
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018

28.1 This includes dividend received from Tri-Pack Films Limited amounting to Rs. 2.35 million (30 June 2017: Rs.2.35 million). 
The remaining amount being insignificant represents dividend received from Atlas Honda Limited, Indus Motor Company 
Limited, Agriauto Industries Limited, Baluchistan Wheels Limited, Atlas Battery Limited, Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited, Millat 
Tractors Limited, Oil and Gas Development Company Limited, Thal Limited, Pak Suzuki Motor Company Limited, The 
General Tyre and Rubber Company of Pakistan Limited, Hino Pak Motors Limited, Honda Atlas Cars (Pakistan) Limited and 
Ghandara Nissan Limited against investment as disclosed in note 13.

 
29. FINANCE COSTS

30 June 30 June
Note 2018 2017

(Rupees)

Mark-up on bank loans and borrowings  44,744,237  33,595,731 
Exchange loss  40,657,128  5,538,491 
Finance lease charges  1,041,475  2,090,311 
Mark-up on mobilization advance  1,304,980  2,046,396 
Commission and other charges  2,173,243  1,514,503 
Mark-up on workers' profit participation fund 23.2  1,040,130  965,943 

 90,961,193  45,751,375 

30. TAXATION
30 June 30 June

Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)

Current tax 30.3  82,605,401  67,498,133 
Prior tax 30.4  (8,172,392)  (7,131,213)
Deferred tax 20.2  9,103,849  10,937,286 

30.1  83,536,858  71,304,206 

30.1 Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit
Profit before taxation  245,093,638  377,731,505 

Tax at the applicable rate of 30% (2017: 31%)   73,528,091  117,096,767 
Effect of minimum tax   32,874,771  -   
Prior year charge   (8,172,392)  (7,131,213)
Tax effect of share of profit from asssociate   401,899  2,084,663 
Tax effect of change in tax rates   (2,948,696)  (2,442,465)
Tax effect of tax credits 30.5   (18,010,548)  (33,623,591)
Tax effect of permanent differences   5,863,733  (4,679,955)

  83,536,858  71,304,206 

30.2 The returns of income tax have been filed up to and including tax year 2017. Except for tax years mentioned in note 15, 
all other assessment years are deemed to be assessed under section 120 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Tax related 
contingencies are disclosed in note 15.

 
30.3 This includes income tax of the parent company calculated on the basis of minimum tax liability at the rate of 1.25% on 

turnover for the year less allowable tax credit on account of purchase of plant and machinery.
 
30.4 This represents income tax reversed in respect of prior tax years on account of difference between tax assessed and tax 

charge in the respective financial statements of the Group entities.
 
30.5 This represents tax credit at the rate of 10% of purchase of plant and machinery under section 65B of the Income Tax 

Ordinance, 2001.
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30.6 Sufficient provision has been made in these consolidated financial statements taking into account the profit or loss for 
the year and various admissible allowances and deductions under the Income tax Ordinance, 2001. Comparison of tax 
provision as per the separate financial statements of the parent company and the subsidiaries and related tax assessments 
including returns filed and deemed assessed for the last three years is as follows:

30 June
2017 2016 2015

------------------------------- (Rupees) -----------------------------

Loads Limited (Parent Company)
 Tax provision recognized in the financial statements of Parent Company   36,928,764   51,411,085   39,704,024 

 Tax charged as per tax assessments   32,197,456   42,305,356   40,360,975 

SAIL
 Tax provision recognized in the financial statements of SAIL   20,294,595   22,670,574   5,046,501 

 Tax charged as per tax assessments   19,451,492   12,799,024   12,288,062 

MAIL
 Tax provision recognized in the financial statements of MAIL   8,715,237   12,870,984   6,411,880 

 Tax charged as per tax assessments   8,440,616   12,856,906   7,165,204 

SMPL
 Tax provision recognized in the financial statements of SMPL   1,257,137   1,405,345   9,048,594 

 Tax charged as per tax assessments   1,231,863   1,643,184   7,824,673 

HAWL
 Tax provision recognized in the financial statements of HAWL   302,400   -     -   

 Tax charged as per tax assessments   3,689   -     -   

31. EARNINGS PER SHARE - basic and diluted
30 June 30 June

2018 2017
(Rupees)

Profit for the year Rupees   154,911,054   306,427,299 

 (Restated) 
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 
  outstanding during the year Number   151,250,000   132,851,370 

Earnings per share - basic and diluted Rupees   1.02   2.31 

31.1 Weighted average number of ordinary shares
 (Number)

Issued ordinary shares at beginning of the year  137,500,000  75,000,000 
Effect of ordinary shares issued during the year  -    34,794,521 
Effect of bonus shares issued in the prior year  -    10,979,452 
Effect of bonus shares issued during the year  13,750,000  12,077,397 
Weighted average number of ordinary shares at end of the year  151,250,000  132,851,370 
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32. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
 
32.1 Related parties comprise of associated company and other companies with common directorship and significant influence, 

employees retirement benefit funds and key management personnel. Transactions with related parties are at terms 
determined in accordance with the agreed rates. Transactions and balances with related parties, other than those disclosed 
elsewhere in these financial statements, are disclosed below:

Relationship and Transactions during 30 June 30 June

percentage the  year and 2018 2017

Name of the related party shareholding year end balances (Rupees)

Provident fund Defined benefit scheme Receivable from provident fund  8,701,174  5,524,464 

Employee benefits - gratuity Defined contribution plan  Expense for the year  1,718,497  5,517,723 

 Contribution paid during the year  18,936,654  -   

 Balance at the year end asset 

/ (liability)  5,317,208  (287,395)

Treet Corporation Limited Associated company by  Interest income  12,655,665  12,454,200 

virtue of common  Dividend income  -    7,620,680 

directorship

32.2 The remuneration to Board of Directors (executive and non-executive) and all members of the Group’s Management Team 
is disclosed in note 37 to these consolidated financial statements.

 
33. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

30 June 30 June
Note 2018 2017

(Rupees)

Cash and bank balances 14  535,897,253  343,121,346 
Short term financing 22  (1,439,632,009)  (28,395,236)

 (903,734,756)  314,726,110 

33.1 Reconciliation of movement of and equity liabilities to cash flows arising
    from financing activities

Equity Liabilities Total
Non controlling Short term Liabilities against Unclaimed 

Interests financing assets subject dividend
to finance lease

-----------------------------------------------------(Rupees)------------------------------------------------------

Balance as at 1 July 2017  -    28,395,236  22,193,106  1,420,509  52,008,851 

Changes from financing cash flows
Repayment of loans and borrowings   -     -     -     -     -   
Payment of finance lease liabilities   -     -     (22,851,639)   -     (22,851,639)
Dividend Paid   -     -     -     (135,346,501)   (135,346,501)
Cash received from Non controlling interest   255,490,000   -     -     -     255,490,000 
Total changes from financing cash flows   255,490,000   -     (22,851,639)   (135,346,501)   97,291,860 

Liability - related other changes
Change in short term financing - net   -     1,411,236,773   -     -     1,411,236,773 
Dividend announced during the year   -     -     -     137,500,000   137,500,000 
New finance leases   -     -     18,680,410   -     18,680,410 
Finance cost   -     -     1,041,475   -     1,041,475 
Trade payable   -     -     -     -     -   
Total liability - related other changes   -     1,411,236,773   19,721,885   137,500,000   1,568,458,658 

Total equity-related other changes 77,814,662   -     -     -   77,814,662

Balance as at 30 June 2018 333,304,662   1,439,632,009   19,063,352   3,574,008 1,795,574,031
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
 
 The Group has exposure to following risks from its use of financial instrument:
 -    Credit risk
 -    Liquidity risk
 -    Market risk
 -    Operational risk

34.1 Risk management framework
 
 The Board of Directors of the Group has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk 

management framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and monitoring the Group’s risk management 
policies.

 
34.2 Credit risk
 
 Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to 

incur a financial loss, without taking into account the fair value of any collateral. Credit risk arises from the inability of the 
issuers of the instruments, the relevant financial institutions or counter parties in case of placements or other arrangements 
to fulfil their obligations.

 
 Exposure to credit risk
 
 Credit risk of the Group arises principally from trade debts, loans and advance, deposits, bank balances and other 

receivables. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was as follows:
30 June 30 June

Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)

Trade debts - net (unsecured) 8  350,809,641  223,972,326 
Loans 10  20,408,650  72,774,746 
Deposits and other receivables 9 & 11  81,509,288  17,147,178 
Investments 13.1  41,157,382  53,541,956 
Bank balances and term deposit receipts 14  534,444,677  342,285,038 

 1,028,329,638  709,721,244 
 
 Credit rating and collaterals

 Balances with banks are only held with reputable banks having sound credit ratings. The credit quality of Group bank 
balances can be assessed with reference of external credit ratings as follows:

Bank Rating Agency Short term 30 June 2018
rating (Rupees) (%)

MCB Islamic Bank Limited PACRA A-1  344,704,720 64.5%
Meezan Bank Limited JCR-VIS A1+  146,744,778 27.5%
Habib Bank Limited JCR-VIS A1+  20,652,920 3.9%
Bank AL Habib Limited PACRA A1+  11,797,510 2.2%
National Bank of Pakistan JCR-VIS A1+  9,345,921 1.7%
Al Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited JCR-VIS A1  1,113,153 0.2%
Soneri Bank Limited PACRA A-1+  71,056 0.0%
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited PACRA A1+  13,777 0.0%
Askari Bank PACRA A1+  842 0.0%

 534,444,677 100%
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 Concentration of credit risk

 Concentration of credit risk arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities or have similar 
economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in 
economic, political or other conditions. Concentration of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Group’s performance 
to developments affecting a particular industry. All of the Group’s receivables are from distributors of automotive industries. 
Trade debts pertaining to four major customers of the Group aggregates to 84% as at 30 June 2018 (30 June 2017: 82%). 

 Impairment losses and past due balances

 The ageing of trade debtors at reporting date was as follows: 
30 June 2018 30 June 2017

Gross Impairment Net Gross Impairment Net

---------------------------------------------- (Rupees) ------------------------------- 

Less than or equal to 30 days  269,319,506  -    269,319,506  192,439,859  -    192,439,859 

More than 30 days but not more than 90 days  76,699,068  -    76,699,068  12,843,562  -    12,843,562 

More than 90 days but not more than 180 days  3,754,241  -    3,754,241  18,688,905  -    18,688,905 

More than 180 days  1,036,826  -    1,036,826  -    -    -   

 350,809,641  -    350,809,641  223,972,326  -    223,972,326 

 Based on the past experience, consideration of financial position, past track records and recoveries, the Group believes that 
trade debts past due do not require any impairment except as provided in these consolidated financial statements. No 
trade debts are outstanding with related parties.

34.3 Liquidity risk
 
 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they fall due. Liquidity 

risk arises because of the possibility that the Group could be required to pay its liabilities earlier than expected or difficulty in 
raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial liabilities as they fall due. The Group’s approach to managing 
liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both 
normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.

 
 Maturity analysis of financial liabilities 
 
 The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at 

the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash 
flows:
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30 June 2018
Carrying Contractual Less than One Three More than
amount cash flows one to three months to one year

month months one year
-----------------------------------------------------(Rupees)------------------------------------------------------

Non-derivative
financial liabilities 

Short term financing  1,439,632,009  (1,461,370,453)  (727,158,128)  (734,212,325)  -    -   

Trade and other payables  230,062,708  (230,062,708)  (185,844,876)  (44,088,832)  (129,000)  -   

Due to related parties 464,530,779 (466,566,926) (466,566,926) - - -
Liabilities against assets
subject to finance lease  19,063,352  (19,429,114) (1,198,978)  (2,397,955)  (10,790,799)  (5,041,382)

Accrued mark-up on
short term financing  19,248,522  (19,248,522)  (19,248,522)  -    -    -   

Unclaimed dividend  3,574,008  (3,574,008)  (3,574,008)  -    -    -   

 2,176,111,378  (2,200,251,731)  (1,403,591,438)  (780,699,112)  (10,919,799)  (5,041,382)

30 June 2017
Carrying Contractual Less than One Three More than
amount cash flows one to three months to one year

month months one year
-----------------------------------------------------(Rupees)------------------------------------------------------

Non-derivative
financial liabilities 

Short term financing  28,395,236  (28,824,004)  (14,342,434)  (14,481,570)  -    -   

Trade and other payables  231,032,082  (231,032,082)  (173,607,391)  (57,424,691)  -    -   

Liabilities against assets
subject to finance lease  22,193,106  (23,665,259)  (1,191,946)  (2,383,892)  (10,727,515)  (9,361,906)

Accrued mark-up on
short term financing  587,567  (587,567)  (587,567)  -    -    -   

Unclaimed dividend  1,420,509  (1,420,509)  (1,420,509)  -    -    -   

 283,628,500  (285,529,421)  (191,149,847)  (74,290,153)  (10,727,515)  (9,361,906)

34.4 Market risk
 
 Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest 

rates or the market price of securities due to a change in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument, change in market 
sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of securities and liquidity in the market. 

 
 Market risk comprises of three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk. The Group is exposed to 

all of the three risks which are as follows:
 
34.4.1 Currency risk 
 
 Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of financial asset or a liability will fluctuate due to a change in foreign 

exchange rates. It arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions entered into foreign currencies.
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 Exposure to currency risk
 
 The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the reporting date was as follows:

30 June 2018
Rupees USD SGD JPY

Creditors  89,010,987  627,849  45,555  7,079,451 
Net balance sheet exposure  89,010,987  627,849  45,555  7,079,451 

30 June 2017
Rupees USD SGD JPY

Creditors  128,508,982  827,140  32,535  41,813,310 
Net balance sheet exposure  128,508,982  827,140  32,535  41,813,310 

 The following significant exchange rates applied during the year:
Average rate Balance sheet date rate

30 June 2018 30 June 2017 30 June 2018 30 June 2017

USD to Pak Rupees 113.94 107.35  123.02  104.85 
SGD to Pak Rupees 81.84 78.40  87.49  76.19 
JPY to Pak Rupees 1.02 0.98  1.10  0.94 

 Sensitivity Analysis
 
 A 10 percent strengthening of the Rupee against USD, SGD and JPY at 30 June 2018 would have increased equity and 

profit and loss account by the amounts (net of tax) shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular 
interest rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis as for 2017.

30 June 2018 30 June 2017
As at 30 June 2018 Profit and loss Equity Profit and loss Equity

(Rupees) (Rupees)

Effect of change in USD  5,405,780  5,405,780  5,986,922  5,986,922 
Effect of change in SGD  279,024  279,024  171,062  171,062 
Effect of change in JPY  545,118  545,118  2,596,607  2,596,607 
Gross exposure  6,229,922  6,229,922  8,754,591  8,754,591 

 The Group does not have any foreign currency borrowing as at 30 June 2018.
 
34.4.2 Interest rate risk
 
 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 

in market interest rates. The interest rate exposure arises from bank balances in profit or loss sharing account.
 
 At balance sheet date, details of the interest rate profile of the Group’s interest bearing financial instruments were as 

follows:
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30 June 30 June
2018 2017

(Rupees)

Variable rate instruments
Financial assets  523,715,047  54,952,607 
Financial liabilities  (1,439,632,009)  (28,395,236)

 (915,916,962)  26,557,371 

Fixed rate instruments
Financial assets  61,146,939  390,612,202 
Financial liabilities  (19,063,352)  (22,193,106)

 42,083,587  368,419,096 

 Fair value sensitivity analysis of fixed rate instruments
 
 The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, 

change in interest rates at reporting date would not have impact on profit and loss account and equity of the Group.
 
 Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
 
 A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased / (decreased) equity and profit or 

loss by the amounts (net of tax) shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant. The analysis 
is performed on the same basis for June 2017.

Profit or loss  Equity 
100 bps 100 bps 100 bps 100 bps 
increase  decrease  increase decrease

(Rupees) (Rupees)

As at 30 June 2018
Cash flow sensitivity - 
  variable rate instruments  6,411,419  (6,411,419)  6,411,419  (6,411,419)

As at 30 June 2017

Cash flow sensitivity - 
  variable rate instruments  183,246  (183,246)  183,246  (183,246)

34.4.3 Other price risk
 
 Other price risk includes equity price risks which is the risk of changes in the fair value of equity securities as a result 

of changes in the levels of KSE 100 Index and the value of individual shares. The equity price risk exposure arises from 
investments in equity securities held by the Group for which prices in the future are uncertain. 

 
 As at 30 June 2018, the fair value of equity securities exposed to price risk are disclosed in note 13. The table below 

summarises the sensitivity of the price movements as at 30 June 2018. The analysis is based on the assumption that KSE-
100 index increased by 1% (30 June 2017: 1%) and decreased by 1% (30 June 2017: 1%), with all other variables held 
constant and that the fair value of the Group’s portfolio of equity securities moved according to their historical correlation 
with the index. This represents management’s best estimate of a reasonable possible shift in the KSE-100 index, having 
regard to the historical volatility of index of past three years (30 June 2017: three years).

 The impact below arises from the reasonable possible change in the fair value of listed equity securities:
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Effect on assets of an increase in the KSE-100 index on 30 June 30 June
investments classified as 'fair value through profit or loss' 2018 2017
and 'available-for-sale' (Rupees)

Effect on investments  742,920  1,014,217 
Effect on profit and loss account  420,301  486,740 
Effect on equity  322,620  527,477 

Effect on assets of an decrease in the KSE-100 index on
investments classified as 'fair value through profit or loss'
and 'available-for-sale'

Effect on investments  (742,920)  (1,014,217)
Effect on profit and loss account  (420,301) (486,740)
Effect on equity  (322,620)  (527,477)

 The sensitivity analysis is based on the assumption that the equity index had increased / decreased by 1% with all other 
variables held constant and all the Group’s equity instruments moved according to the historical correlation with the index. 
This represents management’s best estimate of a reasonable possible shift in the KSE 100 index, having regard to the 
historical volatility of the index. The composition of the Group’s investment portfolio and the correlation thereof to the 
KSE index, is expected to change over the time. Accordingly, the sensitivity analysis prepared as of 30 June 2018 is not 
necessarily indicative of the effect on the Group’s assets of future movements in the level of KSE 100 index.

 
34.5 Operational risk
 
 Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the processes, 

technology and infrastructure supporting the Group’s operations either internally within the Group or externally at the 
Company’s service providers, and from external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising 
from legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of investment management behavior. Operational 
risks arise from all of the Group’s activities.

 
 The Group’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance limiting of financial losses and damage to its reputation 

with achieving its objective of generating returns for stakeholders.
 
 Senior management ensures that the Group’s staff have adequate training and experience and fosters effective 

communication related to operational risk management.
 
35. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
 
 The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that 

it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital base 
to support the sustained development of its businesses.
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 The Group manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes adjustments to it in the light of 
changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of 
dividend paid to the shareholders or issue bonus / new shares. The Group also monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which 
is net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings including finance cost thereon. Capital signifies equity as shown in the 
balance sheet plus net debt. The gearing ratio of the Group is as follows:

30 June 30 June
2018 2017

(Rupees)

Debt  1,477,943,883  51,175,909 
Total equity  3,653,394,058  3,402,578,692 
Total capital  5,131,337,941  3,453,754,601 

Gearing ratio 29:71 2:98
  

36. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
 
 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in orderly transaction between 

market participants at the measurement date.
 
 The Group classifies fair value measurements of its investments using a hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs 

used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:
 
 Level 1:  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
 
 Level 2:  Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly 

or indirectly.
 
 Level 3:  Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market date (i.e., unobservable inputs).
 
36.1 Accounting classifications and fair values
 
 The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their 

levels in the fair value hierarchy for financial instruments measured at fair value. It does not include fair value information for 
financial assets not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.
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30 June 2018
Carrying amount Fair value

Note Fair value 
through 
profit or 

loss

Available 
for sale

Held to 
maturity

Loans and 
receivables

Other 
financial 

assets

Other 
financial 
liabilities

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

30 June 2018

Financial assets - measured at
fair value

Equity securities ( 9,081,400 )  ( 32,261,953 ) ( -  )              ( -  )                ( -  )                ( -  )                ( 41,343,353 )  ( 41,343,353 ) ( -  )              ( -  )              ( 41,343,353 )
Participation Term Certificates ( 32,948,685 ) ( -  )              ( -  )              ( -  )                ( -  )                ( -  )                ( 32,948,685 )  ( 32,948,685 ) ( -  )              ( -  )              ( 32,948,685 )

Financial assets - not
  measured at fair value

Associate - listed shares ( -  )              ( -  )              ( -  )              ( -  )                ( 399,117,546 ) ( -  )                ( 399,117,546 ) ( 294,486,436 ) ( -  )              ( -  )              ( 294,486,436 )
Trade debts 36.1.1 ( -  )              ( -  )              ( -  )              ( 350,809,641 ) ( -  )                ( -  )                ( 350,809,641 )
Loans 36.1.1 ( -  )              ( -  )              ( -  )              ( 20,408,650 )  ( -  )                ( -  )                ( 20,408,650 )  
Deposits and other receivables 36.1.1 ( -  )              ( -  )              ( -  )              ( 81,509,288 )  ( -  )                ( -  )                ( 81,509,288 )  
Cash and bank balances 36.1.1 ( -  )              ( -  )              ( -  )              ( -  )                ( 535,897,253 ) ( -  )                ( 535,897,253 )

( 42,030,085 ) ( 32,261,953 ) ( -  )              ( 452,727,579 ) ( 935,014,799 ) ( -  )                ( 1,462,034,416

Financial liabilities - not
  measured at fair value

Short term financing 36.1.1 ( -  )               ( -  )              ( -  )               ( -  )                ( -  )                ( 1,439,632,009 ( 1,439,632,009
Trade and other payables 36.1.1 ( -  )              ( -  )               ( -  )               ( -  )                ( -  )                ( 267,699,066 ) ( 267,699,066 )
Liabilities against assets
subject to finance lease 36.1.1 ( -  )              ( -  )              ( -  )              ( -  )                ( -  )                ( 19,063,352 )  ( 19,063,352 )  
Accrued mark-up on short term
financing 36.1.1 ( -  )              ( -  )              ( -  )              ( -  )                ( -  )                ( 19,248,522 )  ( 19,248,522 )  
Unclaimed dividend 36.1.1 ( -  )              ( -  )              ( -  )              ( -  )                ( -  )                ( 3,574,008 )     ( 3,574,008 )     

( -  )              ( -  )              ( -  )              ( -  )                ( -  )                ( 1,749,216,957 ( 1,749,216,957

30 June 2017
Carrying amount Fair value

Note Fair value 
through 

profit or loss

Available 
for sale

Held to 
maturity

Loans and 
receivables

Other 
financial 

assets

Other 
financial 
liabilities

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

30 June 2017

Financial assets - measured at 
fair value

Equity securities ( 7,161,104 )   ( 52,747,744 ) ( -  )               ( -  )                 ( -  )                 ( -  )                 ( 59,908,848 )   ( 59,908,848 ) ( -  )               ( -  )               ( 59,908,848 ) 
Participation Term Certificates ( 47,527,425 ) ( -  )               ( -  )               ( -  )                 ( -  )                 ( -  )                 ( 47,527,425 )   ( 47,527,425 ) ( -  )               ( -  )               ( 47,527,425 ) 

Financial assets - not
  measured at fair value

Associate - listed shares ( -  )               ( -  )               ( -  )               ( 390,907,283 ) ( -  )                 ( -  )                 ( 390,907,283 ) (440,756,579 ) ( -  )               ( -  )               (440,756,579 )
Debt securities ( -  )               ( -  )               (248,118,146 ) ( -  )                 ( -  )                 ( -  )                 ( 248,118,146 ) ( -  )               (234,033,098 ) ( -  )               (234,033,098 )
Trade debts 36.1.1 ( -  )               ( -  )               ( -  )               ( 223,972,326 ) ( -  )                 ( -  )                 ( 223,972,326 ) 
Loans 36.1.1 ( -  )               ( -  )               ( -  )               ( 72,774,746 )   ( -  )                 ( -  )                 ( 72,774,746 )   
Deposits and other receivables 36.1.1 ( -  )               ( -  )               ( -  )               ( 17,147,178 )   ( -  )                 ( -  )                 ( 17,147,178 )   
Cash and bank balances 36.1.1 ( -  )               ( -  )               ( -  )               ( 343,121,346 ) ( -  )                 ( -  )                 ( 343,121,346 ) 

( 54,688,529 ) ( 52,747,744 ) (248,118,146 ) ( 1,047,922,879 ) ( -  )                 ( -  )                 ( 1,403,477,298 )

Financial liabilities - not
  measured at fair value

Short term financing 36.1.1 ( -  )               ( -  )               ( -  )               ( -  )                 ( -  )                 ( 28,395,236 )   ( 28,395,236 )   
Trade and other payables 36.1.1 ( -  )               ( -  )               ( -  )               ( -  )                 ( -  )                 ( 231,032,082 ) ( 231,032,082 ) 
Liabilities against assets
subject to finance lease 36.1.1 ( -  )               ( -  )               ( -  )               ( -  )                 ( -  )                 ( 22,193,106 )   ( 22,193,106 )   
Accrued mark-up on short term
financing 36.1.1 ( -  )               ( -  )               ( -  )               ( -  )                 ( -  )                 ( 587,567 )        ( 587,567 )        
Unclaimed dividend 36.1.1 ( -  )               ( -  )               ( -  )               ( -  )                 ( -  )                 ( 1,420,509 )     ( 1,420,509 )     

( -  )               ( -  )               ( -  )               ( -  )                 ( -  )                 ( 283,628,500 ) ( 283,628,500 ) 

36.1.1  The Group has not disclosed fair values for these financial assets and financial liabilities because their carrying amounts 
are reasonable approximation of fair value.
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37. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

 The aggregate amounts charged in the financial statements for the remuneration, including all benefits, to the Chief 
Executive, Directors and Executives of the Group were as follows:

30 June 2018 30 June 2017

Chief Executive Directors Executives Total Chief Executive Directors Executives Total

--------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees) ---------------------------------------------------------------------

Managerial remuneration ( 8,642,400)      ( 8,641,200)  ( 3,352,260) ( 20,635,860 ) ( 7,007,124)    ( 7,267,328)       ( 8,678,568)       ( 22,953,020)     

Housing and utilities ( 9,356,400)      ( 9,352,800)  ( 4,390,524) ( 23,099,724 ) ( 7,583,552)    ( 7,942,816)       ( 11,638,644)     ( 27,165,012)     

Bonus ( 4,158,000)      ( 3,975,000)  ( 1,703,080) ( 9,836,080)   ( 5,200,000)    ( 5,400,000)       ( 6,772,405)       ( 17,372,405)     

Medical ( 608,192)          ( 2,928,678)  ( 207,157)    ( 3,744,027)   ( 536,848)       ( 738,379)          ( 1,681,624)       ( 2,956,851)       

Group's Contribution to 

retirement benefits funds ( 504,000)          ( 230,400)     ( 147,648)    ( 882,048)      ( 700,352)       ( 174,468)          ( 434,208)          ( 1,309,028)       

- 23,268,992 -    - 25,128,078 - - 9,800,669- - 58,197,739 - - 21,027,876- - 21,522,991-     - 29,205,449-     - 71,756,316-     

Number of persons 1 2 2 5 1 2 2 5

37.1 The aggregate amount paid to directors in respect of attending board and other meetings was Nil (2017: Nil).
 
37.2 The Chief Executive, directors and certain executives are provided with free use of group maintained cars in accordance 

with their entitlements. The approximate aggregate value of this benefit is Rs. 32.55 million (30 June 2017: Rs.25.21 
million).

 
37.3 Executives represent those employees (other than the chief executive and directors), whose basic salaries exceed twelve 

hundred thousand rupees (Rs. 1.2 million) in a financial year.

37.4 There are nine directors including chief executive. Remuneration has been paid to two directors. 

38 PROVIDENT FUND
 
 The following information is based on latest audited financial statements of the fund:

30 June 30 June
2018 2017

(Audited) (Audited)
(Rupees)

Size of the Fund   65,520,542   73,772,442 
Cost of investment made   57,460,495   36,312,716 
Fair value / amortised cost of investments   58,373,463   37,815,792 
Percentage of investments made - based on fair value / amortised cost 89.09% 51.26%

 Break-up of investments in terms of amount and percentage of the size of provident fund are as follows:

30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2018 2017 2018 2017

(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)
(Rupees) (% of the size of the fund)

Term finance certificates   140,000   140,000 0.21% 0.19%
Mutual funds   12,760,854   2,048,614 19.48% 2.78%
Government bonds   41,632,355   31,170,024 63.54% 42.25%
Equity securities   3,840,254   4,457,154 5.86% 6.04%

  58,373,463   37,815,792 89.09% 51.26%
 



Loads Limited94
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018

 The above investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the requirement of section 218 of the 
Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose. 

39. PLANT CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION

 The production capacity of the plant cannot be determined as it depends on the relative proportions of various types / sizes 
of sub-assemblies, components and parts produced for various types of vehicles.

40. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
30 June 30 June

2018 2017
Numbers

Total number of employees at reporting date   1,616   1,451 
Total number of factory employees at reporting date   1,372   1,226 

Average number of employees during the year   1,534   1,409 
Average number of factory employees during the year   1,299   1,162 

41 OPERATING SEGMENTS
 
41.1 The financial information has been prepared on the basis of a single reportable segment.
 
41.2 Geographically, all the sales were carried out in Pakistan.
 
41.3 All non-current assets of the Group as at 30 June 2018 are located in Pakistan.
 
41.4 Sales to four major customers of the Group is around 86.9% during the year ended 30 June 2018 (30 June 2017: 87.8%).
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42 GENERAL
 
42.1 All Shares Islamic Index Screening
 
 Advances, deposits and bank balances do not carry any mark-up except for balance in saving accounts. Bank balances are 

placed with conventional banks in current and saving accounts. Other disclosures are included in notes 13 and 28.
 
42.2 Events after the end of the reporting date
 
 The directors in their meeting held on 1st October 2018 , have recommended final dividend of Rs. Nil per share (2017: Re. 

1 per share) in respect of year ended 30 June 2018 and have announced issue of bonus shares at the rate Nil (30 June 
2017: 10%). Bonus shares will not be entitled to cash dividend.

 
42.3 Authorisation for issue
 
 These consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue in the Board of Directors meeting held on 1st October 

2018 .

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Director
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Unconsolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended 30 June 2018

Note 30 June 30 June
 2018  2017 

(Rupees)
 
Revenue 24   4,889,663,855   4,405,126,503 

Cost of sales 25   (4,516,301,503)   (3,962,997,013)

Gross profit   373,362,352   442,129,490 

Administrative, selling and general expenses 26   (175,151,721)   (163,110,365)

  198,210,631   279,019,125 

Other expenses 27   (24,681,022)   (21,875,560)
Other income 28   70,464,505   69,719,563 

  45,783,483   47,844,003 

Operating profit   243,994,114   326,863,128 

Finance costs 29   (110,203,734)   (67,732,343)

Unrealised (loss) / gain on re-measurement of investments
at fair value through profit or loss - at initial recognition 13.1   (6,995,475)   13,793,162 

Profit before taxation   126,794,905   272,923,947 

Taxation 30   (46,439,075)   (43,342,458)

Profit for the year   80,355,830   229,581,489 

 (Restated) 
Earnings per share - basic and diluted - unconsolidated 31   0.53   1.73 

 (Restated) 
Earnings per share - basic and diluted - consolidated 31   1.02   2.31 

The annexed notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Director

Note 30 June 30 June
 2018  2017 

ASSETS (Rupees)

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment  4   623,616,093   543,670,690 
Intangible assets  5   2,248,940   2,088,635 
Long term investments  6   1,502,195,065   1,077,885,976 
Long term loans and receivables  9   18,257,596   27,386,282 
Employee benefits - gratuity 20.2   5,317,208   -   

  2,151,634,902   1,651,031,583 

Current assets
Stores and spares 25.2   29,276,306   38,631,402 
Stock-in-trade  7   1,662,758,743   1,181,967,494 
Trade debts - net  8   350,809,641   223,972,326 
Loans and advances  10   146,214,779   84,750,940 
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables  11   224,544,009   186,635,679 
Current maturity of long term receivables  9   47,104,408   33,547,375 
Due from related parties  22   518,518,738   12,992,725 
Taxation - net  12   146,796,591   162,615,180 
Investments  13   66,083,341   101,421,742 
Cash and bank balances  14   8,959,843   215,971,176 

  3,201,066,399   2,242,506,039 

Total assets   5,352,701,301   3,893,537,622 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and reserves
Authorised capital
200,000,000 (30 June 2017: 200,000,000) ordinary shares
  of Rs.10 each  17   2,000,000,000   2,000,000,000 

Share capital
  Issued, subscribed and paid up capital  17   1,512,500,000   1,375,000,000 
  Share premium   1,095,352,578   1,095,352,578 

Capital reserve
  Unrealised gain on re-measurement of available-for-sale investments 13.2.1   15,068,260   35,554,051 

Revenue reserve
  Unappropriated profit   434,398,893   637,288,686 

  3,057,319,731   3,143,195,315 

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease  18   5,014,204   8,935,018 
Deferred tax liabilities  19   49,060,762   44,277,457 
Employee benefits - gratuity 20.2   -     287,395 

  54,074,966   53,499,870 
Current liabilities
Current maturity of liabilities against assets subject to finance lease  18   14,049,148   13,258,088 
Short term financing  21   1,439,632,009   28,395,236 
Due to related parties  22   464,530,779   392,183,088 
Trade and other payables  23   300,272,138   260,997,949 
Unclaimed dividend   3,574,008   1,420,509 
Accrued mark-up on short term financing   19,248,522   587,567 

  2,241,306,604   696,842,437 

Total equity and liabilities   5,352,701,301   3,893,537,622 

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS  15 

The annexed notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Director
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Unconsolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 june 2018

Note 30 June 30 June
 2018  2017 

(Rupees)

Profit for the year  80,355,830  229,581,489 

Other comprehensive income

Items that are or may be reclassified subsequently
  to profit or loss

Unrealised (loss) / gain on re-measurement of
  available-for-sale investments 13.2.1   (20,485,791)   9,920,314 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Loss on re-measurement of defined benefit liability 20.2.4   (11,613,554)   (3,548,495)
Related tax 19.2   3,367,931   1,064,549 

  (8,245,623)   (2,483,946)

Total comprehensive income for the year  51,624,416  237,017,857 

The annexed notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Director

Unconsolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2018

Share capital Capital reserve
 Revenue 

reserve 

Note Issued, 

subscribed

and paid up

capital

Share 

premium

Unrealised gain on 

re-measurement of

available-for-sale 

investments

Unappropriated

profit

Total

equity

------------------------------------------------ (Rupees) ---------------------------------------------

Balance at 1 July 2016   750,000,000   -     25,633,737   660,191,143   1,435,824,880 

Transactions with owners directly recognised in equity   -     -     -     -   

Dividend paid   -     -     -     -   

Total comprehensive income for the year ended 30 June 2017

Profit for the year   -     -     -     229,581,489   229,581,489 

Other comprehensive income   -     -     9,920,314   (2,483,946)   7,436,368 

  -     -     9,920,314   227,097,543   237,017,857 

Transactions with owners of the Company

Contributions and distributions

Issue of 50,000,000 ordinary shares at the rate of Rs. 34 per share 17   500,000,000   1,200,000,000   -     -     1,700,000,000 

Final dividend at the rate of 10% (i.e. Re. 1 per share) for the 

  year ended 30 June 2016   -     -     -     (125,000,000)   (125,000,000)

Issue of bonus shares at the rate of 10% (i.e. 10 shares for every 

  100 shares held)   125,000,000   -     -     (125,000,000)   -   

  625,000,000   1,200,000,000   -     (250,000,000)   1,575,000,000 

Preliminary expenses written off during the year 16   -     (104,647,422)   -     -     (104,647,422)

Balance at 30 June 2017   1,375,000,000   1,095,352,578   35,554,051   637,288,686   3,143,195,315 

Total comprehensive income for the year ended 30 June 2018

Profit for the year   -     -     -     80,355,830   80,355,830 

Other comprehensive income   -     -     (20,485,791)   (8,245,623)   (28,731,414)

  -     (20,485,791)   72,110,207   51,624,416 

Transactions with owners of the Company

Contributions and distributions

Final dividend at the rate of 10% (i.e. Re. 1 per share) for the 

  year ended 30 June 2017   -     -     -     (137,500,000)   (137,500,000)

Issue of bonus shares at the rate of 10% (i.e. 10 shares for every 

  100 shares held) 137,500,000 -   -   (137,500,000) -   

  137,500,000   -     -     (275,000,000)   (137,500,000)

Balance at 30 June 2018   1,512,500,000   1,095,352,578   15,068,260   434,398,893   3,057,319,731 

The annexed notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Director
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1. CORPORATE AND GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
1.1 Legal status and operations 
 
 Loads Limited (the Company) is a public listed company, which was incorporated in Pakistan on 1 January 1979 as a private 

limited company under Companies Act, 1913 (Repealed with the enactment of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (repealed 
with the enactment of the Companies Act, 2017) on May 30, 2017).

 
 On 19 December 1993, the status of the Company was converted from private limited company to public unlisted company. 

On 1 November 2016, the shares of the Company were listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (PSX).
 
 The principal activity of the Company is to manufacture and sale of radiators, exhaust systems and other components for 

automotive industry.
 
 The Company’s registered office and plant is situated at Plot No. 23, Sector 19, Korangi Industrial Area, Karachi.
 
 There are four subsidiaries and one associate (Treet Corporation Limited) of the Company which are carried at cost. The 

details are as follows:

Name of the Company Incorporation Effective Holding % Principle line of business

date 30 June 
2018

30 June 
2017

Subsidiaries

Specialized Autoparts Industries 2 June 2004 91% 100%
Manufacture and sell components 
for the automotive industry.

 (Private) Limited (SAIL)

Multiple Autoparts Industries 14 May 2004 92% 100%
Manufacture and sell components 
for the automotive industry.

  (Private) Limited (MAIL)

Specialized Motorcycles 28 September 2004 100% 100% Acquire, deal in, purchase, import,
sales, supply and export motorcy-
cles and auto parts. The opera-
tions have been ceased from 1 
July 2015.

  (Private) Limited (SMPL)

Hi-Tech Alloy Wheels Limited 13 January 2017 80% 100% It will manufacture alloy wheels of
various specifications and sell 
them tolocal car assemblers. 

(HAWL) (formerly Hi-Tech
  Autoparts (Private) Limited)

Associate
Treet Corporation Limited 22 January 1977 5.42% 5.46% Manufacture and sale of razors, 

razorblades and other trading 
activities

 Plants of SAIL and MAIL are situated at DSU-19 and DSU-38 respectively in Downstream Industrial Estate Pakistan 
Steel Mills Bin Qasim Town, Karachi. HAWL has acquired land for establishing industrial unit which is located at National 
Industrial Park, Bin Qasim, the Special Economic Zone declared by Government of Sindh.

1.2 Summary of significant events and transactions in the current reporting period
 
 The Company’s financial position and performance was particularly affected by the following events and transactions during 

the reporting period:

 - Made further investment amounting to Rs. 610 million in the ordinary shares of Hi-Tech Alloy Wheels Limited (HAWL), a 
subsidiary company (Refer note 6).

  

Unconsolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2018

Note 30 June 30 June
 2018  2017 

(Rupees)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation   126,794,905   272,923,947 

Adjustments for non-cash income and expenses:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 4.1   91,339,159   83,264,704 
Amortization of intangible assets 5   968,122   441,961 
Allowance for inventory obsolescence 7.1   3,265,920   1,623,406 
Finance costs 29   66,639,366   60,015,291 
Provision for gratuity 20.2.3   1,718,497   1,588,046 
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 28   (25,447,982)   (24,383,164)
Loss on sale of investments 27   14,559,635   -   
Mark-up income on investments 28   (35,958,065)   (29,934,557)
Dividend income 28   (2,396,725)   (10,025,622)
Un-winding of mark-up on long term receivables 28   (3,514,240)   (1,105,361)
Mark-up income on loan to employees 28   (1,285,422)   (1,172,439)
Mark-up income on loan to subsidiary 28   (7,257,499)   -   
Unrealized loss / (gain) on re-measurement of investment classified as 
  'at fair value through profit or loss' - at initial recognition 13.1   6,995,475   (13,793,162)

  236,421,146   339,443,050 
Working capital changes

(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Stores and spares   9,355,096   12,578,590 
Stock-in-trade   (484,057,169)   (76,526,578)
Trade debts - net   (126,837,315)   (10,083,659)
Loans and advances   (61,463,839)   47,508,496 
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables   (38,822,437)   (12,739,041)

  (701,825,664)   (39,262,192)

Increase in current liabilities
Due to related parties - net   47,172,002   66,846,625 
Trade and other payables   37,969,209   137,062,296 

  85,141,211   203,908,921 
Cash (used in) / generated from operations   (380,263,307)   504,089,779 

Mark-up paid   (26,083,282)   (51,381,946)
Gratuity paid   (18,936,654)   -   
Mark-up received from loan to employees   1,285,422   1,172,439 
Income taxes paid - net   (22,469,250)   (53,236,055)
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities   (446,467,071)   400,644,217 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for acquisition of property, plant and equipment   (167,599,427)   (188,497,476)
Payments for acquisition of intangible assets   (1,128,427)   (1,782,602)
Payments for acquisition of investments   (55,003,466)   (192,958,596)
Proceeds from disposal / redemption of investments   233,951,877   -   
Investment in subsidiary   (609,960,000)   (250,000,000)
Mark-up received   28,700,566   29,934,557 
Dividends received   2,396,725   10,025,622 
Loan to subsidiary 22.1.1   (495,000,000)   -   
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment   40,443,257   10,719,876 
Net cash used in investing activities   (1,023,198,895)   (582,558,619)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments against finance lease obligation   (22,851,639)   (24,848,224)
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares   -     1,700,000,000 
Preliminary expenses 16   -     (104,647,422)
Dividend paid   (135,346,501)   (123,579,491)
Loan from subsidiaries / (repayment of loan to subsidiaries)   9,616,000   (1,300,000)
Net cash (used in)/ generated from financing activities   (148,582,140)   1,445,624,863 

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents   (1,618,248,106)   1,263,710,461 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year   187,575,940   (1,076,134,521)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 33   (1,430,672,166)   187,575,940 

The annexed notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Director
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018

 The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed 
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about the carrying 
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates.  

  
 The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 

recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision 
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. 

  
 In the process of applying the Company’s accounting polices, management has made the following  accounting estimates 

and judgments which are significant to the unconsolidated financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of 
material adjustment in future years are discussed below: 

 - Property, plant and equipment (notes 3.1 and 4);
 - Intangible assets (notes 3.2 and 5);
 - Provision for impairment of stock-in-trade and stores and spares (notes 3.6, 3.7 and 7);
 - Taxation (notes 3.14,12 and 30);
 - Provision for impairment of financial and non-financial assets (note 3.5.5 and 6.2.2.1);
 - Employees’ benefits and compensated absences (notes 3.3 and 20);
 - Classification and valuation of financial instruments (note 3.5); and
 - Contingencies (note 15)
  
2.5 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards  
 that are not yet effective:
  
 The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 

and the amendments and interpretations thereto will be effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 
2018: 

  
 - Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions - amendments to IFRS 2 clarify the accounting 

for certain types of arrangements and are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The 
amendments cover three accounting areas (a) measurement of cash-settled share-based payments; (b) classification of 
share-based payments settled net of tax withholdings; and (c) accounting for a modification of a share-based payment 
from cash-settled to equity-settled. The new requirements could affect the classification and/or measurement of these 
arrangements and potentially the timing and amount of expense recognized for new and outstanding awards. The 
amendments are not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

  
 - Transfers of Investment Property [(Amendments to IAS 40 ‘Investment Property’ (effective for annual periods beginning 

on or after 1 January 2018)] clarifies that an entity shall transfer a property to, or from,  investment property when, and 
only when there is a change in use. A change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition 
of investment property and there is evidence of the change in use. In isolation, a change in management’s intentions for 
the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use. The amendments are not likely to have an impact 
on Company’s financial statements.

  
 - Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle [Amendments to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’] 

(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018) clarifies that a venture capital organization and other 
similar entities may elect to measure investments in associates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss, for 
each associate or joint venture separately at the time of initial recognition of investment. Furthermore, similar election is 
available to non-investment entity that has an interest in an associate or joint venture that is an investment entity, when 
applying the equity method, to retain the fair value measurement applied by that investment entity associate or joint 
venture to the investment entity associate’s or joint venture’s interests in subsidiaries. This election is made separately 
for  each investment entity associate or joint venture. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on  Company’s 
financial statements.

  

 - Issued bonus shares at the rate of 10% (i.e. 10 shares for every 100 shares held) (Refer note 17.4).
  
 - Arranged short-term running finance facilities from different banks with the sanctioned limit of Rs. 1,640 million (Refer 

note 21).
  
 - Disbursed loan amounting to Rs. 495 million to Hi-Tech Alloy Wheels Limited (HAWL), a subsidiary company (Refer note 

22.1).
  
 - Dilution of ownership in subsidiaries (note 6.1), by not subscribing to the right shares issued by subsidiaries.
  
 - Due to the first time application of financial reporting requirements under the Companies Act, 2017, including disclosure 

and presentation requirements of the fourth schedule of the Companies Act, 2017, few additional disclosures  are 
included in the notes 1.1, 1.2, 4.1, 15.1.1, 17.5, 22.1.2, 25.5, 26.2, 30.6, 32 and 40.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION
 
2.1 Statement of compliance
 
2.1.1 These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting “standards 

as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprises of: 

 - International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting

  Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and
  
 - Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.
  
 Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards, the provisions 

of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed. 

2.1.2 The Companies Act, 2017, was enacted on May 30, 2017 and is applicable with immediate effect. The Securities and 
Exchange Commission of Pakistan through press release and vide circular no. 23 of 2017 dated 4 October 2017 has 
decided that all the companies whose financial year, including quarterly and other interim period, closes on or before 
31 December 2017, shall prepare their financial statements, including interim financial statements, in accordance with 
the provisions of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984. The new requirements of the Companies Act, 2017 shall be 
applicable to the companies having their financial year closure after 31 December 2017. 

  
2.2 Basis of measurement
  
 These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for investments 

classified as “investment at fair value through profit or loss” and “available for sale” which are stated at fair value and 
provision for staff gratuity which is stated at present value. 

  
2.3 Functional and presentation currency
  
 These unconsolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupee (Rs. / Rupees) which is the Company’s 

functional currency. Amounts presented in the financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest of Rs. / Rupees, 
unless otherwise stated. 

  
2.4 Key judgments and estimates 
  
 The preparation of unconsolidated financial statements in conformity with the accounting and reporting standards as 

applicable in Pakistan, requires management to make estimates, assumptions and use judgments that affect the application 
of policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. 
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  - IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangement - the amendment aims to clarify the accounting 
treatment when a company increases its interest in a joint operation that meets the definition of a business. A 
company remeasures its previously held interest in a joint operation when it obtains control of the business. A 
company does not remeasure its previously held interest in a joint operation when it obtains joint control of the 
business.

   
  - IAS 12 Income Taxes - the amendment clarifies that all income tax consequences of dividends (including payments 

on financial instruments classified as equity) are recognized consistently with the transaction that generates the 
distributable profits. 

   
  - IAS 23 Borrowing Costs - the amendment clarifies that a company treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing 

originally made to develop an asset when the asset is ready for its intended use or sale.
   
 The above amendments are effective from annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019 and are not likely to have 

an impact on Company’s unconsolidated financial statements.  

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
  
 The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements are set out below. 

These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated.  
 

3.1 Property, plant and equipment 
  
 Recognition and measurement 
  
 Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 

losses, if any. Land and capital work-in-progress are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any. 
  
 If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as 

separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. 
  
 Subsequent expenditure 
  
 Subsequent expenditure incurred is capitalised only if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the 

expenditure will flow to the entity. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in 
profit or loss account as incurred. 

  
 Depreciation 
  
 Depreciation charge is based on the reducing balance method at the rates specified in note 4.1. 
  
 Depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipment is charged from the month in which an item is acquired or 

capitalised while no depreciation is charged for the month in which the item is disposed off. 
  
 Depreciation methods and depreciation rates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate. 
  
 Gains and losses on disposal 
  
 Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the profit or loss account. 
  
 Assets subject to finance lease 
  

 - IFRIC 22 ‘Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2018) clarifies which date should be used for translation when a foreign currency transaction involves 
payment or receipt in advance of the item it relates to. The related item is translated using the exchange rate on the 
date the advance foreign currency is received or paid and the prepayment or deferred income is recognized. The date 
of the transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, 
expense or income (or part of it) would remain the date on which receipt of payment from advance consideration was 
recognized. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the entity shall determine a date of the transaction 
for each payment or receipt of advance consideration. The application of interpretation is not likely to have an impact on 
Company’s financial statements.

  
 - IFRIC 23 ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 

2019) clarifies the accounting for income tax when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under IAS 12. The 
interpretation requires the uncertainty over tax treatment be reflected in the measurement of current and deferred tax. 
The application of interpretation is not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

  
 - IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2018). 

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognized. 
It replaces existing revenue recognition guidance, including IAS 18 ‘Revenue’, IAS 11 ‘Construction Contracts’ and 
IFRIC 13 ‘Customer Loyalty Programmes’. The Company is currently in the process of analyzing the potential impact of 
changes required in revenue recognition policies on adoption ofthe standard. 

  
 - IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ and amendment – Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (effective for annual 

periods beginning on or after 1 July 2018 and 1 January 2019 respectively). IFRS 9 replaces the existing guidance in IAS 
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and 
measurement of financial instruments, a new expected credit loss model for calculating impairment on financial assets, 
and new general hedge accounting requirements. It also carries forward the guidance on recognition and derecognition 
of financial instruments from IAS 39. The Company is currently in the process of analyzing the potential impact of 
changes required in classification and measurement of financial instruments and the impact of expected loss model on 
adoption of the standard.

  
 - IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ (effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019). IFRS 16 replaces existing leasing 

guidance, including IAS 17 ‘Leases’, IFRIC 4 ‘Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease’, SIC-15 ‘Operating 
Leases- Incentives’ and SIC-27 ‘Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease’. IFRS 
16 introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognizes a right-of-use asset 
representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. 
There are recognition exemptions for short-term leases and leases of low-value items. Lessor accounting remains 
similar to the current standard i.e. lessors continue to classify leases as finance or operating leases. The Company is 
currently in the process of analyzing the potential impact of its lease arrangements that will result in recognition of right 
to use assets and liabilities on adoption of the standard.

  
 - Amendment to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’ - Long Term Interests in Associates and Joint 

Ventures (effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019). The amendment will affect companies 
that finance such entities with preference shares or with loans for which repayment is not expected in the foreseeable 
future (referred to as long-term interests or ‘LTI’). The amendment and accompanying example state that LTI are in the 
scope of both IFRS 9 and IAS 28 and explain the annual  sequence in which both standards are to be applied. The 
amendments are not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

  
 - Amendments to IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’- Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (effective for annual periods 

beginning on or after 1 January 2019). The amendments clarify that on amendment, curtailment or settlement of a 
defined benefit plan, a company now uses updated actuarial assumptions to determine its current service cost and 
net interest for the period; and the effect of the asset ceiling is disregarded when calculating the gain or loss on any 
settlement of the plan and is dealt with separately in other comprehensive income. The application of amendments is not 
likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

  
 - Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015–2017 Cycle - the improvements address amendments to  f o l l o w i n g 

approved accounting standards:
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 Compensated absences 
  
 The Company recognises the liability for compensated absences in respect of employees in the period in which they are 

earned up to the reporting date. 
  
 Defined Contribution plan - Provident Fund 
  
 All permanent employees are covered under a recognized fund scheme. Equal monthly contributions are made by the 

Company and the employees to the Fund at the rate of 10% of basic salary for executive employees and 10% of basic 
salary plus cost of living allowance for non-executive employees. 

  
3.4 Trade and other payables 
  
 Trade payable and other liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if any, and subsequently 

measured at amortised cost. 
  
3.5 Financial instruments 
  
 The Company classifies its financial assets into financial assets at ‘fair value through profit or loss’, available for sale’, ‘held-

to-maturity’ and ‘loans and receivables’.  
  
 The Company classifies its financial liabilities into the other financial liabilities category. 
  
3.5.1 Financial assets and financial liabilities - recognition and derecognition 
  
 The Company initially recognises loans and receivables on the date when they are originated. All other financial assets and 

financial liabilities are initially recognised on the trade date when the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions 
of the instrument. 

  
 The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it 

transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards 
of ownership of the financial asset are transferred, or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards 
of ownership and does not retain control over the transferred asset. Any  interest in such derecognised financial assets that 
is created or retained by the Company is recognised as a separate asset or liability. 

  
 The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire. 

  
3.5.2 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities 
  
 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position when, 

and only when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a 
net basis, or realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

3.5.3 Financial assets - measurement 
  
 a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
  
  A financial asset is classified as ‘at fair value through profit or loss’ if it is held-for-trading or is designated as such upon 

initial recognition. Financial assets are designated as ‘at fair value through profit or loss’ if the Company manages 
such investments and makes purchase and sale decisions based on their fair value in accordance with the Company’s 
documented risk management or investment strategy. Financial assets which are acquired principally for the purpose 
of generating profit from short term price fluctuation or are part of the portfolio in which there is recent actual pattern of 
short term profit taking are classified as held for trading or a derivative.

  
  Financial assets as ‘at fair value through profit or loss’ are measured at fair value, and changes therein are recognised 

in profit or loss account.
  

 Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as finance 
lease. Assets subject to finance lease are stated at amounts equal to the fair value at the inception of lease or, if lower, the 
present value of the minimum lease payments. The minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge 
and the outstanding liability. Assets acquired under finance leases are depreciated in accordance with the Company’s 
depreciation policy for property, plant and equipment. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss account. Finance charges 
under the lease agreements is allocated over the periods during lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of 
financial charge on the outstanding balance of principal liability of each year. 

  
3.2 Intangible assets  
  
 Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company and have finite lives are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation 

and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 
  
 Subsequent expenditure 
  
 Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset 

to which it relates. Cost that are directly associated with identifiable software products and have probable economic benefit 
beyond one year are recognised as intangible assets. Cost associated with maintaining computer software products are 
recognised as an expense when incurred. 

  
 Amortisation 
  
 Amortisation is calculated to charge the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values using the straight-line 

method over their estimated useful lives specified in note 5 and is recognised in profit or loss account. 
  
 Amortisation on additions during the financial year is charged from the month in which the asset is put to use, whereas no 

amortisation is charged in the month in which the asset is disposed off.  
  
 Amortisation methods and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate. 
  
3.3 Staff retirement and other service benefits 
  
 Defined benefit scheme - Gratuity 
  
 The Company operates a funded gratuity schemes separately for its management and non-management staff. Both the 

schemes cover all the employees with a qualifying service period of ten years.  
  
 The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately by estimating the amount of future 

benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value 
of any plan assets. 

  
 The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit 

method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present 
value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions 
to the plan. To calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding 
requirements. 

  
 Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets 

(excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised immediately in Other 
Comprehensive Income. The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability 
(asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the 
annual period to the then net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit 
liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses 
related to defined benefit plans are recognised in profit or loss. 
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securities are impaired. Impairment loss on investment is recognised in the profit or loss whenever the acquisition cost of 
investment exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised on equity securities in the profit or loss are not 
reversed subsequently in the profit or loss.

 
 Non-financial assets
 
 The carrying amounts of non-financial assets other than deferred tax asset, are reviewed at each reporting date to 

determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount 
is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value 
less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a 
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. 
For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest 
group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other 
assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit, or CGU”).

 
 The Company’s corporate assets do not generate separate cash inflows. If there is an indication that a corporate asset may 

be impaired, then the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the corporate asset belongs. An impairment 
loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment 
losses are recognised in profit or loss.

 
 Impairment loss recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has 

decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine 
the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed 
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been 
recognised.

 
3.6 Stores, spares and consumables
 
 These are stated at lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value except items in transit which are stated at 

invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon.
 
 Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs 

necessary to be incurred to make the sale.
 
3.7 Stock-in-trade
 
 Stock-in-trade is stated at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using weighted average cost formula 

and includes expenditure incurred in bringing / acquiring the inventories to their present location and condition.
 
 Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of 

completion and the cost necessary to be incurred to make the sale.
 
3.8 Trade debts, loans, advances, deposits and other receivables
 
 These are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost less provision for impairment, 

if any. A provision for impairment is established when there is an objective evidence that the Company will not be able to 
collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables. Loans, advances and other receivables considered 
irrecoverable are written off.

 
3.9 Cash and cash equivalents
 
 Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand and deposits held with banks. Short term borrowing facilities availed 

by the Company, which are repayable on demand form an integral part of the Company’s cash management and are 
included as part of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the unconsolidated cash flow statement. 

 

  All derivatives in a net receivable position (positive fair value), are reported as financial assets held for trading. All 
derivatives in a net payable position (negative fair value), are reported as financial liabilities held for trading.

  
 b) Available for sale
  
  These assets are initially measured at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to initial 

recognition, they are measured at fair value and changes therein, other than impairment losses, are recognised in other 
comprehensive income and accumulated in the unrealised gain on re-measurement of  available for sale investments. 
When these assets are derecognised, the gain or loss accumulated in equity is reclassified to profit or loss.

  
 c) Held-to-maturity
  
  These assets are initially measured at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to initial 

recognition, they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
  
 d) Loans and receivables
  
  These assets are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to initial 

recognition, they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
  
3.5.4 Financial liabilities - measurement 
  
 All financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value less any directly attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to initial 

recognition, these liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. 

3.5.5 Impairment
 
 Financial assets (including receivables)
 
 Financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence that they are impaired. 

A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the 
asset, and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated 
reliably. Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired may include default or delinquency by a debtor, indications 
that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy.

 
 All individually significant receivables are assessed for specific impairment. All individually significant receivables found not 

to be specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified. 
Receivables that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together receivables 
with similar risk characteristics.

 
 An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between 

its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective 
interest rate. Losses are recognised in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account against receivables. Interest on 
the impaired asset continues to be recognised through the unwinding of the discount. When a subsequent event causes the 
amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss account.

 
 Available-for-sale financial assets
 
 Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets are recognised by reclassifying the losses accumulated in the fair 

value reserve to profit or loss. The amount reclassified is the difference between the acquisition cost (net of any principal 
repayment and amortisation) and the current fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in profit or loss. 
If the fair value of an impaired available-for-sale debt security subsequently increases and the increase can be related 
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, then the impairment loss is reversed through 
profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss for an investment in an equity instrument classified as available-
for-sale are not reversed through profit or loss.

 
 A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the equity security below its cost is considered an indicator that the 
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3.15 Provisions
 
 A provision is recognized in the unconsolidated statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or constructive 

obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. The amount recognised as a provision reflects 
the best estimate of the expenditure to settle the present obligation at the reporting date.

 
3.16 Dividend distribution and appropriation to reserves
 
 Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders and appropriation to reserves is recognised in the period in which 

these are approved. The distribution of dividend is subject to the covenant as mentioned in note 21.
 
3.17 Segment accounting
 
 Segment reporting is based on the operating (business) segments of the Company. An operating segment is a component 

of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues 
and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Company’s other components. 

 
 The segment information is not generated by the Company and the Chief Executive reviews the Company as a single entity. 

Hence, segment disclosures are not included in these financial statements.
 
4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

30 June 30 June
Note 2018 2017

(Rupees)

Operating property, plant and equipment 4.1   604,432,210   512,393,898 
Capital work-in-progress 4.2   19,183,883   31,276,792 

  623,616,093   543,670,690 

4.1 Operating property, plant and equipment

30 June 2018
Cost Rate Accumulated depreciation Net book 

As at 01 Additions / Transfer from (Disposals) As at 30 As at 01 For the Transfer from (Disposals) As at 30 value as at

 July 2017 transfers leased assets June 2018  July 2017 year leased assets June 2018 30 June 2018

 ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ ------  (Rupees) -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------------------% ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ ------  (Rupees) -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------------------

Owned

Freehold land (note 4.1.1) - 25,080,000 -      ( -  )                ( -  )                   ( -  )               ( 25,080,000 )     - ( -  )                  ( -  )                 ( -  )                 ( -  )                      ( -  )                      ( 25,080,000 )            

Leasehold land (note 4.1.1) ( 1,089,774 )        ( -  )                ( -  )                   ( -  )               ( 1,089,774 )       - ( -  )                  ( -  )                 ( -  )                 ( -  )                      ( -  )                      ( 1,089,774 )               

Building on leasehold land ( 78,009,904 )      ( 8,862,164 )    ( -  )                   ( -  )               ( 86,872,068 )     (5) ( 23,972,064 )   ( 2,866,497 )     ( -  )                 ( -  )                      ( 26,838,561 )       ( 60,033,507 )            

Plant and machinery - 518,771,282 -    ( 122,427,829 ) ( -  )                   ( -  )               ( 641,199,111 )   10 - 20 ( 246,647,001 ) ( 34,113,944 )   ( -  )                 ( -  )                      ( 280,760,945 )     ( 360,438,166 )          

(note 4.1.4)

Tools and equipment - 281,810,193 -    ( 38,774,328 )  ( -  )                   ( (16,408,577) ( 304,175,944 )   10 - 35 ( 183,344,830 ) ( 39,163,729 )   ( -  )                 ( (5,166,850)        ( 217,341,709 )     ( 86,834,235 )            

- 36,617,720 -      ( 5,039,015 )    ( -  )                   ( -  )               ( 41,656,735 )     10 - 30 ( 24,964,639 )   ( 3,276,358 )     ( -  )                 ( -  

-  

)                      ( 28,240,997 )       ( 13,415,738 )            

Vehicles - 17,024,809 -      ( 4,589,000 )    ( 16,404,350 )    ( (8,093,691)  ( 29,924,468 )     (20 ) ( 12,614,716 )   ( 1,310,779 )     ( (5,581,202)   ( (4,340,143)        ( 4,004,150 )         ( 25,920,318 )            

Leased

Vehicles - 77,807,915 -      ( 18,680,410 )  ( (16,404,350)   ( -  )               ( 80,083,975 )     (20 ) ( 32,274,449 )   ( 10,607,852 )   ( 5,581,202 )    ( 48,463,503 )       ( 31,620,472 )            

( 1,036,211,597 ) ( 198,372,746 ) ( -  )                   ( (24,502,268) ( 1,210,082,075 ) ( 523,817,699 ) ( 91,339,159 )   ( -  )                 ( (9,506,993)        ( 605,649,865 )     ( 604,432,210 )          

3.10 Foreign currency translation
 
 Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistan Rupees (Rs. / Rupees) at the rates of exchange approximating 

those prevailing on the date of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistan 
Rupees (Rs. / Rupees) at the rates of exchange ruling on the reporting date. Exchange differences are included in the profit 
or loss account currently. Non-monetary items that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are not 
translated.

 
3.11 Investment in subsidiary
 
 Investment in subsidiary company is stated at cost less provision for impairment, if any. These are classified as long term 

investment.
 
3.12 Investment in associate
 
 Investment in associate is stated at cost less provision for impairment, if any. These are classified as long term investment.
 
3.13 Revenue recognition

 - Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the 
revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, 
excluding discounts, rebates and government levies.

  
 - Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred 

to the customer.
   
 - Mark-up on bank deposit is recognised on time apportioned basis using effective interest rate method.
  
 - Gains / (losses) arising on sale of investments are included in the profit or loss account in the period in which they arise.
  
 - Unrealised gains / (losses) arising on revaluation of securities classified as ‘at fair value through profit or loss’ are 

included in profit or loss account in the period in which they arise. 
  
 - Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established.

3.14 Taxation
 
 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in profit or loss account except 

to the extent that it relates to item recognized directly in other comprehensive income in which case it is recognized in other 
comprehensive income.

 
 Current
 
 Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the enacted or substantively enacted rates of taxation after 

taking into account available tax credits and rebates, if any. The charge for current tax includes adjustments to charge for 
prior years which arises from assessments / developments made during the year, if any.

 
 Deferred tax
 
 Deferred tax is recognised using balance sheet method, in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts 

of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of 
deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and 
liabilities, using the enacted or substantively enacted rates of taxation.

 
 The Company recognises deferred tax asset to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits for the foreseeable future 

will be available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer 
probable that the related tax benefit will be realised. 
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4.1.7 Details of property, plant and equipment disposed off
 
 Details of operating property, plant and equipment disposed off during the year are as follows:

30 June 2018

Asset Cost Accumulated Net book Sale Gain on Particulars of the purchaser Mode of Relationship with 

depreciation value proceeds disposal disposal the purchaser

Owned  -------------------------------------- (Rupees) --------------------------------------

Tools and equipment

Dies (refer note 9) ( 16,408,577) ( 5,166,850)       ( 11,241,727) ( 35,765,768)   ( 24,524,041)   Pak Suzuki - Karachi Negotiation Customer

Vehicles

 Faw Truck  Ks-4353 ( 767,241)      ( 532,383)           ( 234,858)     ( 560,000)         ( 325,142)        M. Arif Negotiation Customer

 Mehran Vxr Atm-619 ( 514,000)      ( 415,010)           ( 98,990)        ( 307,000)         ( 208,010)        Muhammad Yasin - Karachi Negotiation Employee

 Mehran Vxr Ayc-357 ( 567,350)      ( 379,698)           ( 187,652)     ( 187,652)         ( -  )                 Khalid Aziz Company Policy Employee

 Mehran Vxr Ayc-360 ( 567,350)      ( 379,698)           ( 187,652)     ( 187,652)         ( -  )                 Javed Ansari Company Policy Employee

 Mehran Vxr Ayc-361 ( 567,350)      ( 379,698)           ( 187,652)     ( 187,652)         ( -  )                 Shahid Ahmed Siddiqui Company Policy Employee

 Mehran Vxr Ayc-364 ( 567,350)      ( 379,698)           ( 187,652)     ( 187,652)         ( -  )                 Khalil Farooqi Company Policy Employee

 Mehran Vxr Ayc-365 ( 567,350)      ( 379,698)           ( 187,652)     ( 187,652)         ( -  )                 Muhammed Asif Company Policy Employee

 Mehran Vxr Ayc-368 ( 567,350)      ( 379,698)           ( 187,652)     ( 187,652)         ( -  )                 Shehzad Qadri Company Policy Employee

 Mehran Vxr Ayc-369 ( 567,350)      ( 379,698)           ( 187,652)     ( 187,652)         ( -  )                 Rafia Yousuf Company Policy Employee

 Swift Bdm-961 ( 1,466,000)   ( 620,281)           ( 845,719)     ( 1,213,000)     ( 367,281)        Javed Hashim Negotiation Customer

 Swift Bkm-576 ( 1,375,000)   ( 114,583)           ( 1,260,417)  ( 1,283,925)     ( 23,508)           IGI-Insurance Insurance claim Insurance Company

( 24,502,268) ( 9,506,993)       ( 14,995,275) ( 40,443,257)   ( 25,447,982)   

4.2 Capital work-in-progress
30 June 30 June

Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)

Tools and equipment   15,192,680   29,626,370 
Advance against capital expenditure   3,991,203   1,650,422 

4.2.1   19,183,883   31,276,792 

4.2.1 Movement in capital work-in-progress is as follows:

Balance at beginning of the year   31,276,792   69,204,293 
Additions during the year   29,827,837   43,132,557 
Transferred to operating property, plant and equipment   (41,920,746)   (81,060,058)
Balance at end of the year   19,183,883   31,276,792 

5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

30 June 2018

 Cost Useful  Amortization Net book 

As at 1 Addition (Disposals) As at 30 life As at 1 For the (Disposals) As at 30 value as at

July 2017 June 2018 July 2017 year June 2018 30 June 2018

 ---------------------------------------------------------------------  (Rupees) ------------------------------------------------------------------------(Years)  ---------------------------------------------------------------------  (Rupees) ------------------------------------------------------------------------

Computer software and licenses ( 14,847,727) ( 1,128,427)   ( -  )           ( 15,976,154) 3 ( 12,759,092)    ( 968,122)                ( -  )                       ( 13,727,214)          ( 2,248,940)                   

30 June 2017

 Cost Useful  Amortization Net book 

As at 1 Addition (Disposals) As at 30 life As at 1 For the (Disposals) As at 30 value as at

July 2016 June 2017 July 2016 year June 2017 30 June 2017

 ---------------------------------------------------------------------  (Rupees) ------------------------------------------------------------------------(Years)  ---------------------------------------------------------------------  (Rupees) ------------------------------------------------------------------------

Computer software and licenses ( 13,065,125 ) ( 1,782,602 )    ( -  )           ( 14,847,727 ) 3 ( 12,317,131 )     ( 441,961 )                ( -  )                       ( 12,759,092 )           ( 2,088,635 )                    

5.1 The cost fully amortised intangible amounts to Rs. 12.185 million (30 June 2017: Rs. 12.185 million).
 
5.2 Computer software relate to the SAP business license.
 

30 June 2017
Cost Rate Accumulated depreciation Net book 

As at 01 Additions / Transfer from (Disposals) As at 30 As at 01 For the Transfer from (Disposal) As at 30 value as at

 July 2016 transfers leased assets June 2017  July 2016 year leased assets June 2017 30 June 2017

 ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------  (Rupees) ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------% ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------  (Rupees) ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Owned

Freehold land (note 4.1.1) - 25,080,000 -      ( -  )                ( -  )                   ( -  )               ( 25,080,000 )      - ( -  )                  ( -  )                 ( -  )                 ( -  )                      ( -  )                      ( 25,080,000 )             

Leasehold land (note 4.1.1) ( 1,089,774 )         ( -  )                ( -  )                   ( -  )               ( 1,089,774 )        - ( -  )                  ( -  )                 ( -  )                 ( -  )                      ( -  )                      ( 1,089,774 )               

Building on leasehold land ( 54,230,689 )      ( 23,779,215 )  ( -  )                   ( -  )               ( 78,009,904 )      (5) ( 22,229,391 )    ( 1,742,673 )      ( -  )                 ( -  )                      ( 23,972,064 )        ( 54,037,840 )             

Plant and machinery - 421,593,904 -    ( 98,227,378 )  ( (1,050,000)  ( 518,771,282 )   10 - 20 ( 221,609,108 ) ( 25,853,544 )   ( -  )                 ( (815,651)            ( 246,647,001 )     ( 272,124,281 )           

(note 4.1.4)

Tools and equipment - 231,509,418 -    ( 102,039,175 ) ( -  )                   ( (51,738,400) ( 281,810,193 )   10 - 35 ( 148,541,117 ) ( 41,412,122 )   ( -  )                 ( (6,608,409)         ( 183,344,830 )     ( 98,465,363 )             

Furniture, fittings and 

  office equipment - 34,238,511 -      ( 2,379,209 )     ( -  )                   ( -  )               ( 36,617,720 )      10 - 30 ( 21,839,629 )    ( 3,125,010 )      ( -  )                 ( -  )                      ( 24,964,639 )        ( 11,653,081 )             

Vehicles - 17,832,809 -      ( -  -  )                   ( (808,000)      ( 17,024,809 )      (20 ) ( 12,229,912 )    ( 1,096,016 )      ( -  )                 ( (711,212)            ( 12,614,716 )        ( 4,410,093 )               

Leased

Vehicles - 67,702,667 -      ( 10,105,248 )  ( -  )                   ( -  )               ( 77,807,915 )      (20 ) ( 22,239,110 )    ( 10,035,339 )   ( -  )                 ( -  )                      ( 32,274,449 )        ( 45,533,466 )             

( 853,277,772 )    ( 236,530,225 ) ( -  )                   ( (53,596,400) ( 1,036,211,597 ) ( 448,688,267 ) ( 83,264,704 )   ( -  )                 ( (8,135,272)         ( 523,817,699 )     ( 512,393,898 )           

4.1.1 Freehold land represents a plot in Lahore measuring 23 Kanals 18 Marlas and held by the Company for the expansion of 
business in future. Currently, this plot of land is not being used. Leasehold land represents total area of 8,888.88 square 
yards.

 
4.1.2 Finance lease liability in respect of assets held under finance lease is secured by 20% of lease facility amount as down 

payment / security deposit. Vehicles are registered in the name of the lessor (Bank Al Habib Limited) (note 18).
 
4.1.3 Freehold land and buildings are subject to a first equitable mortgage against the running finance facility of Rs. 300 million 

(30 June 2017: 300 million) obtained from JS Bank Limited (note 21). This charge existed at 30 June 2018.
 
4.1.4 Plant and machinery are subject to ranking charge and first pari passu hypothecation charge of maximum Rs. 534 million 

and Rs. 100 million (30 June 2017: Rs. 534 million and Rs. 100 million) respectively. These charges are against different 
financing facilities obtained from various banks (note 21) and existed at 30 June 2018.

 
4.1.5 There are no fully depreciated assets at the reporting date as the Company is following reducing balance method.
 
4.1.6 Depreciation has been allocated as follows:

30 June 30 June
Note 2018 2017

(Rupees)

Cost of sales 25   83,649,060   76,257,747 
Administrative, selling and general expenses 26   7,690,099   7,006,957 

  91,339,159   83,264,704 
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 Moreover, In the month of February, HAWL offered further 25.545 million ordinary shares through another right issue 
(second right issue) to the existing shareholders in the proportion of their existing shareholding (as changed after the first 
right issue), at the exercise price of Rs. 10 per share (i.e. face value). The existing shareholders including Loads Limited, 
SAIL and MAIL renounced the offer on 5 March 2018 and empowered the Board of HAWL to offer the shares to others 
as advised by Board of HAWL. In March, the Board of HAWL passed a resolution and offered the shares to pre-IPO 
shareholders at the same exercise price of Rs. 10 per share (face value). At the date of offer, HAWL was effectively a wholly 
owned subsidiary of Loads Limited. The shares of HAWL were issued to the pre-IPO shareholders on 4 May 2018. The 
return of allotment was filed on 10 May 2018. As at 30 June 2018, the break-up value of HAWL was Rs. 10.71 per share 
(30 June 2017: Rs. 9.92 per share). 

6.1.4 Specialized Motorcycles (Private) Limited (SMPL) was engaged in the business to acquire, deal in, purchase, import, 
sales, supply and export all sorts of motorcycles & auto parts, metallurgical parts, machinery and equipment parts. SMPL 
has ceased its operations from 1 July 2015. The net assets of SMPL, as disclosed in the latest available audited financial 
statements for the year ended 30 June 2018, amounted to Rs. 67.410 million. (30 June 2017: Rs. 64.872  million)

 
6.1.4.1 The Company has maintained provision amounting to Rs. 25 million in respect of SMPL. The key information and ratios of 

SMPL in addition to information disclosed in note 6.1.5 are as follows:
30 June 30 June

2018 2017
(Rupees)

Net equity Rupees   67,410,059   64,872,230 
Current ratio Percentage 85.19   96.7 
Cash flows Rupees   330,905   (360,448)

6.1.5 Summarised financial information based on latest available audited financial statements of the subsidiaries are as follows:

30 June 2018
SAIL MAIL SMPL HAWL

----------------------------- (Percentage) -----------------------------
Shareholding % 51.28% 59.38% 100% 81.26%

----------------------------- (Rupees) -----------------------------

Non-current assets   288,198,042   103,395,851   -     1,421,927,924 
Current assets   296,499,224   165,227,373   68,210,733   533,457,459 
Non-Current liabilities   17,827,547   8,180,981   -     36,339,781 
Current liabilities   49,140,936   21,260,484   800,674   509,979,483 
Net assets   517,728,783   239,181,759   67,410,059   1,409,066,119 
Revenue   355,145,466   165,332,389   -     -   
Profit / (loss) after tax   55,130,026   37,569,262   2,537,829   (8,539,073)
Other comprehensive income   -     -     -     -   
Total comprehensive income   55,130,026   37,569,262   2,537,829   (8,539,073)

6.1.6 The related loss on the above transactions (6.1.1, 6.1.2 and 6.1.3) is recognized in the consolidated financial statements 
prepared by the Company.

6.1.7 Investments in subsidiaries have been made in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2017.

6. LONG TERM INVESTMENTS
30 June 30 June

Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)

Investments in subsidiary companies - unquoted 6.1   1,184,960,000   575,000,000 
Less: Provision for impairment in SMPL 6.1.4   (25,000,000)   (25,000,000)
Net investment in subsidiary companies   1,159,960,000   550,000,000 

Investment in associate - listed
Treet Corporation Limited 6.2   342,235,065   334,652,655 

Held to maturity
Investment in Pakistan Investment Bonds 6.3   -     193,233,321 

  1,502,195,065   1,077,885,976 

6.1 Investment in subsidiary companies

30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2018 2017 Note 2018 2017 2018 2017
(Number of shares) Unquoted (% of holding) (Rupees)

Specialized Autoparts Industries (Private) Limited (SAIL)
( 17,500,000 ) ( 17,500,000 )   (Chief Executive - Munir K. Bana) 6.1.1 91% 100% ( 175,000,000 )  ( 175,000,000 )        

Multiple Autoparts Industries (Private) Limited (MAIL)
( 7,500,000 )   ( 7,500,000 )     (Chief Executive - Munir K. Bana) 6.1.2 92% 100% ( 75,000,000 )    ( 75,000,000 )          

Hi Tech Alloy Wheels Limited 
(formerly Hi-Tech Autoparts (Private) Limited) 

( 85,996,000 ) ( 25,000,000 )   (Chief Executive - Munir K. Bana) 6.1.3 80% 100% ( 859,960,000 )  ( 250,000,000 )        

Specialized Motorcycles (Private) Limited (SMPL) 
( 7,500,000 )   ( 7,500,000 )     (Chief Executive - Munir K. Bana) 6.1.4 100% 100% ( 75,000,000 )    ( 75,000,000 )          

( 1,184,960,000 ) ( 575,000,000 )        

6.1.1 In the month of February,  SAIL passed a special resolution and offered 15 million ordinary shares through a right issue to 
the existing shareholders in the proportion of their shareholding, at an exercise price of Rs. 10 per share (i.e. face value). 
The existing shareholders (including Loads Limited) renounced the offer on 16 March 2018 and empowered the Board 
of SAIL to offer the shares to others as advised by the Board of SAIL. On 21 March 2018, the Board of SAIL passed a 
resolution and offered the shares to Hi-Tech Alloy Wheels Limited (HAWL) at the same exercise price of Rs. 10 per share 
(face value). At the date of offer, HAWL was a wholly owned subsidiary of Loads Limited. HAWL fully subscribed the offer 
and on 23 April 2018, the shares were issued to HAWL. The return of allotment was filed on 25 April 2018. As at 30 June 
2018, the break-up value of SAIL was Rs. 15.96 per share (30 June 2017: Rs. 17.86 per share).

 
6.1.2 In the month of February, MAIL passed a special resolution and offered 5 million ordinary shares through a right issue to the 

existing shareholders in the proportion of their shareholding, at an exercise price of Rs.10 per share (i.e. face value). The 
existing shareholders (including Loads Limited) renounced the offer on 16 March 2018 and empowered the Board of MAIL 
to offer the shares to others as advised by the Board of MAIL. On 21 March 2018, the Board of MAIL passed a resolution 
and offered the shares to Hi-Tech Alloy Wheels Limited (HAWL) at the same exercise price of Rs. 10 per share (face value). 
At the date of offer, HAWL was a wholly owned subsidiary of Loads Limited. HAWL fully subscribed the offer and on 23 April 
2018, the shares were issued to HAWL. The return of allotment was filed on 25 April 2018. As at 30 June 2018, the break-up 
value of MAIL was Rs. 19.13 per share (30 June 2017: Rs. 20.22 per share).

 
6.1.3 During the year, HAWL offered 81 million ordinary shares through right issue (first right issue) to the existing shareholders 

in the proportion of their existing shareholding, at an exercise price of Rs. 10 per share (i.e. face value). Loads Limited 
subscribed to 61 million ordinary shares and empowered the Board of HAWL to offer the remaining 20 million ordinary 
shares to others as advised by the Board of HAWL. On 12 January 2018, the Board of HAWL passed a resolution and 
offered 15 million and 5 million shares to SAIL and MAIL respectively at the same exercise price of Rs. 10 per share (face 
value). At the date of offer, HAWL was a wholly owned subsidiary of Loads Limited. SAIL and MAIL fully subscribed the 
offers and on 12 February 2018, the shares were issued to SAIL and MAIL. The return of allotment was filed on 13 February 
2018.

 



Annual Report 2018
Loads Limited126 127

Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018

Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018

6.2.5 Summarised financial information based on un-audited financial information for the nine months period ended 31 March 
2018 is as follows:

(Rs. in '000)

Non-current assets   13,411,870 
Current assets   6,114,314 
Non-Current liabilities   2,085,586 
Current liabilities   9,414,069 
Net assets   8,026,529 
Revenue   6,777,690 
Profit after tax   60,355 
Other comprehensive income   -   
Total comprehensive income   60,355 

6.3 Investment in Pakistan Investment Bonds (PIBs) - held to maturity

Ζssue date Rate Tenor Maturit\  )ace value  Amorti]ed cost 
as at 30 June 

2018 
 As at 1 Jul\ 

2017 
 Purchased 
durinJ the 

\ear 

 Matured � 
sold durinJ 

the \ear 

 As at 30 June 
2018 

 ----------------------------------------------- (Rupees) ----------------------------------------------- 

�9 DecemEer 
�016

7.75� 5 Years
�9 DecemEer 

�0�1
( 100,000,000) ( -  )            ( (100,000,000) ( -  )                     ( -  )                      

�1 April �016 8.75� 10 Years �1 April �0�6 ( 80,000,000) - 50,000,000-( (130,000,000) ( -  )                     ( -  )                      

( 180,000,000) - 50,000,000-( (230,000,000) ( -  )                     ( -  )                      

6.3.1 Details of PIBs sold during the year are as follows:

 

30 June 2018

Ζssue date Tenor Maturit\  'ate of sale Carr\inJ value Sale proceeds (/oss) on sale
----------------------- (Rupees) -----------------------

�9 DecemEer 
�016

5 Years  �9 
DecemEer

�0�1 

�9 March 
�018

( 106,990,644) ( 99,027,832)       ( (7,962,812)        

�1 April �016 10 Years  �1 April
�0�6 

 4 DecemEer 
�017 

( 141,246,143) ( 134,649,320)     ( (6,596,823)        

( 248,236,787) ( 233,677,152)     ( (14,559,635)      

7. STOCK-IN-TRADE 
30 June 30 June

Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)

Raw material and components 7.2 & 7.4  1,466,986,223   933,433,474 
Work-in-process  150,978,815   140,014,359 
Finished goods 7.3  49,683,031   110,143,067 

 1,667,648,069   1,183,590,900 

Allowance for inventory obsolescence 7.1   (4,889,326)   (1,623,406)
 1,662,758,743   1,181,967,494 

6.2 Investment in associate

30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2018 2017 Note 2018 2017

(Number of shares) Quoted (Rupees)

Treet Corporation Limited
  8,613,233   7,748,885 (Chief Executive Officer - Syed Shahid Ali) 6.2.1 & 6.2.3   342,235,065   334,652,655 

6.2.1 Movement in the carrying value of investment in associate is as follows:
30 June 30 June

Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)

Carrying amount at the beginning of the year   334,652,655   327,070,245 
Conversion from participation term certificate into ordinary shares 6.2.1.1   7,582,410   7,582,410 

  342,235,065   334,652,655 

6.2.1.1 In the current year, 128,205 shares (30 June 2017: 128,205) amounting to Rs. 7.58 million (30 June 2017: Rs. 7.58 million) 
were converted and issued to the Company at the rate of Rs. 59.14 per share, as per the prospectus of participation term 
certificate issued by Treet Corporation Limited (refer note 13.1.2).

6.2.2 Movement in the carrying value of investment in associate is as follows:
30 June 30 June

2018 2017
(Rupees)

Quoted 
Treet Corporation Limited   294,486,436   440,756,579 

6.2.2.1 The recoverable amount of investment in associate was based on its value in use, determined by discounting the future 
cash flows to be generated from the continuing use. The carrying value was determined to be lower than its recoverable 
amount and therefore no impairment loss was recognized in these consolidated financial statements. The key assumptions 
used in the estimation of value in use includes discount rate of 12.5% and growth rate of 10%.

 
 The discount rate was a pre-tax measure based on the rate of government bonds issued by the government, adjusted 

for a risk premium to reflect both the increased risk of investing in equities generally and the systematic risk of specific 
investments.

 
6.2.3 This includes 8,344,644 shares (30 June 2017: 7,620,680 shares) having an aggregate market value of Rs. 285.303 million 

( 30 June 2017: Rs. 433.464 million), which have been kept in broker’s sub-account which is in the name of the Company. 
All other shares are kept in the Central Depository Company (CDC) account of the Company.

 
6.2.4 The Company’s holding in associate of 5.42% (30 June 2017: 5.46%) is considered associate by virtue of common 

directorship i.e. (5 directors are common out of 8 directors).
 



Annual Report 2018
Loads Limited128 129

Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018

Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018

9.1.1 This represents receivable against sale of assets to a customer. The amount will be recovered over a period of two ears.
 
9.1.2 This represents discounting at the rate ranging from 6.8% to 7.5% (30 June 2017: 6.8%).

10. LOANS AND ADVANCES 
30 June 30 June

Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)

Advance to suppliers 10.1   131,825,410   73,389,159 
Loans to employees - considered good and unsecured 10.2   3,640,533   3,617,172 
Loans to workers - considered good and unsecured 10.3   7,927,510   4,875,319 
Advance salary   2,821,326   2,869,290 

  146,214,779   84,750,940 

10.1 This includes advance amounting to Rs. 105.47 million (30 June 2017: Rs. 40.43 million ) given to clearing agents for 
payment of clearing charges and other import related expenses to be incurred upon receipt of import consignment.

10.2 Loans to employees - considered good and unsecured
30 June 30 June

Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)

Loans to employees 10.2.1   7,855,598   4,321,052 
Less: Long term portion  9   (4,215,065)   (703,880)
Current portion of loans to employees   3,640,533   3,617,172 

10.2.1 This represents loans provided to executive staff having maturity of one to two years. These loans carry mark-up at the rate 
ranging from 7% to 10% (30 June 2017: 7% to 10%) per annum.

 
10.3 This represents loans provided to workers for personal expenses having maturity of twelve months. These loans carry 

mark-up at the rate of 7% (30 June 2017: 10%) per annum.
 
11. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

30 June 30 June
Note 2018 2017

(Rupees)

Unclaimed input sales tax 11.1   199,546,521   164,752,037 
Trade and other deposits   9,619,880   10,955,530 
Prepayments - provident fund 11.2   8,701,174   5,524,464 
Prepayments   2,388,451   2,306,066 
Other receivables   4,287,983   3,097,582 

  224,544,009   186,635,679 

11.1 This represents input sales tax not claimed due to restriction of input tax to be adjusted up to ninety percent of output tax 
as per section 8B of Sales Tax Act, 1990.

 
11.2 All investments in collective investment schemes, listed equity and listed debt securities out of provident fund have been 

made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the conditions specified thereunder.

7.1 Allowance for inventory obsolescence
30 June 30 June

Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)

Opening balance   1,623,406   -   
Charge for the year  25   3,265,920   1,623,406 
Closing balance   4,889,326   1,623,406 

7.2 This includes raw material in transit and in possession of Company’s subsidiaries as at 30 June 2018 amounting to Rs. 
314.159 million (30 June 2017: Rs. 216.58 million) and Rs. 412 million (30 June 2017: Rs. 328 million) respectively.

 
7.3 This includes finished goods in possession of Company’s subsidiaries as at 30 June 2018 amounting to Rs. 28 million (30 

June 2017: Rs. 36.12 million).
 
7.4 Raw material held with toll manufacturers as at 30 June 2018 amounted to Rs. 51 million (30 June 2017: Rs. 108 million).
 
7.5 Inventories are subject to ranking charge and first pari passu hypothecation charge of maximum Rs. 534 million and Rs. 

200 million (30 June 2017: Rs. 534 million and Rs. 234 million) respectively. These charges are against different financing 
facilities obtained from various banks (note 21).

8. TRADE DEBTS - net 
30 June 30 June

Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)

Unsecured
Considered good    350,809,641   223,972,326 
Considered doubtful   -     -   

8.1   350,809,641   223,972,326 

8.1 For ageing of trade debts, refer note 34.2.

9. LONG TERM LOANS AND RECEIVABLES
30 June 30 June

Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)

Long term portion of receivable against sale of assets 9.1   14,042,531   26,682,402 
Long term portion of loan to employees 10.2   4,215,065   703,880 

  18,257,596   27,386,282 

9.1 Receivable against sale of assets

Opening balance   60,229,777   -   
Proceeds of assets sold to customer during the year 4.1.7   35,765,768   68,270,192 
Mark-up accrued during the year 9.1.2 & 28   3,514,240   1,105,361 
Less: Installments received during the year   (38,362,846)   (9,145,776)

9.1.1   61,146,939   60,229,777 

Less: Current portion   (47,104,408)   (33,547,375)
Long term portion of receivable   14,042,531   26,682,402 
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 * All shares have a nominal value of Rs. 10 each, except for the shares of Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited and Thal Limited which 
have face value of Rs. 5 each. PTC of Treet Corporation Limited has a face value of Rs. 30 per certificate.

13.1.1 Movement in carrying value of PTC is as follows:
30 June 30 June

Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)

Opening balance   47,527,425   42,124,508 
Principal cash redemption 13.1.2   (274,725)   (274,725)
Principal conversion to ordinary shares 13.1.2   (7,582,410)   (7,582,410)

  39,670,290   34,267,373 
Unrealised (loss) / gain for the year   (6,721,605)   13,260,052 
Closing balance    32,948,685   47,527,425 

13.1.2 These are mandatorily convertible into ordinary shares of Treet Corporation Limited at the ratio of 2 PTCs into 1 ordinary 
share in a period of 7 years. Principal amount of PTC will be reduced through redemption (in cash and through share 
conversion). The principal redemption through cash is Re. 0.15 per PTC per annum from year 2013 to year 2019 and 
principal redemption through share conversion is 0.07 share per PTC per annum from year 2013 to year 2018 and 0.08 
share for the year 2019. During the year, principal redeemed in cash amounted to Rs. 0.27 million and principal redeemed 
through share conversion amounted to Rs. 7.58 million (also refer note 6.2.1).

13.2 Available-for-sale

 The Company holds investment in ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each, in the following listed investee companies:

 

 

30 June 30 June 30 June 2018 30 June �017

2018 �017 Name of investee compan\ Cost Market 
value

8nrealised Jain Market value

 (Number of shares) --------------------------------------(Rupees)---------------------------------------

Ordinar\ shares - 4uoted 

- 235,386-     - �35�386-    Tri-Pack Films /imited ( 17,188,363) ( 32,247,882) ( 15,059,519)      ( 5��7�6�464)        

- 152-             - 15�-            =I/ /imited ( 5,330)           ( 14,071)       ( 8,741)                ( �1��80)                

( 17,193,693) ( 32,261,953) ( 15,068,260)      ( 5��747�744)        

 
13.2.1 Unrealized (loss) / gain on re-measurement of available-for-sale
 investments

30 June 30 June
2018 2017

(Rupees)

 Market value of investments   32,261,953   52,747,744 
 Less : Cost of investments   (17,193,693)   (17,193,693)

  15,068,260   35,554,051 

 Less: Unrealized gain on re-measurement of available-for-sale
 investments at beginning of the year   (35,554,051)   (25,633,737)
Unrealized (loss) / gain on re-measurement of available-for-sale 
investments for the year   (20,485,791)   9,920,314 

12. TAXATION - net
30 June 30 June

Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)

Opening refundable   162,615,180   143,468,552 
Refunds / adjusted during the year   (45,715,058)   -   

  116,900,122   143,468,552 

Advance tax paid during the year   68,184,308   53,236,055 
Provision for taxation  30   (38,287,839)   (34,089,427)
Closing refundable   146,796,591   162,615,180 

13. INVESTMENTS

At fair value through profit or loss - at initial recognition 13.1   33,821,388   48,673,998 
Available-for-sale 13.2   32,261,953   52,747,744 

  66,083,341   101,421,742 

13.1 At fair value through profit or loss - at initial recognition
 

 

30 June 30 June 30 June 2018 30 June �017
2018 �017 Name of investee compan\ Carr\inJ 

value
Market value 8nrealised 

(loss) � Jain
 Market value

 (Number of shares � Ordinar\ shares - 4uoted Note -------------------------------------- (Rupees) ---------------------------------------
 certificates)

( 1)             ( 1)              Agriautos Industries /imited ( 431)              ( 295)               ( (136)              ( 431)               

( 1)             ( 1)              Al-Ghazi Tractors /imited 
 ( 644)              ( 680)               ( 36)                 ( 644)               

( 1)             ( 1)              Atlas Battery /imited ( 900)              ( 410)               ( (490)              ( 900)               

( 1)             ( 1)              Atlas Honda /imited ( 604)              ( 510)               ( (94)                ( 604)               

( 1)             ( 1)              The General Tyre 	 RuEEer
  Company of Pakistan /imited ( 304)              ( 166)               ( (138)              ( 304)               

( 1)             ( 1)              Honda Atlas Cars (Pakistan) /imited ( 868)              ( 316)               ( (552)              ( 868)               

( 1)             ( 1)              Thal /imited 
 ( 606)              ( 478)               ( (128)              ( 606)               

( 230)         ( �30)          Baluchistan :heels /imited ( 34,270)        ( 24,888)          ( (9,382)           ( 34��70)          

( 315)         ( 315)          Ghandhara Nissan /imited ( 70,875)        ( 56,596)          ( (14,279)        ( 70�875)          

( 150)         ( 150)          Hino Pak Motors /imited ( 196,500)      ( 121,157)        ( (75,343)        ( 196�500)        

( 200)         ( �00)          Indus Motor Company /imited ( 358,800)      ( 284,292)        ( (74,508)        ( 358�800)        

( 272)         ( �7�)          Millat Tractors /imited ( 373,848)      ( 323,152)        ( (50,696)        ( 373�848)        

( 63)           ( 63)            2il  	 Gas Development Company
  /imited ( 8,863)           ( 9,804)            ( 941)               ( 8�863)            

( 127)         ( 1�7)          Pak Suzuki Motor Company /imited ( 99,060)        ( 49,959)          ( (49,101)        ( 99�060)          

Participation term certificate
(PTC) - 4uoted 

( 1,831,500) -1�831�500- Treet Corporation /imited 
 13.1.1 ( 39,670,290) ( 32,948,685)  ( (6,721,605)   ( 47�5�7�4�5)  
( 40,816,863) ( 33,821,388)  ( (6,995,475)   ( 48�673�998)  
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Name of the 
court, agency 
or authority

Description of the factual basis of the proceeding and relief 
sought

Principal 
parties

Date 
instituted

Sindh High
Court

Initially, as per the Gas Infrastructure and Development Cess Act,
2011 (the Act), certain Companies as specified in the Act
(including SSGC) shall collect and pay Gas Infrastructure and
Development Cess (GID Cess). As per the second schedule of
the Act, GID Cess of Rs. 13 per MMBTU was applicable to the
Company. Subsequently, through Finance Bill 2012 -2013, the
rate of GID Cess increased to Rs. 50 per MMBTU. On 3 August
2012, Companies in the industry filed a suit on the ground that
the rate of GID Cess has been enhanced without any lawful
justification and authority. The Honourable High Court of Sindh
vide its ad-interim order dated 6 September 2012, restrained
SSGC from charging GID Cess above Rs. 13 per MMBTU. On 31
December 2013, the Ministry of Petroleum and Natural
Resources, Government of Pakistan increased the GID Cess
applicable to Rs. 150 per MMBTU with immediate effect. On 22
May 2015, the Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) Act,
2015 was promulgated whereby cess rate of Rs. 100 per
MMBTU and Rs. 200 per MMBTU were fixed for industrial and
captive power consumers, respectively. The GIDC Act, 2015 was
made applicable with immediate effect superseding the GIDC
Act, 2011 and GIDC Ordinance, 2014. The Sui Southern Gas
Company Limited (SSGC) has also not yet billed GID Cess amount
pertaining to periods prior to the promulgation of GIDC Act, 2015.
On 24 May 2015, an ad-interim stay order was obtained by
Companies in the industry against the GIDC Act, 2015 from the
High Court of Sindh. This stay order has restrained SSGCL from
charging and / or recovering the cess under the GIDC Act, 2015
till the final decision on this matter. A committee has been formed
by the Federal Government to review the anomalies of GIDC Act,
2015.

In view of above stated facts and opinion of legal advisor, the
Company is confident of a favourable outcome. However, as an
abundant caution, the Company has recorded a full provision of
Rs.2.45 million (30 June 2017: Rs. 1.66 million) in the financial
statements.

Company,
Sui Northern,
Sui Southern
and Others

3 August 2012

Federal Board 
of Revenue 

(FBR)

Tax Year 2016 was selected for audit by the tax authorities and
an Order was passed whereby refund of Rs 50.510 million was
allowed. The Company filed a Rectification application on 17
August 2017 against short refund determination of Rs. 7.62
million out of which refund of Rs. 7.47 million was subsequently
determined after verification. No further appeal has been made by
the Company. The said refunds of Rs. 50.510 million and Rs. 7.47
million have been adjusted against advance tax liability for Tax
year 2018.z 

Company &
FBR

22 June 2017

13.2.2 The above investments include 182,000 shares of Tri-Pack Films Limited having an aggregate market value of Rs. 24.9 
million which have been pledged with financial institutions as securities against borrowing facilities.

14. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
30 June 30 June

Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)

Term deposit receipts 14.1   -     162,000,000 

Cash in hand   697,999   248,536 

With banks
- in current accounts   8,261,844   11,316,666 
- in saving account 14.2   -     42,405,974 

  8,261,844   53,722,640 
  8,959,843   215,971,176 

14.1 These represents term deposit receipts placed at the rate ranging from of 5.8% to 6% (30 June 2017: 5.8% to 6%) per 
annum having original maturity of less than three months. During the year, the Company purchased TDRs amounting to Rs. 
566 million (30 June 2017: Rs. 162) having original maturity of 1 month. This was enchased at the maturity date.

 
14.2 This carry mark-up at the rate Nil (30 June 2017: 3.75%) per annum.
 
15 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
 
15.1 Contingencies
 
15.1.1 Description of legal proceedings
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17. SHARE CAPITAL

17.1 Authorised share capital

 Authorised share capital comprises of 200,000,000  (30 June 2017: 200,000,000) Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each. 

17.2 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP CAPITAL

30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2018 2017 2018 2017
(Number of shares) Ordinary shares (Rupees)

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid in cash
  53,770,000   53,770,000   537,700,000   537,700,000 

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
  97,480,000   83,730,000   issued as fully paid bonus shares   974,800,000   837,300,000 

  151,250,000   137,500,000   1,512,500,000   1,375,000,000 

17.3 The break-up of share capital is as follows:

 

30 June 2018 30 June �017
Number of � of +oldinJ NumEer of � of Holding

Name of Shareholders shares shares

Syed Shahid Ali (Chairman) ( 62,819,872)    41�53� ( 57�108�975)    41.53�
Treet Corporation /imited (Associate) ( 18,895,057)    12�49� ( 17�177�3�5)    1�.49�
Directors ( 4,454,475)      2�95� ( 4�04���30)      �.94�
2ther shareholders ( 65,080,596)    43�03� ( 59�171�470)    43.04�

( 151,250,000) 100� ( 137�500�000) 100�

17.4 Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding
30 June 30 June

2018 2017
(Rupees)

Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares at beginning of the year   137,500,000   75,000,000 
Issue of ordinary shares through IPO   -     50,000,000 
Issue of bonus shares at the rate of 10% (i.e. 10 shares for
every 100 shares held)   13,750,000   12,500,000 
Ordinary shares at end of the year   151,250,000   137,500,000 

Name of the 
court, agency 
or authority

Description of the factual basis of the proceeding and relief 
sought

Principal 
parties

Date 
instituted

Federal Board 
of Revenue 

(FBR)

Tax Year 2017 was selected for audit by the Tax authorities and
a notice dated 28 March 2018 was received which has been
responded along with the provision of required details,
documents and evidences. Proceedings in this regard have not
yet been finalized and hence no provision has been recognized
in these unconsolidated financial statements.

Company &
FBR

6 March 2018

Federal Board 
of Revenue 

(FBR)

In respect of Tax Year 2017, a notice dated 31 January 2018
was issued by the Tax authorities for monitoring of withholding
taxes which has been responded and requisitioned details, 
document, and evidences have been filed by the Company.
Proceeding in this regard have not have not yet been finalized.

Company &
FBR

31 January 2018

15.2 Commitments
30 June 30 June

2018 2017
(Rupees)

15.2.1 Guarantees issued by banks on behalf of the Company   2,632,428   450,000 

15.2.2 Letters of credit issued by various banks on behalf of the Company in
ordinary course of the business (outstanding at year end)   604,132,070   443,902,000 

15.2.3 The Company has issued post dated cheques to Total Parco Limited as security deposits amounting to Rs. 4.34 million (30 
June 2017: Rs. 3.74 million).

 
16. PRELIMINARY EXPENSES
 
 This represents expenses incurred for the purpose of listing, written off from share premium account in accordance with the 

section 83(2)(a) of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (Repealed with the enactment of the Companies Act, 2017 on May 30, 
2017). Breakup of preliminary expenses are as follows:

30 June 30 June
2018 2017

 (Rupees) 

Advisory and arrangement fee for IPO  -    65,829,951 
Brokerage commission  -    16,635,710 
Underwriting commission  -    7,381,250 
Advertisement and printing expense  -    9,266,369 
Regulatory charges  -    2,098,986 
Bank commission  -    2,886,115 
Other expenses  -    549,041 

 -    104,647,422 
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18.1 These represent finance leases entered into for vehicles. Monthly payments of leases carry pre-determined mark-up rates 
include finance charge at fixed rate of 9% (30 June 2017: 9%) and variable rates ranging from 6 months KIBOR plus 2% to 
5.5% per annum (30 June 2017: 6 months KIBOR plus 2% to 5.5% per annum) determined on semi-annual basis for future 
rentals. These leases are having maturities from September 2018 to February 2020 (30 June 2017: September 2017 to 
February 2020).

19. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

 The deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income tax in the same jurisdiction, and the law allows net 
settlement. Therefore, they have been offset in the statement of financial position as follows:

30 June 30 June
2018 2017

(Rupees)

Deferred tax liability   69,996,547   61,490,271 
Deferred tax asset   (20,935,785)   (17,212,814)

  49,060,762   44,277,457 

19.1 Deferred tax comprises of:
 

Taxable temporary differences arising in respect of:

-  Accelerated tax depreciation   69,996,547   61,490,271 
-  Finance lease arrangements   (2,812,087)   (3,150,588)

Deductible temporary differences arising in respect of:

-  Allowance for inventory obsolescence   (1,417,905)   (487,022)
-  Provision against compensated absences   (3,216,125)   (3,203,467)
-  Remeasurement of defined benefit liability   (6,239,668)   (2,871,737)
-  Provision for impairment against investment
     in Specialized Motorcycles (Private) Limited   (7,250,000)   (7,500,000)

  49,060,762   44,277,457 

19.2 Analysis of change in deferred tax

 

 

30 June 2018 30 June �017

%alance at 1 
Jul\ 2017

RecoJni]ed 
in profit and 

loss

RecoJni]ed in 
other 

comprehensive 
income

%alance at 
30 June 2018

Balance at 1 July 
�016

Recognized in 
profit and loss

Recognized in 
other 

comprehensive 
income

Balance at 30 
June �017

----------------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees) -----------------------------------------------------------------------------

Taxable temporary differences

- Accelerated tax depreciation ( 61,490,271) ( 8,506,276)    ( -  )                      ( 69,996,547) ( 45�1���840)  ( ( 16�367�431)      ( -ɉɉ)                    ( 61�490��71)     

- Finance lease arrangements ( (3,150,588)  ( 338,501)        ( -  )                      ( (2,812,087)  ( 3��91�514)     ( ( (6�44��10�)       ( -ɉɉ)                    ( (3�150�588)      

Deductible temporary differences

- Allowance for inventory oEsolescence ( (487,022)     ( (930,883)      ( -  )                      ( (1,417,905)  ( (�15�830)       ( ( (�71�19�)           ( -ɉɉ)                    ( (487�0��)          

- Provision against compensated aEsences ( (3,203,467)  ( (12,658)         ( -  )                      ( (3,216,125)  ( (��4�6�6�3)   ( ( (776�844)           ( -ɉɉ)                    ( (3��03�467)      

- Provision for Ead deEts ( -  )               ( -  )                 ( -  )                      ( -  )                ( (1�5�738)       ( ( 1�5�738)            ( -ɉɉ)                    ( -ɉɉ)                   

- Remeasurement of defined Eenefit liaEility ( (2,871,737)  ( -  )                 ( (3,367,931)         ( (6,239,668)  ( (1�807�188)   ( ( -ɉɉ)                    ( (1�064�549)       ( (��871�737)      

- Provision for impairment against

investment in Specialized Motorcycles

(Private) /imited ( (7,500,000)  ( 250,000)        ( -  )                      ( (7,250,000)  ( (7�750�000)   ( ( �50�000)            ( -ɉɉ)                    ( (7�500�000)      

( 44,277,457) ( 8,151,236)    ( (3,367,931)         ( 49,060,762) ( 36�088�975)      ( 9��53�031)         ( (1�064�549)       ( 44��77�457)     

17.5 Utlization of IPO proceeds
 
 On 31 August 2016, the Company through its prospectus gave the financial plan for the utilization of IPO proceeds. The 

detail of project and proceeds utilization was disclosed in note 5.13.1 of the prospectus as under; 
(Rupees)

Financial plan

Expected IPO Proceeds against offering 50,000,000 ordinary
shares of Rs. 10 each at offer price of Rs. 15 each   750,000,000 

Utilization for:
  -Expansion and Modernization   (550,000,000)
  -Working capital   (200,000,000)

  -   

 The strike price of the offered shares was determined through book building at Rs. 34 per share, hence a total of Rs. 1,700 
million was received by the Company. Out of this amount, Rs. 1,150 million (200 million as per plan and Rs. 950 million, the 
excess amount received) was used for improving  working capital and remaining Rs. 550 million was kept for expansion 
and modernization. Up till 30 June 2018, the Company had invested Rs. 527.43 million in capital assets for expansion and 
modernization as committed in prospectus and the remaining amount was invested in August 2018.

 Note (Rupees)
Actual utilization

Actual IPO Proceeds against offering 50,000,000 ordinary
  shares of Rs. 10 each at strike price of Rs. 34 each   1,700,000,000 

Utilized up till 30 June 2018
  -Expansion and Modernization   (527,436,543)
  -Working capital (1,150,000,000)

 17.5.1   (1,677,436,543)

Remaining (utilized subsequently)  17.5.2   22,563,457 

17.5.1 This includes investment in machinery amounting to Rs. 72.8 million which was incurred before realization of IPO proceeds 
as also disclosed in the prospectus.

 
17.5.2 The remaining amount was utilized subsequently in the month of August 2018.

18. LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT TO FINANCE LEASE

 The amount of future lease payments and the period in which these become due are as follows:

 

30 June 2018 30 June 2017
Minimum Lease Finance  Principal  Minimum Lease Finance  Principal  

Payments charges  outstanding Payments charges outstanding
 ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------  (Rupees) ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Not later than one year ( 14,387,732 )     ( 338,584 )        ( 14,049,148 ) ( 14,303,353 )    ( 1,045,265 )       ( 13,258,088 )   

Later than one year but not later than five years ( 5,041,382 )       ( 27,178 )      ( 5,014,204 )  ( 9,361,906 )      ( 426,888 )          ( 8,935,018 )     
( 19,429,114 )     ( 365,762 )      ( 19,063,352 ) ( 23,665,259 )    ( 1,472,153 )       ( 22,193,106 )   
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20.2.4 Amounts recognised in the other 
   comprehensive income 

 

Re-measurement loss � (gain) on oEligation ��.�.�.1 ( 6,061,632)  ( 653,715)      ( 6,715,347)  ( 5�849�718)   ( 1�001�008)   ( 6�850�7�6)   
Re-measurement of fair value of plan assets ��.�.�.� ( 3,562,288)  ( 1,335,919)  ( 4,898,207)  ( (1�841�150)  ( (1�461�081)  ( (3�30���31)  
Re-measurement loss � (gain) for the year ( 9,623,920)  ( 1,989,634)  ( 11,613,554) ( 4�008�568)   ( (460�073)     ( 3�548�495)   

20.2.4.1 Re-measurement loss / (gain) on obligation:

 

/oss � (gain) due to change in financial assumptions ( 42,906)        ( 19,792)        ( 62,698)        ( 15�6�8)        ( 8�101)          ( �3�7�9)        
/oss � (gain) due to change in experience
  adMustments ( 6,018,726)  ( 633,923)      ( 6,652,649)  ( 5�834�090)   ( 99��907)      ( 6�8�6�997)   

( 6,061,632)  ( 653,715)      ( 6,715,347)  ( 5�849�718)   ( 1�001�008)   ( 6�850�7�6)   

20.2.4.2 Re-measurement on plan assets - Net income /
    (expense) of plan assets over interest income:

 

Actual return on plan assets ( (1,055,144) ( (277,423)    ( (1,332,567) ( 3�931�781)   ( ��359�960)   ( 6��91�741)   
Interest income on plan assets ( (2,507,144) ( (1,058,496) ( (3,565,640) ( (��090�631)  ( (898�879)     ( (��989�510)  

( (3,562,288) ( (1,335,919) ( (4,898,207) ( 1�841�150)   ( 1�461�081)   ( 3�30���31)   

20.2.5 Net recognized liability / (asset)

 

Net asset at Eeginning of the year ( 1,014,592)  ( (727,197)    ( 287,395)      ( (4��13�875)  ( (635��71)     ( ( (4�849�146)  
Expense recognised in profit and loss account ( 1,349,892)  ( 368,605)      ( 1,718,497)  ( 1��19�899)   ( 368�147)      ( 1�588�046)   
ContriEution paid into the plan ((17,656,842) ( (1,279,812) ((18,936,654) ( -ɉɉ)               ( -ɉɉ)               ( -ɉɉ)               
Re-measurement losses recognised in other
comprehensive income ( 9,623,920)  ( 1,989,634)  ( 11,613,554) ( 4�008�568)   ( (460�073)     ( 3�548�495)   
Net liaEility � (asset) at end of the year ( (5,668,438) ( 351,230)      ( (5,317,208) ( 1�014�59�)   ( (7�7�197)     ( �87�395)      

20.3 Plan assets comprise of the following:

 

30 June 2018 30 June �017
([ecutives Non- Executives Non-

([ecutives Executives
------------------------------------------------ (Rupees) ------------------------------------------------

Government securities ( 13,268,124) ( 2,434,372)  ( 16�8���1�5) ( 3�496�453)   
Term deposit receipts ( -  )              ( -  )              ( 3��350)        ( 13�658)        
Equity shares ( 11,222,524) ( 7,909,212)  ( 13�457�700) ( 8�891�370)   
2thers ( 6,716,143)  ( 2,855,482)  ( ��038�065)   ( 1��56�537)   
Fair value of plan assets at end of the year ( 31,206,791) ( 13,199,066) ( 3��350��40) ( 13�658�018) 

 
20.4 Sensitivity analysis for actuarial assumptions
 
 The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is as follows:

 

30 June 2018 30 June 2017
(Rupees) (Rupees)

Executives Non- Executives Non-
Executives Executives

Discount rate +1% ( 23,901,272 )    ( 12,766,112 ) ( 31,870,792 )       ( 12,129,017 ) 
Discount rate -1% ( 27,398,193 )    ( 14,406,606 ) ( 35,061,024 )       ( 13,811,730 ) 
Salary increase +1% ( 27,417,254 )    ( 14,415,069 ) ( 35,078,280 )       ( 13,820,370 ) 
Salary increase -1% ( 23,855,577 )    ( 12,744,249 ) ( 31,828,872 )       ( 12,106,595 ) 

19.3 A change in the corporation income tax rate ranging from 30 % to 29% per cent was enacted on 1 July 2018, effective from 
the same date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities on temporary differences are measured at 29%. 

 
20. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - gratuity
 
 The actuarial valuation for staff gratuity has been carried out as at 30 June 2018 on the basis of projected unit credit method 

as per the requirements of approved accounting standard - International Accounting Standard 19, “Employee Benefits”. The 
assumptions used in actuarial valuation are as follows:

 
20.1 Actuarial assumptions

30 June 30 June
2018 2017

Financial assumptions
-  Discount rate used for year end obligation 9.00% 7.75%
-  Discount rate used for interest cost in profit and loss account 7.75% 7.25%
-  Expected rate of increase in salary level 8.00% 6.75%

Demographic assumptions
-  Mortality rate SLIC 2001 - 

2005
SLIC 2001 - 

2005

20.2 Amount recognised in the balance sheet 

 

30 June 2018 30 June �017
([ecutives Non-  Total Executives Non-  Total 

([ecutives Executives
Note ------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees) -------------------------------------------------------

Present value of defined Eenefit oEligation ��.�.1 ( 25,538,353) ( 13,550,296) ( 39,088,649) ( 33�364�83�) ( 1��930�8�1) ( 46��95�653) 
Fair value of plan assets ��.�.� ((31,206,791) ((13,199,066) ((44,405,857) ( (3��350��40) ( (13�658�018) ( (46�008��58)
Net (asset) � liaEility at end of the year ( (5,668,438) ( 351,230)      ( (5,317,208) ( 1�014�59�)   ( (7�7�197)     ( �87�395)      

20.2.1 Movement in present value of defined benefit obligation:

 

2pening Ealance ( 33,364,832) ( 12,930,821) ( 46,295,653) ( �4�6���414) ( 11�763�057) ( 36�385�471) 
Current service cost ( 1,958,886)  ( 481,589)      ( 2,440,475)  ( 1�540�551)   ( 454�089)      ( 1�994�640)   
Interest cost ( 1,898,150)  ( 945,512)      ( 2,843,662)  ( 1�769�979)   ( 81��937)      ( ��58��916)   
Benefits paid Ey the plan ((17,745,147) ( (1,461,341) ((19,206,488) ( (417�830)     ( (1�100��70)  ( (1�518�100)  
Re-measurements loss � (gain) on oEligation ( 6,061,632)  ( 653,715)      ( 6,715,347)  ( 5�849�718)   ( 1�001�008)   ( 6�850�7�6)   
Closing Ealance ( 25,538,353) ( 13,550,296) ( 39,088,649) ( 33�364�83�) ( 1��930�8�1) ( 46��95�653) 

20.2.2 Movement in the fair value of plan assets: 

 

2pening Ealance ( 32,350,240) ( 13,658,018) ( 46,008,258) ( �8�836��89) ( 1��398�3�8) ( 41��34�617) 
Interest income ( 2,507,144)  ( 1,058,496)  ( 3,565,640)  ( ��090�631)   ( 898�879)      ( ��989�510)   
ContriEution paid into the plan ( 17,656,842) ( 1,279,812)  ( 18,936,654) ( -ɉɉ)               ( -ɉɉ)               ( -ɉɉ)               
Benefits paid Ey the plan ((17,745,147) ( (1,461,341) ((19,206,488) ( (417�830)     ( (1�100��70)  ( (1�518�100)  
Re-measurements (loss) � gain on plan assets ( (3,562,288) ( (1,335,919) ( (4,898,207) ( 1�841�150)   ( 1�461�081)   ( 3�30���31)   
Closing Ealance ( 31,206,791) ( 13,199,066) ( 44,405,857) ( 3��350��40) ( 13�658�018) ( ( 46�008��58) 

20.2.3 Amounts recognised in the profit and loss account

 

Current service cost ( 1,958,886)  ( 481,589)      ( 2,440,475)  ( 1�540�551)   ( 454�089)      ( 1�994�640)   
Interest cost ( 1,898,150)  ( 945,512)      ( 2,843,662)  ( 1�769�979)   ( 81��937)      ( ��58��916)   
Interest income ( (2,507,144) ( (1,058,496) ( (3,565,640) ( (��090�631)  ( (898�879)     ( (��989�510)  
Expense for the year ( 1,349,892)  ( 368,605)      ( 1,718,497)  ( 1��19�899)   ( 368�147)      ( 1�588�046)   
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21. SHORT TERM FINANCING
30 June 30 June

Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)

Secured
Running finances under mark-up arrangements 21.1   1,173,799,354   28,395,236 
Islamic financing 21.2   150,000,000   -   
Short term loan 21.3   115,832,655   -   

  1,439,632,009   28,395,236 
21.1 Running finances under mark-up arrangements

30 June 30 June
Note 2018 2017

(Rupees)

JS Bank Limited   299,924,500   21,916,042 
Soneri Bank   109,599,997   3,120,575 
Meezan Bank   167,025,496   1,972,841 
Bank AL Habib Limited   8,206,558   1,385,778 
MCB Bank Limited   174,745,807   -   
Habib Metropolitan Bank   140,860,238   -   
Askari Bank   193,445,813   -   
Habib Bank Limited   9,076,373   -   
Soneri Bank - Local Bill discount   70,914,572 

21.1.1   1,173,799,354   28,395,236 

21.1.1 These facilities have been obtained from various banks for working capital requirements and are secured by charge over 
current and future assets of the Company, pledge of stock (shares), lien over import documents and title of ownership of 
goods imported under letters of credit. These facilities are expiring on various dates latest by 31 March 2019. The banks 
have imposed a condition that no objection certificate (NOC) should be obtained or bank dues should be cleared before 
declaring any dividend.

 
 These facilities carry mark-up at the rates ranging from 1 month KIBOR plus 0.5% to 6 month KIBOR plus 0.55% per 

annum (30 June 2017: 1 month KIBOR plus 0.5% to 6 month KIBOR plus 0.85% per annum).
 
 The aggregate available short term funded facilities amounted to Rs. 1,720 million (30 June 2017: Rs. 1,970 million) out of 

which Rs. 546.2 million (30 June 2017: 1,941.605 million) remained unavailed as at the reporting date.
 
21.2 This represents Islamic finance (Istisna) facility available from Al Baraka Bank and Meezan Bank having limits of Rs. 350 

million, for manufacturing of mufflers and exhaust system, spare parts, tools and equipment from local market and for 
working capital requirement. As at 30 June 2018, amount of Rs. 200 million (30 June 2017: Rs. 400 million) remained 
unutilised. This facility is secured by charge over current and future assets of the Company. These facilities carry mark-up 
at 6 month KIBOR plus 1 % per annum (30 June 2017: 6 month KIBOR plus 1.25 %) and is repayable maximum within 120 
days to 180 days of the disbursement date.

 
21.3 This represent short term loan facility availed from JS Bank having limit of Rs. 200 million, for working capital requirement of 

the Company. This facility is secured by charge over current and future assets of the Company. As at 30 June 2018, amount 
of Rs. 84.17 million (30 June 2017: Nil) remained unutilised. This facility carries mark-up at 1 month KIBOR plus 1 % per 
annum (30 June 2017: Nil) and is repayable maximum within 60 days of the disbursement date.

 
21.4 Facilities available for opening letters of credit / guarantees at 30 June 2018 amounted to Rs. 2,257.95 million (30 June 

2017: Rs. 2,205.45 million) out of which Rs. 1,651.19 million (30 June 2017: Rs. 1,761.10 million) remained unutilized at the 
year end.

20.5 Expected charge for the year ending 30 June 2019 is Rs. 781,496. 
  
20.6 Risks associated with defined benefit plans
  
 a)  Investment risks
  
  The risk arises when the actual performance of the investments is lower than expectation and thus creating a shortfall 

in the funding objectives.
  
 b)  Longevity risks
  
  The risk arises when the actual lifetime of retirees is longer than expectation. This risk is measured at the plan level over 

the entire retiree population.
  
 c)  Salary increase risk
  
  The most common type of retirement benefit is one where the benefit is linked with final salary. The risk arises when the 

actual increases are higher than expectation and impacts the liability accordingly.
  
 d)  Withdrawal risk
  
  The risk of actual withdrawals varying with the actuarial assumptions can impose a risk to the benefit obligation. The 

movement of the liability can go either way.
  
20.7 Historical information

 

30 June 

�016 �015 �014 �013 �01�

---------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees) ----------------------------------------------------------

Present value of defined 

Eenefit oEligation ( 36�385�471) ( 33�537�730)          ( 31�474�360)       ( �7�15��096)             ( -ɉɉ)                    

Fair value of plan assets ( (41��34�617) ( (39�879�65�)         ( (43�360�67�)      ( (38�001�696)            ( (11�748�034)     

Net liaEility � (asset) ( (4�849�146)  ( (6�341�9��)           ( (11�886�31�)      ( (10�849�600)            ( (11�748�034)     

20.8 Gratuity for the year recognised in the profit and loss account has been allocated as follows:
30 June 30 June

Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)

Cost of sales 25   1,349,892   1,219,899 
Administrative and selling expenses 26   368,605   368,147 

  1,718,497   1,588,046 
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22.1.2.1 The above balance is mark-up free, unsecured and represent amount paid by the Company to TOTAL PARCO Limited for 
fuel utilized and other expenses on behalf of subsidiary companies.

22.1.2.2 Detailed analysis of due from related parties

 

Name of related part\ Gross Past due Provision Reversal of Amount due  Net amount  Ma[imum 
amount amount for doubtful provision of written off  amount 

due receivables doubtful  outstandinJ at  
receivables  an\ time durinJ 

 the \ear 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees) ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Specialized Autoparts Industries 
(Private) /imited ( 6�760�538) ( 6�760�538)   ( -)                 ( -)                         ( -)                     (6,760,538) ( 6,760,538)       

Specialized Motorcycle (Private) 
/imited ( 3�706�788) ( 3�706�788)   ( -)                 ( -)                         � ������������������������ (3,706,788) ( 3,706,788)       

Hi-Tech Alloy :heels /imited ( 5�793�913) ( 5�793�913)   ( -)                 ( -)                         � ������������������������ (5,793,913) ( 5,793,913)       

( 16��61��39) ( 16��61��39) ( -)                 ( -)                         ( -)                     ( 16,261,239)   ( 16,261,239)     

22.1.2.3 Age analysis of due from related parties  

 

Name of related part\ Amount not Amount past due  Total Jross 
 past due Past due Past due Past due 61-90 Past due 91 - Past due 365  amount due 

0-30 da\s 31-60 da\s da\s 365 da\s da\s
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees) ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Specialized Autoparts Industries ( -)                 ( 79��536)      ( -)                 ( -)                         ( -ɉɉ)               ( 5�968�00�)    ( 6,760,538)       
(Private) /imited

Specialized Motorcycle (Private) ( -)                 ( -)                   ( -)                 ( -)                         ( -ɉɉ)               ( 3�706�788)    ( 3,706,788)       
/imited

Hi-Tech Alloy :heels /imited ( -)                 ( ��475�978)   ( -)                 ( -)                         ( -ɉɉ)               ( 3�317�935)    ( 5,793,913)       

( -)                 ( 3��68�514)   ( -)                 ( -)                         ( -ɉɉ)               ( 1��99��7�5)  ( 16,261,239)     

22.2 Due to related parties - unsecured
30 June 30 June

Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)

Loan from subsidiary companies 22.2.1   287,456,000   277,840,000 
Accrued mark-up on loan from subsidiary companies 22.2.1   56,178,425   36,629,751 
Trade payables to related parties 22.2.2   120,896,354   77,713,337 

  464,530,779   392,183,088 

21.5 Unavailed facilities
 
 The Company has unutilized facility of Finance against Trust Receipt (FATR) facility from Habib Bank Limited and Habib 

Metropolitan Bank Limited having limit aggregating to Rs. 350 million, to facilitate retirement of import bills under LC sight 
opened through bank. This facility is secured by charge over current and future assets of the company and TR form signed 
separately for each bill. This facility carries mark-up at 1 month KIBOR plus 0.75% to 3 month KIBOR plus 0.55% per annum 
(30 June 2017: 1 month KIBOR plus 1.5% per annum) and is repayable maximum within 90 days of the disbursement date.

 
 The Company also has an unutilized facility of forward cover from JS Bank Limited and Meezan Bank Limited, having limit 

aggregating to Rs. 66 million to hedge forex risk on import transactions carried in USD.
 The tenor of facility is of maximum 12 months and the cover limit for JS Bank Limited is established at 10 times of the actual 

limit (Rs. 350 million).
 
22. DUE FROM / (TO) RELATED PARTIES

30 June 30 June
Note 2018 2017

(Rupees)

Due from related parties 22.1   518,518,738   12,992,725 

Due to related parties 22.2   (464,530,779)   (392,183,088)

Prior year receivables and payables have been grossed up and reclassified as receivables and payables.

22.1 Due from related parties - unsecured
30 June 30 June

Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)

Considered good
Loan to Hi-Tech Alloy Wheels Limited 22.1.1  495,000,000  -   
Mark-up Receivable on loan to Hi-Tech
Alloy Wheels Limited 22.1.1  7,257,499  -   
Due from related parties - considered good 22.1.2  16,261,239  12,992,725 

 518,518,738  12,992,725 

22.1.1 The Company entered into a loan agreement dated 25 December 2017 with Hi-Tech Alloy Wheels Limited (HAWL) to 
provide loan upto a maximum limit of Rs. 1 billion for meeting working capital and other requirements. The Company 
provided Rs. 195 million, Rs. 100 million and Rs. 200 million on 28 March 2018, 2 April 2018 and 1 June 2018 respectively. 
The loan is repayable on demand and carry mark-up at the rate of 1 month KIBOR plus 1%.

22.1.2 Due from related parties
30 June 30 June

Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)

Specialized Autoparts Industries (Private) Limited   6,760,538   5,968,002 
Specialized Motorcycle (Private) Limited   3,706,788   3,706,788 
Hi-Tech Alloy Wheels Limited   5,793,913   3,317,935 

22.1.2.1   16,261,239   12,992,725 
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23.2 Workers’ profit participation fund
30 June 30 June

Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)

Opening balance   19,659,057   11,326,898 
Charge for the year 27   7,229,562   15,625,400 
Mark-up charged during the year 29   798,224   691,679 

  27,686,843   27,643,977 
Less: Payments during the year   (18,267,845)   (7,984,920)
Closing balance   9,418,998   19,659,057 

23.3 Workers’ welfare fund

Opening balance   6,250,160   3,449,415 
Charge for the year 27   2,891,825   6,250,160 
Less: Payments during the year   -     (3,449,415)
Closing balance   9,141,985   6,250,160 

23.4 This carries mark-up at the rate of 7.3% (30 June 2017: 7.3%).
 
23.5 This represents security deposit received from contractors against provision of services, kept in the Company’s bank 

account. 
 
23.6 This includes amounts deducted deducted from employees’ salaries against vehicles (used by employees) to be sold to the 

employees upon completion of respective useful lives of the vehicles.

24 REVENUE
Local sales 24.1   5,769,095,818   5,172,668,587 
Less: Sales returns   (48,189,108)   (18,670,578)

  5,720,906,710   5,153,998,009 
Less: Sales tax   (831,242,855)   (748,871,506)

  4,889,663,855   4,405,126,503 

24.1 This includes scrap sales amounting to Rs. 53.11 million (30 June 2017: Rs.  45.76 million).

22.2.1 Loan and accrued mark-up on loan from subsidiary companies
30 June 2018 30 June 2017

Loan Accrued Loan Accrued 
mark-up mark-up

(Rupees)

Specialized Autoparts Industries (Private) Limited  151,590,000   27,259,489   151,590,000   16,044,155 
Multiple Autoparts Industries (Private) Limited  81,450,000   12,131,182   69,950,000   7,898,891 
Specialized Motorcycle (Private) Limited  54,416,000   16,787,754   56,300,000   12,686,705 

 287,456,000   56,178,425   277,840,000   36,629,751 

22.2.1.1 These are repayable on demand carrying mark up at the rate of 1 month KIBOR plus 1.75% per annum. Purpose of the 
loan is for working capital requirement.

 
22.2.2 Trade payables to related parties

30 June 30 June
Note 2018 2017

(Rupees)

Specialized Autoparts Industries (Private) Limited   77,203,733   52,856,449 
Multiple Autoparts Industries (Private) Limited   43,692,621   24,856,888 

22.2.2.1   120,896,354   77,713,337 

22.2.2.1 These represent payable against toll manufacturing services provided to the Company by the subsidiaries.

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
30 June 30 June

Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)

Trade creditors   185,844,876   161,125,254 
Accrued mark-up on short term borrowings
Accrued liabilities 23.1   20,438,364   19,877,619 

Other liabilities
Advance from customer   38,325,272   13,188,422 
Mobilization advances 23.4   12,071,585   22,862,201 
Workers' profit participation fund 23.2   9,418,998   19,659,057 
Provision for compensated absences   11,090,085   10,678,222 
Workers' welfare fund 23.3   9,141,985   6,250,160 
Withholding tax payable   1,251,590   1,612,681 
Security deposit from contractors 23.5   129,000   129,000 
Other payables 23.6   12,560,383   5,615,333 

  300,272,138   260,997,949 

23.1 This includes provision of Rs. 2.45 million (30 June 2017: Rs. 1.66 million in respect of Gas Infrastructure Development 
Cess (GID  Cess) charges. No payment has been made in the current and prior years, since stay order has been obtained 
against levy of GID Cess (refer note 15.1.1).
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25.1 Raw material and components consumed
30 June 30 June

Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)

Opening inventory  933,433,474  897,990,349 
Purchases  3,968,930,047  3,146,820,932 

 4,902,363,521  4,044,811,281 

Closing inventory 7 (1,466,986,223)  (933,433,474)
 3,435,377,298  3,111,377,807 

25.2 Ancillary materials consumed

Opening inventory   38,631,402   51,209,992 
Purchases   47,974,283   54,174,784 

  86,605,685   105,384,776 
Ancillary materials capitalised   (17,039,357)   (14,551,717)

  69,566,328   90,833,059 
Closing inventory   (29,276,306)   (38,631,402)
Less: Sales tax   40,290,022   52,201,657 

25.3 This includes a sum of Rs. 1.3 million (30 June 2017: Rs. 1.2 million) in respect of employee benefits - gratuity.

25.4 Toll manufacturing
30 June 30 June

2018 2017
(Rupees)

Specialized Autoparts Industries (Private) Limited (SAIL)   355,145,466   309,496,337 
Multiple Autoparts Industries (Private) Limited (MAIL)   165,332,389   124,000,772 
Others   100,885,612   59,454,871 

  621,363,467   492,951,980 
 
25.5 This represents royalty in respect of providing technical information and assistance for the manufacturing of exhaust system. 

Details are as follows:
30 June 30 June

Name of Recipient  Relationship with 
 the Company

Registered Address 2018 2017

(Rupees)

Futaba Industrial Co. Limited  Technical advisor  1, Ochaya, Hashime-Cho, Okazaki-City, 

  Aichi Prefecture, Japan 444-8558   7,987,135   1,557,933 

25 COST OF SALES
30 June 30 June

Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)

Raw materials and components consumed 25.1   3,435,377,298   3,111,377,807 
Ancillary materials consumed 25.2   40,290,022   52,201,657 

30 June 30 June
Note 2018 2017

(Rupees)
Manufacturing expenses
Salaries and wages   160,045,705   138,370,334 
Other employees' benefits 25.3   75,542,118   83,824,711 
Provident fund contribution   2,490,151   2,222,310 
Toll manufacturing 25.4   621,363,467   492,951,980 
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 4.1.6   83,649,060   76,257,747 
Gas, power and water   18,759,820   24,369,289 
Travelling and vehicle running cost   11,646,800   10,167,602 
Insurance   8,949,028   6,720,229 
Repairs and maintenance   6,583,182   7,824,449 
Postage, telephone and telex   1,248,223   2,005,679 
Allowance for inventory obsolescence 7.1   3,265,920   1,623,406 
Inward freight and storage charges   1,503,132   1,257,234 
Conveyance   949,666   1,916,758 
Rent, rates and taxes   1,315,592   860,106 
Printing, stationery and periodicals   30,443   205,843 
Royalty expense 25.5   7,987,135   1,557,933 
General expenses   997,970   1,315,077 
Security services   638,571   372,834 
Transferred to capital work-in-progress   (15,827,380)   (13,322,519)
Manufacturing cost   991,138,603   840,501,002 

Opening stock of work-in-process   140,014,359   142,503,010 
Closing stock of work-in-process 7   (150,978,815)   (140,014,359)

  (10,964,456)   2,488,651 

Cost of goods manufactured   4,455,841,467   4,006,569,117 

Opening stock of finished goods   110,143,067   66,570,963 
Closing stock of finished goods 7   (49,683,031)   (110,143,067)

  60,460,036   (43,572,104)
  4,516,301,503   3,962,997,013 
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28 OTHER  INCOME
30 June 30 June

Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)

Income from financial assets
Mark-up income from Participation Term Certificates   12,655,665   12,454,200 
Mark-up income on term deposit receipts   2,955,815   12,862,710 
Dividend income
- Associated company - Treet Corporation Limited   -     7,620,680 
- Others 28.1   2,396,725   2,404,942 

  2,396,725   10,025,622 

Mark-up income on Pakistan Investment Bonds   11,501,110   3,875,000 
Un-winding of mark-up on sale of dies 9.1   3,514,240   1,105,361 
Mark-up income on loan to employees   1,285,422   1,172,439 
Mark-up income on saving accounts   -     558,051 
Mark-up income on loan to subsidiary 22.1   7,257,499   -   
Others   1,587,976   184,596 

  43,154,452   42,237,979 
Income from assets other than financial assets
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 4.1.7   25,447,982   24,383,164 
Recovery from debtors written off   -     889,500 
Others   1,862,071   2,208,920 

  27,310,053   27,481,584 
  70,464,505   69,719,563 

28.1 This includes dividend received from Tri-Pack Films Limited amounting to Rs. 2.35 million (30 June 2017: Rs.2.35 million). 
The remaining amount being insignificant represents dividend received from Atlas Honda Limited, Indus Motor Company 
Limited, Agriauto Industries Limited, Baluchistan Wheels Limited, Atlas Battery Limited, Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited, Millat 
Tractors Limited, Oil and Gas Development Company Limited, Thal Limited, Pak Suzuki Motor Company Limited, The 
General Tyre and Rubber Company of Pakistan Limited, Hino Pak Motors Limited, Honda Atlas Cars (Pakistan) Limited 
and Ghandara Nissan Limited against investment as disclosed in note 13.

 
29 FINANCE COSTS

30 June 30 June
Note 2018 2017

(Rupees)

Mark-up on bank loans and borrowings   44,744,237   33,595,731 
Mark-up on loans from subsidiary companies 22.2.1   19,548,674   22,282,853 
Exchange loss   40,657,128   5,538,491 
Finance lease charges   1,041,475   2,090,311 
Mark-up on mobilization advance   1,304,980   2,046,396 
Bank charges   2,109,016   1,486,882 
Mark-up on workers' profit participation fund 23.2   798,224   691,679 

  110,203,734   67,732,343 

30 TAXATION

Current tax 30.3   46,161,520   36,928,764 
Prior tax 30.4   (7,873,681)   (2,839,337)
Deferred tax 19.2   8,151,236   9,253,031 

30.1   46,439,075   43,342,458 

26 ADMINISTRATIVE, SELLING AND GENERAL EXPENSES
30 June 30 June

Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)

Salaries and wages   80,471,381   72,047,700 
Other employees' benefits 26.1   25,411,491   31,017,950 
Provident fund contribution   1,742,659   1,707,367 
Advertising and sales promotion   1,409,601   1,057,296 
Travelling and vehicle running cost   11,090,611   9,630,458 
Outward freight   19,024,859   17,830,361 
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 4.1.6   7,690,099   7,006,957 
Amortization of intangible assets 5   968,122   441,961 
Legal and professional charges   14,374,528   10,353,853 
Postage, telephone and telex   3,255,369   2,763,220 
Conveyance   1,618,152   353,740 
Auditors' remuneration 26.3   1,249,500   750,000 
Electricity   1,200,000   1,130,120 
Repairs and maintenance   205,463   297,234 
Entertainment   482,133   351,853 
Printing, stationery and periodicals   2,042,451   2,143,978 
Insurance   804,902   1,007,670 
Donation 26.2   70,000   20,000 
General expenses   2,040,400   3,198,647 

  175,151,721   163,110,365 

26.1 This includes a sum of Rs. 0.37 million (30 June 2017: Rs. 0.37 million) in respect of employee benefits - gratuity.
 
26.2 Donations of Rs. 20,000 and Rs. 50,000 were given to Fatimid Foundation and NED University for free medical treatment 

of needy patients and support to students respectively.
 
26.2.1 None of the directors and their spouses have interest in donees.

26.3 Auditors’ remuneration
30 June 30 June

Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)

Audit fee   529,500   450,000 
Interim review   220,000   200,000 
Certifications for regulatory purposes   375,000   75,000 
Out of pocket expense   125,000   25,000 

  1,249,500   750,000 

27 OTHER EXPENSES

Workers' profit participation fund 23.2   7,229,562   15,625,400 
Workers' welfare fund 23.3   2,891,825   6,250,160 
Loss on sale of investment in Pakistan Investment Bonds 6.3.1   14,559,635   -   

  24,681,022   21,875,560 
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31.1 Weighted average number of ordinary shares

30 June 30 June
2018 2017

 (Number) 

Issued ordinary shares at beginning of the year   137,500,000   75,000,000 
Effect of ordinary shares issued during the year   -     34,794,521 
Effect of bonus shares issued in the prior year   -     10,979,452 
Effect of bonus shares issued during the year   13,750,000   12,077,397 
Weighted average number of ordinary shares at end of the year   151,250,000   132,851,370 

32. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

32.1 Related parties comprise of subsidiaries, associated company and other companies with common directorship and 
significant influence, employees retirement benefit funds and key management personnel. Transactions with related parties 
are at terms determined in accordance with the agreed rates. Transactions and balances with related parties, other than 
those disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, are disclosed below: 

Relationship and Transactions during 30 June 30 June

Name of the related party percentage the  year and 2018 2017

shareholding year end balances (Rupees)

Specialized Autoparts Industries 

(Private) Limited

Subsidiary company -  Toll manufacturing   355,145,466   309,496,337 

54% holding (30 June  Payments made during the year   391,032,815   319,716,383 

2017: 100%)  Mark-up charged by related party   11,215,334   12,157,518 

 Amount due at the year end   249,292,684   214,522,602 

Multiple Autoparts Industries 

(Private) Limited

Subsidiary company -  Toll manufacturing   165,332,389   124,000,772 

60% holding (30 June  Payments made during the year   174,491,322   130,078,333 

2017: 100%)  Mark-up charged by related party   4,232,291   5,610,075 

 Amount due at the year end   137,273,803   102,705,779 

 Loan received   11,500,000   -   

Hi-Tech Alloy Wheels Limited
Subsidiary company -  Amount due at the year end   508,051,412   3,317,935 

65.38% holding (30 June  Loan provided   495,000,000   -   

2017: 100%)  Shares Subscribed    610,000,000   249,960,000 

Specialized Motorcycle (Private) 

Limited

Subsidiary company -  Payments made during the year   -     14,400 

100% holding (30 June  Repayment of loan   1,884,000   1,300,000 

2017: 100%)  Mark-up on loan   4,101,049   4,515,260 

 Amount due at the year end   67,496,966   65,279,917 

Provident fund Defined benefit scheme Receivable from provident fund   8,701,174   5,524,464 

Employee benefits - gratuity
Defined contribution plan  Expense for the year   1,718,497   5,517,723 

 Contribution paid during the year   18,936,654   -   

 Balance at the year end asset 

/ (liability)   5,317,208   (287,395)

Treet Corporation Limited Associated company by  Mark-up income on PTCs   12,655,665   12,454,200 

virtue of common  Dividend income   -     7,620,680 

directorship

30.1 Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit

Profit before Taxation   126,794,905   272,923,947 

Tax at the applicable rate of 30% (2017: 31%)   38,038,472   84,606,424 
Effect of minimum tax   32,874,771   -   
Prior year charge   (7,873,681)   (2,839,337)
Deferred tax not asset recognised   -     -   
Tax effect of change in tax rates   (1,571,640)   (1,164,160)
Tax effect of income taxed at lower rate   359,509   (1,854,740)
Tax effect of tax credits 30.5   (16,120,216)   (33,623,591)
Tax effect of permanent differences   731,860   (1,782,138)

  46,439,075   43,342,458 

30.2 The returns of income tax have been filed up to and including tax year 2017. Except for tax years mentioned in note 15, 
all other assessment years are deemed to be assessed under section 120 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Tax related 
contingencies are disclosed in note 15.

 
30.3 Income tax for the year is calculated on the basis of minimum tax liability at the rate of 1.25% on turnover for the year less 

allowable tax credit on account of purchase of plant and machinery.
 
30.4 This represents income tax reversed in respect of prior tax years on account of difference between tax assessed and tax 

charge in the financial statements in the prior years.
 
30.5 This represents tax credit at the rate of 10% of purchase of plant and machinery under section 65B of the Income Tax 

Ordinance, 2001.
 
30.6 Sufficient provision has been made in these unconsolidated financial statements taking into account the profit or loss for 

the year and various admissible allowances and deductions under the Income tax Ordinance, 2001. Comparison of tax 
provision as per unconsolidated financial statements and tax assessments including returns filed and deemed assessed 
for the last three years is as follows: 

30 June
2017 2016 2015

------------------------------- (Rupees) -----------------------------

 Tax provision recognized in the consolidated financial statements   36,928,764   51,411,085   39,704,024 

 Tax charged as per tax assessments   32,197,456   42,305,356   40,360,975 

31. EARNINGS PER SHARE - basic and diluted 
 

Un-consolidated Consolidated
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June

2018 2017 2018 2017

Profit for the year                                                Rupees   80,355,830   229,581,489 154,911,054   306,427,299 

 (Restated)  (Restated) 
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding during the year                                Number   151,250,000   132,851,370   151,250,000   132,851,370 

Earnings per share - basic and diluted               Rupees   0.53   1.73   1.02   2.31 
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 Exposure to credit risk
 
 Credit risk of the Company arises principally from trade debts, loans and advance, deposits, bank balances and other 

receivables. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was as follows:
30 June 30 June

Note 2018 2017

Trade debts - net (unsecured) 8   350,809,641   223,972,326 
Loans 10   15,783,108   9,196,371 
Deposits and other receivables 9 & 11   75,054,802   74,282,889 
Due from related parties - unsecured 22   518,518,738   12,992,725 
Investments 13.1   32,948,685   47,527,425 
Bank balances and term deposit receipts 14   8,261,844   215,722,640 

  1,001,376,818   583,694,376 

 Credit rating and collaterals
 
 Balances with banks are only held with reputable banks having sound credit ratings. The credit quality of Company bank 

balances can be assessed with reference of external credit ratings as follows:

Bank Rating Agency Short term 30 June 2018
rating (Rupees) (%)

Bank AL Habib Limited PACRA A1+   5,679,755 68.7%
National Bank of Pakistan JCR-VIS A1+   1,458,936 17.7%
Habib Bank Limited JCR-VIS A1+   10,000 0.1%
Al Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited JCR-VIS A1   1,113,153 13.5%

  8,261,844 100%

 Concentration of credit risk
 
 Concentration of credit risk arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities or have 

similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes 
in economic, political or other conditions. Concentration of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the company’s 
performance to developments affecting a particular industry. All of the Company’s receivables are from distributors of 
automotive industries. Trade debts pertaining to four major customers of the Company aggregates to 84% as at 30 June 
2018 (30 June 2017: 82%). 

 
 Impairment losses and past due balances
 
 The ageing of trade debtors at reporting date was as follows:

30 June 2018 30 June 2017
Gross Impairment Net Gross Impairment Net

-----------------------------------------------------(Rupees)------------------------------------------------------

Less than or equal to 30 days   269,319,506   -     269,319,506   186,763,991   -     186,763,991 
More than 30 days but not more than 90 days   76,699,068   -     76,699,068   8,158,696   -     8,158,696 
More than 90 days but not more than 180 days   3,754,241   -     3,754,241   19,371,586   405,606   18,965,980 
More than 180 days   1,036,826   -     1,036,826   -     -     -   

  350,809,641   -     350,809,641   214,294,273   405,606   213,888,667 

 Based on the past experience, consideration of financial position, past track records and recoveries, the Company believes 
that trade debts past due do not require any impairment except as provided in these unconsolidated financial statements. 
No trade debts are outstanding with related parties.

32.2 The remuneration to Board of Directors (executive and non-executive) and all members of the Company’s Management 
Team is disclosed  in note 37 to these unconsolidated financial statements.

 
33. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

30 June 30 June
Note 2018 2017

(Rupees)

Cash and bank balances 14   8,959,843   215,971,176 
Short term financing 21   (1,439,632,009)   (28,395,236)

  (1,430,672,166)   187,575,940 

33.1 Reconciliation of movement of and equity liabilities to cash flows arising
 from financing activities

Liabilities
Short term Liabilities against Due to related Unclaimed Total
financing assets subject parties dividend

to finance lease
-----------------------------------------------------(Rupees)------------------------------------------------------

Balance as at 1 July 2017   28,395,236   22,193,106   392,183,088   1,420,509   444,191,939 

Changes from financing cash flows
Repayment of loans and borrowings   -     -     (51,912,200)   -     (51,912,200)
Payment of finance lease liabilities   -     (22,851,639)   -     -     (22,851,639)
Dividend Paid   -     -     -     (135,346,501)   (135,346,501)
Proceeds from loans and borrowings   -     -     61,528,200   -     61,528,200 
Total changes from financing cash flows   -     (22,851,639)   9,616,000   (135,346,501)   (148,582,140)

Liability - related other changes
Change in short term financing - net   1,411,236,773   -     -     -     1,411,236,773 
Dividend announced during the year   -     -     -     137,500,000   137,500,000 
New finance leases   -     18,680,410   -     -     18,680,410 
Finance cost   -     1,041,475   19,548,674   -     20,590,149 
Trade payable   -     -     43,183,017   -     43,183,017 
Total liability - related other changes   1,411,236,773   19,721,885   62,731,691   137,500,000   1,631,190,349 

Balance as at 30 June 2018   1,439,632,009   19,063,352   464,530,779   3,574,008   1,926,800,148 

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

 The Company has exposure to following risks from its use of financial instrument:
 -    Credit risk
 -    Liquidity risk
 -    Market risk
 -    Operational risk
34.1 Risk management framework
 
 The Board of Directors of the Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk 

management framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management 
policies.

 
34.2 Credit risk
 
 Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to 

incur a financial loss, without taking into account the fair value of any collateral. Credit risk arises from the inability of the 
issuers of the instruments, the relevant financial institutions or counter parties in case of placements or other arrangements 
to fulfil their obligations.
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34.4 Market risk
 
 Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest 

rates or the market price of securities due to a change in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument, change in market 
sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of securities and liquidity in the market. 

 
 Market risk comprises of three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk. The Company is exposed 

to all of the three risks which are as follows:
 
34.4.1 Currency risk 
 
 Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of financial asset or a liability will fluctuate due to a change in foreign 

exchange rates. It arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions entered into foreign currencies.
 
 Exposure to currency risk
 
 The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the reporting date was as follows:

30 June 2018
Rupees USD SGD JPY

Creditors   89,010,987   627,849   45,555   7,079,451 
Net balance sheet exposure   89,010,987   627,849   45,555   7,079,451 

30 June 2017
Rupees USD SGD JPY

Creditors   128,508,982   827,140   32,535   41,813,310 
Net balance sheet exposure   128,508,982   827,140   32,535   41,813,310 

Average rate Balance sheet date rate
30 June 2018 30 June 2017 30 June 2018 30 June 2017

USD to Pak Rupees 113.94 107.35   123.02   104.85 
SGD to Pak Rupees 81.84 78.40   87.49   76.19 
JPY to Pak Rupees 1.02 0.98   1.10   0.94 

 Sensitivity Analysis
 
 A 10 percent strengthening of the Rupee against USD, SGD and JPY at 30 June 2018 would have increased equity and 

profit and loss account by the amounts (net of tax) shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular 
interest rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis as for 2017.

30 June 2018 30 June 2017
As at 30 June 2018 Profit and loss Equity Profit and loss Equity

(Rupees) (Rupees)

Effect of change in USD   5,405,780   5,405,780   5,986,922   5,986,922 
Effect of change in SGD   279,024   279,024   171,062   171,062 
Effect of change in JPY   545,118   545,118   2,596,607   2,596,607 
Gross exposure   6,229,922   6,229,922   8,754,591   8,754,591 

 The Company does not have any foreign currency borrowing as at 30 June 2018.
 

34.3 Liquidity risk
 
 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they fall due. Liquidity 

risk arises because of the possibility that the Company could be required to pay its liabilities earlier than expected or difficulty 
in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial liabilities as they fall due. The Company’s approach to 
managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, 
under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s 
reputation.

 
 Maturity analysis of financial liabilities 
 
 The table below analyses the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period 

at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash 
flows: 

30 June 2018
Carrying Contractual Less than One Three More than
amount cash flows one to three months to one year

month months one year
-----------------------------------------------------(Rupees)------------------------------------------------------

Non-derivative
  financial liabilities 

Short term financing   1,439,632,009   (1,461,370,453)   (727,158,128)   (734,212,325)   -     -   

Trade and other payables   230,062,708   (230,062,708)   (185,844,876)   (44,088,832)   (129,000)   -   

Due to related parties   464,530,779   (466,566,926)   (466,566,926)   -     -     -   

Liabilities against assets
  subject to finance lease   19,063,352   (19,429,114)   (1,198,978)   (2,397,955)   (10,790,799)   (5,041,382)

Accrued mark-up on
  short term financing   19,248,522   (19,248,522)   (19,248,522)   -     -     -   

Unclaimed dividend   3,574,008   (3,574,008)   (3,574,008)   -     -     -   

  2,176,111,378   (2,200,251,731)   (1,403,591,438)   (780,699,112)   (10,919,799)   (5,041,382)

30 June 2017
Carrying Contractual Less than One Three More than
amount cash flows one to three months to one year

month months one year
-----------------------------------------------------(Rupees)------------------------------------------------------

Non-derivative
financial liabilities 

Short term financing   28,395,236   (28,824,004)   (14,342,434)   (14,481,570)   -     -   

Trade and other payables   197,425,428   (197,425,428)   (161,125,254)   (36,171,174)   (129,000)   -   

Due to related parties   379,190,363   (381,042,630)   (381,042,630)   -     -     -   

Liabilities against assets
subject to finance lease   22,193,106   (23,665,259)   (1,191,946)   (2,383,892)   (10,727,515)   (9,361,906)

Accrued mark-up on
short term financing   587,567   (587,567)   (587,567)   -     -     -   

Unclaimed dividend   1,420,509   (1,420,509)   (1,420,509)   -     -     -   

  629,212,209   (632,965,397)   (559,710,340)   (53,036,636)   (10,856,515)   (9,361,906)
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 As at 30 June 2018, the fair value of equity securities exposed to price risk are disclosed in note 13. The table below 
summarises the sensitivity of the price movements as at 30 June 2018. The analysis is based on the assumption that KSE-
100 index increased by 1% (30 June 2017: 1%) and decreased by 1% (30 June 2017: 1%), with all other variables held 
constant and that the fair value of the Company’s portfolio of equity securities moved according to their historical correlation 
with the index. This represents management’s best estimate of a reasonable possible shift in the KSE-100 index, having 
regard to the historical volatility of index of past three years (30 June 2017: three years).

 
 The impact below arises from the reasonable possible change in the fair value of listed equity securities:

Effect on assets of an increase in the KSE-100 index on 30 June 30 June
investments classified as 'fair value through profit or loss' 2018 2017
and 'available-for-sale'

Effect on investments   660,833   1,014,217 
Effect on profit and loss account   338,214   486,740 
Effect on equity   322,620   527,477 

Effect on assets of an decrease in the KSE-100 index on
investments classified as 'fair value through profit or loss'
and 'available-for-sale'

Effect on investments   (660,833)   (1,014,217)
Effect on profit and loss account   (338,214) (486,740)
Effect on equity   (322,620)   (527,477)

 The sensitivity analysis is based on the assumption that the equity index had increased / decreased by 1% with all other 
variables held constant and all the Company’s equity instruments moved according to the historical correlation with the 
index. This represents management’s best estimate of a reasonable possible shift in the KSE 100 index, having regard to 
the historical volatility of the index. The composition of the Company’s investment portfolio and the correlation thereof to the 
KSE index, is expected to change over the time. Accordingly, the sensitivity analysis prepared as of 30 June 2018 is not 
necessarily indicative of the effect on the Company’s assets of future movements in the level of KSE 100 index.

 
34.5 Operational risk
 
 Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the processes, 

technology and infrastructure supporting the Company’s operations either internally within the Company or externally at 
the Company’s service providers, and from external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks such as those 
arising from legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of investment management behavior. 
Operational risks arise from all of the Company’s activities.

 
 The Company’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance limiting of financial losses and damage to its 

reputation with achieving its objective of generating returns for stakeholders.
 
 Senior management ensures that the Company’s staff have adequate training and experience and fosters effective 

communication related to operational risk management.
 
35. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
 
 The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, so 

that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital 
base to support the sustained development of its businesses.

 

34.4.2 Interest rate risk
 
 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 

in market interest rates. The interest rate exposure arises from bank balances in profit or loss sharing account.
 
 At balance sheet date, details of the interest rate profile of the Company’s interest bearing financial instruments were as 

follows:

30 June 30 June
2018 2017

(Rupees)
Variable rate instruments
Financial assets   15,783,108   51,602,345 
Financial liabilities   (1,727,088,009)   (306,235,236)

  (1,711,304,901)   (254,632,891)

Fixed rate instruments
Financial assets   556,146,939   222,229,777 
Financial liabilities   (19,063,352)   (22,193,106)

  537,083,587   200,036,671 

 Fair value sensitivity analysis of fixed rate instruments
 
 The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, 

change in interest rates at reporting date would not have impact on profit and loss account and equity of the Company.
 
 Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
 
 A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased / (decreased) equity and profit or 

loss by the amounts (net of tax) shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant. The analysis 
is performed on the same basis for June 2017.

Profit or loss  Equity 
100 bps 100 bps 100 bps 100 bps 
increase  decrease  increase decrease

(Rupees) (Rupees)

As at 30 June 2018
Cash flow sensitivity - 
  variable rate instruments   (11,979,134)   11,979,134   (11,979,134)   11,979,134 

As at 30 June 2017

Cash flow sensitivity - 
  variable rate instruments   (1,756,967)   1,756,967   (1,756,967)   1,756,967 

34.4.3 Other price risk
 
 Other price risk includes equity price risks which is the risk of changes in the fair value of equity securities as a result 

of changes in the levels of KSE 100 Index and the value of individual shares. The equity price risk exposure arises from 
investments in equity securities held by the Company for which prices in the future are uncertain. 
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30 June 2018
Carrying amount Fair value

Note Fair value 
through 
profit or 

loss

Available 
for sale

Held to 
maturity

Loans and 
receivables

Other 
financial 

assets

Other financial 
liabilities

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

30 June 2018

Financial assets - measured at
fair value

Equity securities ( 872,703 )     ( 32,261,953 ) ( -  )                 ( -  )                     ( -  )                  ( -  )                    ( 33,134,656 )       ( 33,134,656 )     ( -  )                   ( -  )        ( 33,134,656 )     

Participation Term Certificates ( 32,948,685 ) ( -  )              ( -  )                 ( -  )                     ( -  )                  ( -  )                    ( 32,948,685 )       ( 32,948,685 )     ( -  )                   ( -  )        ( 32,948,685 )     

Financial assets - not
  measured at fair value

Subsidiaries - unlisted shares 36.1.1 ( -  )              ( -  )              ( -  )                 ( -  )                     ( 1,159,960,000 ) ( -  )                    ( 1,159,960,000 ) 

Associate - listed shares ( -  )              ( -  )              ( -  )                 ( -  )                     ( 342,235,065 )  ( -  )                    ( 342,235,065 )    ( 294,486,436 )   ( -  )                   ( -  )        ( 294,486,436 )   

Trade debts 36.1.1 ( -  )              ( -  )              ( -  )                 ( 350,809,641 )    ( -  )                  ( -  )                    ( 350,809,641 )    

Loans 36.1.1 ( -  )              ( -  )              ( -  )                 ( 15,783,108 )       ( -  )                  ( -  )                    ( 15,783,108 )       

Deposits and other receivables 36.1.1 ( -  )              ( -  )              ( -  )                 ( 75,054,802 )       ( -  )                  ( -  )                    ( 75,054,802 )       

Due from related parties 36.1.1 ( -  )              ( -  )              ( -  )                 ( 518,518,738 )    ( -  )                  ( -  )                    ( 518,518,738 )    

Cash and bank balances 36.1.1 ( -  )              ( -  )              ( -  )                 ( -  )                     ( 8,959,843 )      ( -  )                    ( -  )                     
( 33,821,388 ) ( 32,261,953 ) ( -  )                 ( 960,166,289 )    ( 1,511,154,908 ) ( -  )                    ( 2,528,444,695 ) 

Financial liabilities - not
  measured at fair value

Short term financing 36.1.1 ( -  )              ( -  )              ( -  )                  ( -  )                     ( -  )                  ( 1,439,632,009 ) ( 1,439,632,009 ) 
Trade and other payables 36.1.1 ( -  )              ( -  )              ( -  )                  ( -  )                     ( -  )                  ( 230,062,708 )   ( 230,062,708 )    
Due to related parties 36.1.1 ( -  )              ( -  )              ( -  )                 ( -  )                     ( -  )                  ( 464,530,779 )   ( 464,530,779 )    
Liabilities against assets
subject to finance lease 36.1.1 ( -  )              ( -  )              ( -  )                 ( -  )                     ( -  )                  ( 19,063,352 )     ( 19,063,352 )       
Accrued mark-up on short term
financing 36.1.1 ( -  )              ( -  )              ( -  )                 ( -  )                     ( -  )                  ( 19,248,522 )     ( 19,248,522 )       
Unclaimed dividend 36.1.1 ( -  )              ( -  )              ( -  )                 ( -  )                     ( -  )                  ( 3,574,008 )        ( 3,574,008 )         

( -  )              ( -  )              ( -  )                 ( -  )                     ( -  )                  ( 2,176,111,378 ) ( 2,176,111,378 ) 

30 June 2017
Carrying amount Fair value

Note Fair value 
through 

profit or loss

Available 
for sale

Held to 
maturity

Loans and 
receivables

Other financial 
assets

Other financial 
liabilities

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

30 June 2017

Financial assets - measured at 
fair value

Equity securities ( 1,146,573 )  ( 52,747,744 ) ( -  )                  ( -  )                     ( -  )                  ( -  )                    ( 53,894,317 )       ( 53,894,317 )      ( -  )                    ( -  )         ( 53,894,317 )      

Participation Term Certificates ( 47,527,425 ) ( -  )              ( -  )                  ( -  )                     ( -  )                  ( -  )                    ( 47,527,425 )       ( 47,527,425 )      ( -  )                    ( -  )         ( 47,527,425 )      

Financial assets - not
  measured at fair value

Subsidiaries - unlisted shares 36.1.1 ( -  )              ( -  )              ( -  )                  ( -  )                     ( 550,000,000 )  ( -  )                    ( 550,000,000 )     

Associate - listed shares ( -  )              ( -  )              ( -  )                  ( -  )                     ( 334,652,655 )  ( -  )                    ( 334,652,655 )     ( 440,756,579 )    ( -  )                    ( -  )         ( 440,756,579 )    

Debt securities ( -  )              ( -  )              ( 193,233,321 ) ( -  )                     ( -  )                  ( -  )                    ( 193,233,321 )     ( -  )                    ( 181,999,181 )    ( -  )         ( 181,999,181 )    

Trade debts 36.1.1 ( -  )              ( -  )              ( -  )                  ( 223,972,326 )     ( -  )                  ( -  )                    ( 223,972,326 )     

Loans 36.1.1 ( -  )              ( -  )              ( -  )                  ( 9,196,371 )         ( -  )                  ( -  )                    ( 9,196,371 )         

Deposits and other receivables 36.1.1 ( -  )              ( -  )              ( -  )                  ( 74,282,889 )       ( -  )                  ( -  )                    ( 74,282,889 )       

Due from related parties 36.1.1 ( -  )              ( -  )              ( -  )                  ( -  )                     ( 12,992,725 )    ( -  )                    ( 12,992,725 )       

Cash and bank balances 36.1.1 ( -  )              ( -  )              ( -  )                  ( 215,971,176 )     ( -  )                  ( -  )                    ( 215,971,176 )     
( 48,673,998 ) ( 52,747,744 ) ( 193,233,321 ) ( 523,422,762 )     ( 897,645,380 )  ( -  )                    ( 1,715,723,205 )  

Financial liabilities - not
  measured at fair value

Short term financing 36.1.1 ( -  )              ( -  )              ( -  )                  ( -  )                     ( -  )                  ( 28,395,236 )      ( 28,395,236 )       
Trade and other payables 36.1.1 ( -  )              ( -  )              ( -  )                  ( -  )                     ( -  )                  ( 197,425,428 )    ( 197,425,428 )     
Due to related parties 36.1.1 ( -  )              ( -  )              ( -  )                  ( -  )                     ( -  )                  ( 379,190,363 )    ( 379,190,363 )     
Liabilities against assets
subject to finance lease 36.1.1 ( -  )              ( -  )              ( -  )                  ( -  )                     ( -  )                  ( 22,193,106 )      ( 22,193,106 )       
Accrued mark-up on short term
financing 36.1.1 ( -  )              ( -  )              ( -  )                  ( -  )                     ( -  )                  ( 587,567 )           ( 587,567 )            
Unclaimed dividend 36.1.1 ( -  )              ( -  )              ( -  )                  ( -  )                     ( -  )                  ( 1,420,509 )        ( 1,420,509 )         

( -  )              ( -  )              ( -  )                  ( -  )                     ( -  )                  ( 629,212,209 )    ( 629,212,209 )     

36.1.1 The Company has not disclosed fair values for these financial assets and financial liabilities because their carrying amounts 
are reasonable approximation of fair value. 

 The Company manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes adjustments to it in the light of 
changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount 
of dividend paid to the shareholders or issue bonus / new shares. The Company also monitors capital using a gearing ratio, 
which is net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings including finance cost thereon. Capital signifies equity as shown in 
the balance sheet plus net debt. The gearing ratio of the Company is as follows:

30 June 30 June
2018 2017

Debt   1,765,399,883   329,015,909 
Total equity   3,057,319,731   3,143,195,315 
Total capital   4,822,719,614   3,472,211,224 

Gearing ratio 37:63 9:91

36. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
 
 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in orderly transaction between 

market participants at the measurement date.
 
 The Company classifies fair value measurements of its investments using a hierarchy that reflects the significance of the 

inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:
 
 Level 1:  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
 
 Level 2:  Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly 

or indirectly.
 
 Level 3:  Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market date (i.e., unobservable inputs).
 
36.1 Accounting classifications and fair values
 
 The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their 

levels in the fair value hierarchy for financial instruments measured at fair value. It does not include fair value information for 
financial assets not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value. 36.1.1  The 
Company has not disclosed fair values for these financial assets and financial liabilities because their carrying amounts are 
reasonable approximation of fair value.
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39. PLANT CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION
 
 The production capacity of the plant cannot be determined as it depends on the relative proportions of various types / sizes 

of sub-assemblies, components and parts produced for various types of vehicles.
 
40. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

30 June 30 June
2018 2017

(Numbers)

Total number of employees at reporting date 784 709

Total number of factory employees at reporting date 673 612

Average number of employees during the year 747 691

Average number factory of employees during the year 643 580

41. OPERATING SEGMENTS
 
41.1 The financial information has been prepared on the basis of a single reportable segment.
 
41.2 Geographically, all the sales were carried out in Pakistan.
 
41.3 All non-current assets of the Company as at 30 June 2018 are located in Pakistan.
 
41.4 Sales to four major customers of the Company is around 86.9% during the year ended 30 June 2018 (30 June 2017: 

87.8%).
 
42 GENERAL
 
42.1 All Shares Islamic Index Screening
 
 Advances, deposits and bank balances do not carry any mark-up except for balance in saving accounts. Bank balances are 

placed withconventional banks in current and saving accounts. Other disclosures are included in notes 13 and 28.
 
42.2 Events after the end of the reporting date
 
 The directors in their meeting held on 1st October 2018, have recommended final dividend of Rs. Nil per share (2017: Re. 1 

per share) in respect of  year ended 30 June 2018 and have announced issue of bonus shares at the rate Nil (2017: 10%). 
Bonus shares will not be entitled to cash dividend.

 
42.3 Authorisation for issue
 
 These unconsolidated financial statements were authorised for issue in the Board of Directors meeting held on 1st October 

2018.

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Director

37. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
 
 The aggregate amounts charged in the financial statements for the remuneration, including all benefits, to the Chief 

Executive, Directors and Executives of the Company were as follows:
30 June 2018 30 June 2017

Chief Executive Directors Executives Total Chief Executive Directors Executives Total

--------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees) ---------------------------------------------------------------------

Managerial remuneration ( 8,642,400 )      ( 8,641,200 )  ( 3,352,260 ) ( 20,635,860 ) ( 7,007,124 )    ( 7,267,328 )       ( 3,041,340 )       ( 17,315,792 )     

Housing and utilities ( 9,356,400 )      ( 9,352,800 )  ( 4,390,524 ) ( 23,099,724 ) ( 7,583,552 )    ( 7,942,816 )       ( 3,132,894 )       ( 18,659,262 )     

Bonus ( 4,158,000 )      ( 3,975,000 )  ( 1,703,080 ) ( 9,836,080 ) ( 5,200,000 )    ( 5,400,000 )       ( 2,340,928 )       ( 12,940,928 )     

Medical ( 608,192 )          ( 2,928,678 )  ( 207,157 )    ( 3,744,027 ) ( 536,848 )       ( 738,379 )          ( 270,236 )          ( 1,545,463 )       

Company's Contribution to retirement

benefits funds ( 504,000 )          ( 230,400 )     ( 147,648 )    ( 882,048 )    ( 700,352 )       ( 174,468 )          ( 129,516 )          ( 1,004,336 )       

- 23,268,992 -    - 25,128,078 - - 9,800,669 - - 58,197,739 - - 21,027,876 - - 21,522,991 -     - 29,205,449 -     - 71,756,316 -     

Number of persons 1 2 2 5 1 2 2 5

37.1 The aggregate amount paid to directors in respect of attending board and other meetings was Nil (2017: Nil).
 
37.2 The Chief Executive, directors and certain executives are provided with free use of group maintained cars in accordance 

with their entitlements. The approximate aggregate value of this benefit is Rs. 32.55 million (30 June 2017: Rs.25.21 million).
 
37.3 Executives represent those employees (other than the chief executive and directors), whose basic salaries exceed twelve 

hundred thousand rupees (Rs. 1.2 million) in a financial year.
 
37.4 There are nine directors including chief executive. Remuneration has been paid to two directors.

38. PROVIDENT FUND
 
 The following information is based on latest unaudited financial statements of the fund:

30 June 30 June
2018 2017

(Un-audited) (Audited)
(Rupees)

Size of the Fund   65,520,542   73,772,442 
Cost of investment made   57,460,495   36,312,716 
Fair value / amortised cost of investments   58,373,463   37,815,792 
Percentage of investments made - based on fair value / amortised cost 89.09% 51.26%

 Break-up of investments in terms of amount and percentage of the size of provident fund are as follows:

30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2018 2017 2018 2017

(Un-audited) (Audited) (Un-audited) (Audited)
(Rupees) (% of the size of the fund)

Term finance certificates   140,000   140,000 0.21% 0.19%
Mutual Funds   12,760,854   2,048,614 19.48% 2.78%
Government securities   41,632,355   31,170,024 63.54% 42.25%
Equity securities   3,840,254   4,457,154 5.86% 6.04%

  58,373,463   37,815,792 89% 51.26%

 The above investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the requirement of section 218 of the 
Companies Act, 2017 and the conditions specified thereunder.


































